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2023 was yet another tumultuous year for Pakistan. We experienced storms of political
uncertainty. We were thrown in the midst of an economic desert with no way out. We
witnessed eruptions of social and civil unrest.

Unprecedented times call for unprecedented resilience. Amreli Steels'resolve to stand tall,
face the challenges and brave through these times has become even more SOLID.
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CORE VALUES

RESPECT

Wie treat others the way we want to be treated
Give respect - regardless

We value diversity and believe in equality

We value differences of opinions

We respect the environment

RESILIENCE

We never give up

We stand tall in adversity

We embrace challenges

We view failures and mistakes as leaming opportunities
We will win - if not immediately, then definitely

INTEGRITY

We deliver what we promise

We uphold the highest standards of ethics and honor
We act transparently

We do the right thing

We speak up when our Values are compromised

DYNAMISM

We stay ahead of the curve

We change the game

We are innovative and aggressive

We are decisive and take calculated risks
We are agile and move fast

EXCELLENCE

We give our best everyday

Wie strive to excel in every aspect of our business
We operate outside our comfort zone

We adapt to best practices

We believe in continuous improvement




COMPANY PROFILE

Arnreli Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated
in 1984 as a private limited Company and converted
into a public unquoted Company in 2009. The
Company enlisted on Pakistan Stock Exchange in
December 2015 and is mainly engaged in
manufacturing and sale of steel rebars and billets.

We are one of the largest manufacturers of steel
reinforcement bars in Pakistan. The two re-rolling plants
situated at S1TE. Karachi and Dhabeji are using one of
the most modern hot re-rolling technologies in the
industry with a nameplate capacity of 180,000 metric
tons and 425,000 metric tons of rebars per annum
respectively.

Our Steel Melt Shop plant in Dhabeji, Sindh is the largest
billet manufacturing facility in Pakistan boasting a
nameplate capacity of 600,000 metric tons per year. This
aims to bridge the supply-demand gap of Pakistan's
steel industry.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Abbas Akberali
Chairman, Non Executive Direcror

Mr. Shayan Akberali
Chief Exacutive Offices

Mr. Teizoon Kisat
independent Director

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Independent Cirector

Mr. Badar Kazmi
Independent Director

Mr. Hadl Abbas Akberali

Executive Director & Chisf Operating Offster {Srategy)

Ms. Mariam Akkberall
Man-Executive Dineclor

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Telzoon Kisat
Chairrman

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Mormber

Mr. Badar Kazmi
Merrbar

HUMAN RESOURCE &
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Chairman

Mr. Teizoon Kisat
Member

Mr. Shayan Akberali
Momber

COMPANY INFORMATION

Mr: Fazal Ahmed
Chief Operating Officer (Operanions)

Mir. Tahus Uirmier
Chtef Financial Officer

Mr. Adnan Abdul Ghffar
Company Secretany

EXTERMAL AUDITORS

EY Ford Rhaaes

Chartereg Asedarilan s
Progresiive Plaza, Beaamant Road
Karachi, Pokistan

SHARES REGISTRAR

THE Afsociaies (Pwl) Lirired

Plor Mo, 32-C, Jami Commercial

Sreef-2 [UHA., Phase-Vi, Karachi-75500
LIAN No: (0270 111-000-322

Ermiail; ifeinhk. com, pk

LEGAL ADVISOR

LEX FIRMA

Advocates, Barristers & Legal Consultants
418, Continental Trade Centre

Ciifton, Karachi

CORPORATE ADVISOR

Moore Shekha Mufri

253, PEACH.S, Block <&

N Shahrab-p-Faisal Korachi
Teid: Q20 -34374811-15




BANKERS

Al Baraka Bank Pakiston Lirmiled
Askart Bank Lirmited
Alied Bonk Lirmifed
Bank Al Habib Limited
Bank Atfalfah Limited
Bank islami Pakiztan Limited
Bank af Khyber
Durbai Islamic Bank Pokistar Limited
Faysal Bank Limrfed
Habib Bk Limited
Hahib Metropaolitan Bonk Limited
J5 Bk Linnifed
MCR Bank [imited
MCR isharmic Enak Limited
Mecron Bank Limiled
Maticnal Bark Lirited

JSamba Bank Limited

5k Bank Limited

Someri Bank Limited

STEEL MELT SHOP (SM5) & DHABEJI
ROLLING MILL (DRM)

Industrial Land, Deh Gharg, Tapa Gharg, Talika Mirpar Sokro
(D5t Thahta), Sindh, Pakistan

SYMBOL AT PAKISTAN STOCK
EXCHANGE LIMITED

ASTL
E-MAIL
investor-refations@amrelisieeis.com

WEBSITE INFORMATION

wwwoamrelisieels.cam

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan] Limited

- Sumit Bank Limited
The Bank of Punjah
Uinited Bank Lirmited

REGISTERED OFFICE

A I'li LTE Karachi, Pakisian
__I.HH:IJ.?J-” I-{AMREL) 267354

' HEAD OFFICE

1dth Flloor, Sky Tower A, Dolmen Gty

Biock-4. Scheme-5, Cliffon, Karachl Pakistan.
LAN:027-T1 T-{AMRELI] 267354

SHERSHAH ROLLING MILL (SRM)

-84, Shershah Roed, Karachi, Pakistan




Being the ploneer in Pakistani S5teel Market not just in terms of technology but also market practices, Amreli Steels intreduced the concept of Product
brands for the Tst time in Pakistan in 2018 The objective of this initiative was to distinguish our different products in a consumer-relevant way and o

PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

facilitate the end-user, wha s in most cases a Arst time purchaser, in making the right decision,

These product brands followed the “Branded House™ convention and their identities are closely linked to cur Corporate Brand “Amredi Steels”,

Following are the product brands of Arnreli Steels along with thelr unique features:

1.

Besidés these product brands, Ameli Steels s capable of delivering customized rebar safutions never before seen inour masket thanks to its

Arnrell Steels Maxima:
Based on ASTM 515
Ideal for any type of construction = Residential, commercial, mega, infrastructure projects in selected seismic 2ones®
Yield Strength 60,000 P51 Minimaem]
Ultimate Tensibe Stremgth 90,000 P51
Earthguake Resistant in select selsmic zomes®
consestent quakity along the length due to Uniform Gauge
Made from state of art meltihop and Sth generation red ring techaology rolling mill fos construction reinforcement

Armreli Steels Ktreme
Based on BS 4449
ldbeal for Hi-rise buildings
Yield Strengthc 72,500 P51 {Minkmaem)
Upto 15% consumplion saving as compared to ASTM 615 , G-60 product
Safely Weldabile
Earthquake Resistant in sebect selsmic zones®
consistent quality along the length due ta Uniform Gauge
Made from state of art meltshop and 5th generation red ring technology roling mill for construction reinforcement

Arnreli Steels Liltima
Based on ASTM 706
Earth Quuake Resistant in 31l seitmic zones
Yield Strength: 60,000 PSH {minimam)
Yield Strengthc 78,000 PSI{Maximum)
Uhimate Tensile Strength 80,000 PS) iminkmum)
Tensile toYield Strength Ratio = 135
Made from state of art meltshop and 5th generation red ring technology rolling mill for construction reinforcement
comsrstent quality along the length doeta Uniform Gauge
Ideal for Residential and Commercial projects especiathy in high seismic activity zones

State-af-the-art plant based on 5th Generation Red Ring Technolagy, the first of its kind in Pakistan,

Amreli Steels can affer®

L T R TV ]

. Rebars conforming to any international standand®®

. Rebars with Rib pattenns as per any international standard™®

. Cut-to-length as per requinement from & meter to 16M in length®™
. Tensile to Yield Strength ratio 1.25 ratic in ASTM

. Bmmdeformed  inPakdstan

“Thase customized senvices are avallable for large quantities omly: Lead tirmes will vary from cose to case basis.
** Subfect fo minimum gquaniiny order.
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GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE

Head Office/ Sales Office TAC
: . Factory at Dhabeji
1. Head office - Clifton Karach| 2. Factory at SITE Karachi
2. 5ales Office - Karsaz Karachi
. ional Offices
A mmm Warehouses
‘ Il""'p- 3
2. Sukkur 1. Karachi
ﬂ e 2. Lahore
o 3. lslamabad
5. Islamabad
~ Number Of Existing Retailers /Stockists
Sindh 128
Baluchistan Q2
~ Punjab 58
r Pakhtunkhwa 12
Total 200

Retallers/Stockist Metwork: The company has presence throughout the Country with Reglonal Offices
extensive Stockist / Retailers network at all strategic locations.

INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023 | | 1 s
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MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

The objectives of the Company are aimed at achieving sustainable productivity, profitability, and high standards of safety,
oocupathonal health, and environmental care. This entalls human resource development, value addition, the Implementation of
conservation measures, the up-gradation of existing facilities, and the installation of new facilities. The key objective of the
Company’s management is bo sustain market leadership in Pakistan's steel industry and increass value for all the stakehalders, All the
corparate goals are targeted towands this purpose, and the key performance indicators are defined to measure Amrell Steel’s
improved performance in alf sphenes of its operations.

Maintaining our competitive pogition in the core business, aligned with corporate goals, making every employes & self-assessor with
chehned yearly targets and transpanent measuring cnteria, we employ our brand namdé, unique organizational culture, professional
excellence, and Anancial strength, diversifying in local and multinational environments through acquisitions and new projects, thas
achieving synengy towards value creation for our stakeholders. Furthermore, the Company also refines and impaoves its human
resource policies regulady, The Company’s financial performance and market leadership are o refiection of the achievernent of its
corporate goals through all-around strategic alignment,

Some of the most significant strateqic objectives of the Company are outlined as under:

Be the brand of chaice for all stakeholders;

Empower people;

Continue toinvest in state-of-the-art steel manufacturing and associated technologies;

Achieve rebar sales in excess of 1.5 million tons annually;

Attain the highest standards of health and safety;

Ensure that business policies and targets are in conformity with the national goals;

Contribute in meeting the country’s demand for construction of steel products;

Ensure customer satisfaction by providing best value, guality products and unmatched services;

Target a reasonable return on the shareholders' existing and projected investments;

To function at optimal efficiency in our business operations as a way to increase productivity;

Tointroduce existing products into new markets and new products into new and existing markets;
To have all products meet standards of excellence guidetines;
To develop and implement a promoticnal plan to drive increased business;

To develop the leadership abilities and potential of our team.




Organizational Structure
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Abbas Akberali

Chalrman
Man-Executive Directar

M. Abbas Akbesali founded Amreli Steels b 1972 and since then has
Lo the Company to see it Becoma the Lirgest and most well-known
steel bar manufactorer in Pakistan. br. Akberali brings unparalbeled
expeience with a metallengical engineeddng background combimed
with an MBA frarm Columbia University, Now York, He hac played an
Influeritial rode in driving reforms aimed towands the growth of
Pakistan’s steed Industry. With a passion for increasing Pakistan's
fiteracy rate, Mr, Akberall i also a founding member of the Hunae
Foundation and serves on the Board of other notable non-peofil
organizations

\

Zafar Ahmed Taji

Shayan Akberali

Chief Executive Officer

Mir. Shayan Akberali joined Arredl Steels in 2002 and over the past
twer decades be has played an integral rale in growing the Company
by everseeing production enhancement, technical development,
planning and expanding the sales footprnt of the Ammeli brand
across Pakistan. Ad the CEQ of the largedt rebiar produding Carmpany
im Pakistan, Mr Akberalis focus B on operational excellence with
passion for devaloging the HE capital of the Compamy. He has built a
strong team of professionals across all vertecals that bring functional
expatrlise-as well as feadership 1o (teer the Company towards higher
growih

Independant Director

b Zafar Ahmed Taj started his prodessional career in 1977 after completing MEA from IBA Karachd hq:.'dlng- first pasitian, Since than,

e has spent more than 40 years with a number of multinatbonal companies Hke Exxwon Corporation, Unlon Carblde of USA and British

American Tobacon/Pakitan Tobacco. During these assignments, e has headed the Rinance, IT, and HR functions ab vasous ames: He

has been & member af Prime Minisber Pay and Penslon Commilssion, Advisor to Pakistan Alr Force, Advisor 1o Chairman PIA& and

Chairman PCB; HR Birectar of Interioop and Sapphire Group of Companies. He has also served as Dean of Riphah University and
Director General of NUST Business Schoal.

M Tail 15 & certificd Corporate Governance professional from MOG and a certified practitioner from Mentoring University of LISA
Curing the [ast 15 years, he has invested most of his time and efforts fewards beooming an effective "Leader of Change™wherein he has
put extensive efforts for planning, creating, and implementing a 1otally new organizational transfermation phibosophy ina numibes of

| INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023
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Independent Director

Wir. Badar Razml Bhngs a0 Expengncd spanning 'Owes 33 years
imcluding almast all facets of the banking indistry in Pakistan,
Middle East, South Asia and Africa, He started his career with BCCl in
1980 and woorked for 11 years b Pakistan and the Middie Eastern
Hogean, Mr. Kazmi then joined Mandard Chartensd Growp (SCB) In
1991 and held various positions Including Regional Head of Glakbal
Markets for MESA [Middle East and South Asia) and Afrlca. in 2003, he
wias appolnied as the CEC of SCB Fakistan, a position he held W) late
20040, In recognition for his serviees 1o banking in Pakistan, Mr, Kaami
was awarded the 'Sitara-g-lmtiaz" by the President of liamic Republic
of Paklstan,

el

I-hclﬁhbmﬁkbuﬂ

Executive Director &
Chief Operating Officer (Strategy]

Mr, Hadi Akberall brings a mix of techadcal, AN g Emant, and
teadership skills after graduating from Northwestern Wnbversity, USA
in Inlustrial Engineeding and obtaming an MBA in Finance and
Stratedy Ingm INGEAD, France, With over 16 years of experience in the
steal industry, Mr Hadi Akberali has been instrumental in the
Compamy's success by spearheading the establishment of the biilet
manufacturing facility, implementing SAP aciess the arganization,
playing & key role in the Company’s (PO, and strengthening the
marketing functbon. As Chief Cperating Officer (Strategy), M Hadi
Akberali serves on various management commitiecs and feads the
bursiness diversihcation, indhsiry affairs, and marketing functions.

Teizoon Kisat

Independent Director

Mir. Telzoon Hisat & a Fellow Member of Institute of Chartered
Aecountants of Pakistan since 1986, He s also Adsociate Member of
the Institute of Charered Secretaries and Institute of Taxation &
Management. Mr Kisal possesses strong business and leadership
recond and has a deep underitanding of business and financial
sector of the Country. He has over 30 years of experience in Finanee
and Awdit and has held many: senlor management positions: n
miltiphe Busipess areas, During his 15 years association with GREX
Leating Pakistan Limited [OLP), he represented his Company as
Director focally and In owerseas associated Companies, Mr. Kisat
spearheaded many initiatives that demonstrated his leadership,
prablem solving skills and ability 1o manage a strong team. He held
senior positiongs In-:lul;lmg CED at QOLP and Micro Fnance Bank
Presently, he s heading a pon-banking financal institution of a
reputed Group. Mr, Kisat is also a certified Darector.

Mariam Akberali
Non-Executive Directer

Mz Mariam Akberali brings great diversity to the Board with
significant experience in the food, restavrant, mental health, -and
educatian sectors of Pakistan, She has earned a degreein Poichology
from Franklin & Marshall College, UsA and is passionate about social
entrepreneurship in Pakistan

INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023 |



COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD & REPRESENTATION OF FEMALE DIRECTORS

Ir liae waith the requirements of the Listed Companies (Cade of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG), the Company encourages iepresentation
ofindependent and non-executive directors, as well a8 gender diversity on it Board.

The curreni composition of the Board is as follows:
Total number of Directoss:

a}  Male e
b} Famale el

Total o7
Composition:

3} Mumber of Independant Directors 103
bl Mumber Kon-Executive Directors HT
€] MNumber of Executive Director a2

The present Board of Directors of the Company comprises of well-balanced mix of independent, non-exdcutive and gxecutive directons. The Chairman of
the Board is non-executive directon, The positions of the Chalrman and the Chief Executive are held by separate individuals with clearly defined robes and
respomsibilities.

The Audit Committes and Human Resource ard Remuneratisn Cormmittes of the Board were established a8 reguired under COG. Both the Commithees have
independent directors a5 the Chairman of the Committoes, These committess ang mainly composed of independent and non-executive dinectors.

Female Directors

The Company is committed to promoting gender diversity in the workplace and provides equal opporunities for all, based on medt and suitability. The
Company’s Code of Conduct and core values (Respect, Resilience, Integrity, Dynamism and Excellence] clearly inculcate these principles and are followed
by everyone associated with the Company,

At Amiell, the Boasd and Management is comimitted towasds championing growing demand of gender diversity at Board leveland within workforce culture.
Currently, there is one Female Non-Executive Diréctor (Ms, Mariam Akberali) representing 14% of the composition of the Board.,

The Management encourages females to be part of Company and provides healthy envirgnment ta all of its employees,

s | INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023



HE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, six (6] mestings of the BAC were held, AN the meetings woeere held in Pakistan.
The attendance by zach Director in the BAC meetings |5 a5 follows:

SORIORIRY | i6Aug22 150022 2-Apr23.
Mr. Teizoon Kisat r J # i, _— i
Chairrman - v b v o /6
Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji p - , r

r o " o W 4 G
Mr. Badar Kazmi » - F F F r
Member o - - o > v 615
Ms. Kinza Shayan® : .
i o o e - - 2

Mz, Kinza Shayan resigned from the Directorship of the Company and her resignation was approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 24
February 2023,

OF R EREMCE

The purpose of the Committee |5 to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight respensibilities for the financial reporting: process. (mose
particularly, the integrity of Company's financial statements], the systern of internal controls, the audit processes, disclosure of systems and processes, and
the Company’s process for monitaring compliance with laws; regulations-and the Code of Conduct of the Company.

The Audit Committee ks, amomngst other things, responsible for recommending to the Board of Directors the appointrment of external awditors by Company's
shareholders and considers any questions of resignation or removal of external suditors, audit fees and provision by external awditons of any service
iperrmissible 1o be rendered 1o the Campany] in addition 1o audit of its financial statements.

In sddition to the generality of the Audit Committes functions that embrace all aspects impinging on the well-being of the Company, shareholders'
interests, ethical standards and regulatory requinements, the Committee shall perform the fallowing specific responsibilities -

1. Financial Statements

The Committea shall review quarterly, half yearly and annual financial staternents with: particular reference to compliance with applicable accounting
policies, standards and practices. It shall fecus on major judgmental areas, significant adjustments resulting from: audit; going comcenn assumption, any
change in accounting polickes and practices, significant related party transactions and compliance with all statutory and regulatory requirements. It shall
also review preliminary announcements of financlal results prige o their publication.

2. Internal Controls

The Committes shall review the Company’s statement on internal contrel system befone its submission to the Board and satisfy insell a5 1o the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls and measurnes to safeguard the Company's assets. Where necessary, it shall submit sppropriate recommendations to the
Board. It shall alsa consider major findings of internal investigations of cases of fraud, embezzlement and abuse of power,

3. Internal Audit

The Commitiee will ensure that the function is adeguately resourced, functionally independent with no unreasonable limitathens on its proper functioning
and meets the quality assurance requirements, determined elther through internal or external assessment. it shall review the audit reports, share them with
the External Auditors and report mattess of significance to the Board Where it is decided to cut-souwnce the internal audit function, the Committes will
recommend to the Board a professional services firm that has suitably quatifbed and experienced persons and is reasonably conversany with Company's
palicies and procedures.

4. External Audit

The Committee shall ensure requisite functional autonomy to the external auditors, review assessment of thelr quality assuzance and facelitate their
coordination with internal auditors of the Company. It shall review the Management Letter and discuss with the external auditors any major Andings and
observations therein and where appropeiate submit its recommendations o the Board.

5. Risk Management

The Commitiee shall cause to have installed a viable risk management system im the Company and reviesw assessment of risk and meadunes 1o avoid, share,
mitigate and accept residual rigks within the overall risk appetite determined by the Board,

INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023 .- »



6. Compliance

The Commities shall have a systerm installed to detérmine and maoniter on a peredic basis. compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements and best
practices of corporate governance. The CEQ shall be personally responsible to baing to the immediate notice of the Committee indings of any examination
by regulatory agencies, major litigations or claims or significant tax ssues for Committes’s review, Further, except where directed otherwise by the Board,
the Committes shall guide, review and monitos the formulation of significant policies as defined in the Code of Corporate Governance. It shall also exammine
all significant lssues as defined in the Code of Corparate Govermnance dealing with controls and compliance before their submission to the Board.

7. Reporting and Other Responsibilities
The Chairpersen shall keep the Board fully informed on all material ssues coming within the Committee remit, The Committes shall act upen such
directions a5 given by the Board and have such studies or investigations carried cat a5 desired by the Eoasd or that the Committee itsell deems to be useful,

& B i Tl F - ik BT i B
HLUEWM AN RESTLURCE & HEMI ERATICN IHE&E] €

During the year, one (01) meeting of the HRER Committee was held, The meeting was held in Pakistan. The attendance by each Buector in the HR&R

Committes meeting i as follow:
. o MectingHeldon  Meeting
Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji 7 1
Chairman o
Mr. Teizoon Kisat r LFy
Member =
Mr. Shayan Akberall r i1

Member

The HRER Committee is responsitle for performing the duties 5ot out below a5 well as any other duties that are atherwise required by applicable corparate
Laws or stock exchange meles and requirements as are delegated to the Committee by the Board -

Recommending human resousces management podicies to the Board;

s  Fecommending to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework for determining remuneration of directors (both executive and
non-executive directors) and merbers of senior management;

Annually undertaking a formal process of evaluation of performance of the Board a5 2 whole and its Commattess either directly by the Board or the
Committee(s) or by engaging external independent consultant;

Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation fincluding retiremant beénefits) and succession planning of the
CEO:

Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation (including retirement benefits) of CO0, CFQ, Company Secretary
and Head of internal Audit;

+ Considering and approving on recammendation of the CEQ on such matters for key management pasitions who report directly to CEO or CO0,

B Resviewing and making recommendations (o the Board for the appointment of Senior Executives and for determindng tesms of employment af their
SErVICES;

Reviewing succession planning and mattess of componsation as well 35 such other matters the Committes may consider suitabile;

Ary additional matter defegated to the Committee by the Board of the Company from time 1o time,
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Scrap

SAP Steering

IT Steering

1. Analyae demand and supply

2 Arahyne movement in global and local
SER3P prices

& Anahyme change i e hange e
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and benefits policies genernally
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SUSTAINABILITY AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES

Sustainability Is an integral part of our business strategy and a key drlver in all of eur business activities. Our innovative technologles, operational experience
and expertise enable us (o minimize our envirenmental impact and successfully manage the social challenges and inherent risk that are present in our
industry.

Ourguiding principles for sustainability ane as follows:

Maintain highest degree of corparate governancd practices;

Corduct business activities with thi highest principles of hanesty, integrity, truthfulness and honos;
Promote ethical business practices;

Respect the emvironrment and communities in which we operate;

Assure equal employment eppectunities;

Value diversity in the workplace;

Pravide healthy and safe working emironments;

Respect human rights and trade ethically;

Act In utmost good faith and exercise due care, diligence and integrity in performing the office duties;
Comply with all applicable Liws and regulations;

Ensuare that all business transactions ane recordind in true, fair and timely fashion in accordance with the accounting and financial reporfing standasds,
a5 applicable to the Company;

Dreliver suparior value forour shareholders = our intent is to cutperform our competitors by defivering superior growth, margins and returns to our
sharehodders:

Lead the industry in inmovatlon, technology developrment and conscientious stewardship of global resources — our intent is to develap technological
solutions that give our CUSIOMETs Economic access to high quality construction material with maximum use of scarce resources and maximize the
walug of their existing assets;

Enhance the econgmic and social well-being of our emplayees, their families and the communities in which we operate - our intent is to be a prefermed
employer and make a positive impact in the communities wihere we live and work:

Be transparent in reporting and validating our progress = our intent is 1o provide our stakeholders with thorough and timely information on our
PG esE,
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT (HSE) POLICY

The Company is committed to developing. promoting and achleving the highest standard of HSE operations and it:

+ Responds positively toervironmental developments by reviewing such issues with the relevant authorities, local communities and others;

B Warks effectively o encourage environmental awareness and identify and share best practices and new technbgues to reduce environmental impact;
Minimizes emissions and waste by evaluating operations and ensuring they are as efficient a3 possible;

+ Reduces and whene practical, eliminates hazardous and nuisance reliease 10 air, water and land;
Inculcates sense of responsibility towands the enwironment among our employees;
Perlodically reviews the suitability, adequacy and effectiveness.of the HSE management system;

+  Educates, trains, encourages and motivates employees bo carry out activities in a responsible manner inaccordance with the requirements of ganerally
accepted OHS & Environmental Management System;

Appilles technologies that are not hasmiful 1o our employees’ health and are enviranment friemdly;
Sets objectives and targets, key performance indicators and programs for Occupational Health and Salety;
Strivars to prevent any accident and 1o schieve continual improvement of the H5E Management Systern and related performance;

Consults with emplayees on matters affecting their health and safety,

BUSINESS CONTINUITY AND DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN

Amireli Steels has embraced a proactive stance towards business continuity and disaster recovery planning, ensuring alignment with its business strategy,
industry best practices, and established standards and frameworks, This commitment |s a testament to the organization's dedication to preserving the
uninterrupted flow of IT driven business operations and safequarding valuable information assets.

The infrastructure has been meticubously designed to ensure resdience in the event of potential disasters or interruptions, with high availabifity production
facilities situated at state of art mabn data center complemented by synchromized DR servers located few kilormeters away and connecred through dark fiber
replications, This proactive planning serves mot only to safeguard the organization but abse to instill confidence in customers, partners, and stakeholders,
reaffinming the company’s resilience in the fage of any challenge.

The business continuity and disaster recowery plan includes the following key compangnts:

Palicy Statement Development: Formudate a clear and concise poficy staterment that outlines the coganization’s commitment to business continuity
planning.

+ Business impact Analysis (B1A]: Conduct a comprehensive analysts to assess the potential impact of dissuptions on the business, identifying critical
functions and dependencies.

Risk Mitigation and Preventive Controds: identify and implement preventive measures to mitigate risks and prevent disruptions,
Busingss Recovery Strategics: Develop strategies for swiftly recovering crtical basimess functions and processes following a disaster,

Communication and Stakehoider Engagement: Establish communication protocols for informing stakeholders, inchading ermplovees, customers,
partrers, and requlatory authorities, during a crisis.
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Highlights:
LAUNCH OF AMRELI RAZAKAAR  AMRELI FOUNDATION REGISTRATION
TOTAL ORGANIC IMPRESSIONS LINKEDIN
142,000

Amrell Foundation

W are delighted to announce the succesihul registration of Amseli Foundation as a Section 42 licensed non-profit organkzation, Going forward, Ameeli
Foundathon will overses Arnreli Steel’s Corporate Socal Responsibiliny (C5R) programs. We have streamlined owr activities into four strategy areas, reflecting
out dedication ta enhancing Pakistan's secio-economic status:

= Equitable Healthcare = Youth Empowermant = Inclusive Society = Resilient Nature

Amreli Razakaar Program:

At Arnrell Steely, we beliswe in the power of collective impact and the strength of car employecs’ commitment to making o positive difference in our
communities, In 2022, we are thrilled to launch Amreli's Ragship employee volunteer program: Amreli Razakaar. This program is a reflectbon of our core
values, encouraging and empowefing our emphoyees to become agents of change. Through Ameeli Razakaar, we aim to create reaningful opportunities
far aur efmployees 1o contrbute their time, skills, and compassion towards various social causes. Whether it's supporting local charities, engaging in
environmental initiatives, or assisting in community progects, we are eadited to witness the positive impact our employees will create, Together we can
foster a culture of giving back and create a lasting legacy of compassion and service,

« 3 Evenits anganized « 108 Razakaars « 1,200 Amreli Razakaar hours clocked « B0% owerall satisfaction rate
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Flood Relief Campaign

As the largest steel rebar manufacturer in Fakistan, we understand the importance of standing together in times of crisis, In the face of the devastalting
fleseacds last wear, Aumreli Steels set up a Flood Relief Fund, combining employses’ and the donations, which were used 1o mobilize resources and tesms ta
reach out to the affected regions with immediate relief and support. 28 employess devoted their time to assembile and distribute critical ration suppfies and
medical relbef to 1,000 families in Mirpurkhas, standing firmly by cwr commitment to sockal responsibility and compassionate action.

1 Equitable Healthcare:

Qur mission is to bedge the healthcare gap and ensure that every individual, regardiess of their socie-economic background, has access to-quality medical
services and weatment. Through strategic partnerships and cormmunity-driven initiatives, Amrefi Foundation strives to busld a healthier and more inclushoe
society, whete no ane i loft behind.

1. Shaukat Khanum

Amreld Steels Foundation donated steed rabars for the constroction of Shawkat Ehanum Memorial Cancer Hospital and Research Centre (SKMOCHERD) at
DA City, Superhighawvay, Karachi [t will be the largest tertiary care centre in Pakistan, with state-of-the art cancer diagnasis and treatment facilites
available under one roof ke PET-MR systerm which is a -first for Pakistan and is the latest form of Hybnd Imaging Technology. The impact of Amreli
Steels' contribution to SEMCHERC Karachi éxtends to entire Sindh and Southern Baluchistan as SEMOH, Karachi will bring the best possible cancer cane
choser 1o the patbents at these locations.

2. Indui Hotpital and Health Netwaork

Inedus Hospital and Health Metwork's new project is poised to be one of the largest tertiary care hiospitals in Pakistan. simoeli Foundation strongly
supports BHHN'S vision to provide free quality healthcare 1o all Pakistanis, and to that end, we have sponsored the Adults Accidents and Emergency
Department which is set tocater more than 700,000 patients per anmum.

II'fouth Empowerment:

According to UNESCO, Pakistan has the warld™s second-highest number of out-of-schoal children [05C) with an estimated 22.8 million children aged 5-16
not attending school. Powerty, cultural norms, and the lack of infrastructure contribute o low enrollment rates and high dropout rates. Amneli Foundation
believes imvesting in our youth is the key to impeoving Pakistan's economic conditions and ultimately its success.

1. The Citizens’' Foundation {TCF}, Akberali Campus

Amrell Foundation and The Citizens' Foundation (TCF) have partnered to run a primary schood, Akberall Carnpus, in rural Achaar Salaar Goth, Dhabeji.
Prior to establishing Akberali Campars, there was no school in the vicinity; to date, mose than 2,000 students have recelved quality education at the
Akberali Campus. Akberali Campus alio boasted a gender equal ratioof students, a feat that is rane in rural areas of Sindh, Amsel Foundation has also
installed solar panels at the TCF Akberali campus thereby reducing the schood's dependency on fossil fuels.

2.  Mamal Institute

Amreli Foundation firmly befieves in supporting students in receiving higher education regardbess of their financial backgrounds, To this end, Amreli
Foarndation is proud to sponsor 10 talented students at Mamal University in completing their Computer Science degrees. To complement their studies,
Amieli Foundation arranged a virtual 4-week internship for these students with Amreli Steels’ IT department to galn valueable work experience and
apply their knowledge in real-warld applications.

3. Hunar Foundation

Mr. Abbas Akberall is one of the founding members and trustees of The Hunar Foundation. THF has grown exponentially since 2008, thanks 1o its focus
on highly technical skills and state-of-the-art learming. This year we sponsored 33 students 1o pursue thelr wocational traning.

Il nclusive Communities

Amrell Foundation is committed to empowering margenalized communities and fostering social inchuesbon across the nation. Through community
engagement, we wark trelesshy towplifi the underprivileged and marginalized, breaking down barriers that hinder progress. Together, let's create an
inclusive Pakistan where ewenpone's voice i heard, and every dréarn can flourish.

1. Dhabeji Women's Industrial Home

Amdeli Foundation mns the Dhabeji Women's Industral Home in Dhabeji Town, a vocational centre advocating female empowenment throwgh
upskilling, Starting with a handhul of wormen in its first year, the facility now consistently traing approximately 200 women each year in sewing and
stitching skills. Creer time, the Industrial Home has become a hub for women, serving as a safe space where they can gather, bearn, and socialise,

2. Khana Ghar

Khana Ghars mission is to offer affordable food to those in need, Parveen Saeed, known a5 the “3 Rupee Lady™ in international media because she
charges only PKR 3 per person for meals, has been operating Khana Ghar for over 15 yeass, The establishment provides two daily meals to more than
4,000 people in Karachi. Amreli Foundation has been funding Parseen Saced's admirabbe endeavour to ensure that over 500,000 meals are sarved each

WAL
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Our story started In 1972, when the Akberall family fled *East Pakistan’ during the 1971 war, leaving behind 20 steel manufacturing facilities to settle in
Karachi and start all over again. This is'when Amreli Steels was established as a basic hand aperated steed mill to make vasious steel products for fabrication
and construction. The founders decided o name the cornpany after thedr birthplace, a small town in the province of Gujrat in Indla called Armrelll

In the last 5 decades, Armreli Steals has relentlassly pursued innovation and technology (o pioneer standards and products that continuously raise the
standard for the entire industry. Through the ever changing landscape of Paklstan’s recessions, growth, sinife and solidarity, Ameeli has plosghed on to
become one of Pakistan's largest steel manufacturers. Our offices and warehouses across the country enable us 1o serve our customens no matter whene
their deeams and ambitions may lie,

Today, we strive harder every day to give SOLID foundations to the homes of millions of people; being a brand of chaice for the most complicated structures
and architectural designs; being chosen to strengthen projects that will serve our country and our future generaticns. Our story is one of belief, resilience:
and unyselding athical standards.

Thie success of Ameels Steels Limited, as a market leader in Pakistar's steel industey and recognized for s superior quality preducts, can be attributed to
many factors. An appetite for taking caloulated risk and bold decisions has enabled the company to continudaesly grow and maintain quality leadership in
the market, The resalye toirvest in the best talent ard HR practices has been plvotal in transforming the company from a family dominated crganization in
the 19905 to one where meritocracy, governance and transparency comes first. With a legacy of 50 years, the management kndws how to operate a capital
intensiee business in a highty volatile smironment = surviving the recessions and making the most of the uptums,

Irvesting In technology has always been a comerstone of Amrelis operating philosophy, Ower the past 50 vears we have brought in the latest
manufacturing technology to continuously improve product guality and competitiveness. A5 a result, Ameeli has always been a ploneer in the building
materials landscape, the first rebar to comply with American and British standards, fisst earthquake resistant rebar, first witra-highi strength rebar. Today,
Amreli has exparsded to three manufacturing plants that boast the [argest capacity of billet and rebar In Pakistan - with an installed inameplate) capacity of
605,000 metic tons of rebars & 600,000 metric tons of billets \With a surge In capacity, sales, manpower and |ocations, it became Imperative (o be a mone
data driven company. In 2015, Amrell was the first compary in the sectos to implement SAP across the organization fior vissbility and data driven declsion
making.

Strong demand for our Brand ingpired us 1o build Pakistan's lasgest and most vechnologically advanced steel cebar facility, which we commissioned in 2018,
To fund this project, we ralsed equity through the FSX to ensure financial sustainability in a country whine downturns are always around the corner, This
project was spearheaded by our current CEQ, Mr. Shayan Akberali, and the sales geowth thercon was phenomaenal, making Amreli Steels avallable across
the country in rural and urban areas.

A lot of people wonder where Amrell Steels s headed over the next 50 years. We are committed to the bullding materials and metals space, which s
evolving and s a huge industry with a myrlad of products and applications. We have already taken a first step in setting up an aluminum gok
manufacturimg facility. We believe this is a first step bn the non-fesrous segrment that has-a lot of polential to grow in the future. Competitiveness is abways a
top agenda for our planning and En this regard, energy s not only a mapor input cost in our manufaciuring process but a place that Pakistan haghly lacks
cormpetitiveness, We are always searching for solutions that can provide cheaper and greener energy. Coupling such initiatives with the experience we've
gainied awér the past 50 years, we are looking to transform fram & national comparny 1o 4 global company dver the next half century,
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HUMAN RESOURCE

Qur Vislon “*Committed to strengthen the Economy and Soclety® affioms cur gratitude towards our people’s invaluable contribartions which have earned us
the prestige as the industry leader across the country. Driven by our Mission - "Be the Brand of Choice for all stakeholders® and “Empower Pegple’, Amreli
Steels takes peide in attracting, developing and retaining talented individusls who bring out the best by capstalizing on our best in-class work environmaent
and state-of-the-art technalogies,

Cur Values At Work - OUR-RIDE

At Amreli Steels, our organizational values - Respect, Resilience, Integeity, Dynamism and Excellence are a1 the cone of our daily business and opacration.
Cur fifie it Avrnirgdi Steels revalves sround our values making every one of us ane family, Translating these valises into exscutable initiatives deives & true sense
af belongingness and enablement in our peoplhe

Enabling And Rewarding Culbure

We are proud of our Company's enabling culture that provides flexible work schedules, reciprocates good performance, promotes team cohesiveness and
walcomes new ideas and initiatives.

Flexille & Hybred Warking Options;

W provide our employees with flexible and hybrid work schedules 1o opt as per their own preferences, These options have instilled and boosted employes
empowarment as well as their preductivity levels.

Performance Based Culture: Our “Objective based Performance Management Systerm”is taking shape and moving towards best industry practices. it aims
at-delivering the optimum business results that creates real valwe for all stakeholders.

Rewand & Recognition: The good performing employees ane recognized through a system of rewards that ks based on both instantaneows and lang-term
rewwards and benefts, such as; Rising Star Program, Caseer Merit Points ete.

Room for New Ideas’ Implementation: Our team Is provided with all necessary means to achieve the business objectives and limithess cppartunities to
pursue new challénges,

Brush-Up & Shine

Armreli Steels Limited is committed to develop a learning culture which helps employees unleash their full potential and supports their professional as well
as personal development, While an intensified foous has remained with on-job and in-howse learning and training cppertunities, Management is also
planning to utilize external resources with customized training programs far the development of our employees. All in all 4,453 hours of training have been
imvestied dusing this year.

Capitalizing On The Technological Landscape

Arrireli Steels is a tech-savvy organization % it believes in adapling the best in-class technological platfarms not only to make eweryday business casier but
Ao to enure dats-driven decitions a5 well a4 to promote trandparency and sccuracy in daily operations. Alongside having state-of-the-art production
facifity, Amreli Steels has been committed to conistently and gradually transform manual systems into digitalization and automation within all the suppert
functions. In this pursuit, HR has been capitalizing on SAR SAP Success Factors’ Recruitment Module, PMGM Module, SharePaint ete., while moving on to
meoie lanest technologles furthar.

Staying Ahead Of The Curve

In oader to stay ahead of the cunse, benchmark studies and surdeys have now become imperative far us. Staying conversant with market trends, through
Trequent formal and informal rmamket surveys acnoss the industry ensures cur readiness to align suwr future orkentation to foreses and introduce new policles,
schemes and systems for the employees.
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FLARES OF TRANSPARENCY

SHAREHOLDER'S
INFORMATION







MOTH NVETHE 205 AMBMIIAI GENMERAI MEETINM
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Motice is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Megting (AGM] of the shareholders of Amneli Steels Limited (the Company) will be held on Tuesday, 24

October 2023 at 02:00 pom: at Auditorium Hall of the institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) located at Block - 8, Chartered Accountants

Avenue, Clifton, Karachi to transact the following businesses. The shareholders can also attend the AGM via video link facility,

Ordinary Business:

1. Torecelwe, conséder and adopt the annual audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2023, together with the Directors'
and Auditors reports therson.

As required under section 223(7) of the Compandes Act, 2017 and pursuant to the 5.8.0. 381172023 dated 21 March 2023 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP), the annuwal report of the Company for the Ainancial year ended 30 June 2023 has been uploaded on the
Cormpany's website which can be downloaded accessing the following ink and OR Code:

httpic ameelisteslicomiinvestor-relations investar-information

2 To appoint auditors of the Company for the financial year ending 30 June 2024 and to fix thels remuneratson The Board of Directors, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Company, has proposed appeintment of 875, BDD Ebrabkim & Co. Chartered Accountants as the
axternal auditors in place of retiring auditors Mis. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants for the year ending 30 June 2024,

Any Other Business:
3. Totransact any other business a5 may b placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair,

By Order of the Board
i
[
Date; 02 October 2023 ADMNAN ABDUL GHAFFAR
Place: Karachi Company Secretany

Notes:
1. Participationin the AGM Proceeding via Video Link Facility:

The Company also facilitates pamicipation of its shareholders through a video knk faciity in pursvance 1o Cinculars notified by the SECP The
members/proxies  interested to  participate  in. the AGM through this facility are vequested o share below information at
imvestor-relationsiamrelisteets.com with subject “Registration for 35th AGM of Amreli Steels Limited”-

Shaneholder Mame oo CDE Numiber CHIC Number Cedl Mumber Registered Email Address

Video-link and login credentials will be shared with the members/procies whose email containing all the above particulars ane réceived ab the given
email address by the close of business on o before 20 October 2023:

2. Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 17 October 2023 to 24 October 2033 (both days inclusive]. Transfers received in
arder by our Share Reqgistrar, Mrs. THE Associates {Pvt) Limited, Flot No. 33-C, Jamid Cornmerclal, Street-2, DuH.AL Phase-ViI, Karachi-75500, Pakistan by
thie close of business en 16 October 2023 will be considered in time for attending the meeting

3. Appointment of Proxies:

i, A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annwal General Meeting is entitled to appaint another member as histher proxy to atténd, speak
and vate on hisfher behalf,

il.  Theinstrument appointing prowy and the power of attooney or other authosity, under which itis signed, or a notarized certified copy of the power or
autharity masst be deposited at the registered office of the Company at least 48 howrs befose the time of the meeting, Form of Praxy is énclosed,

L The proxy form shall bewitnessed by teno persons whose names, addresses and CHIC nuemibers shall be mentioned an the form.

v Incase of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder shall fumnésh the attested coples of CHIC or the passport of the member and the proxy,
alomg with the proxy form.

v, Corporate entities shall subrmit the Board of Directors resobution/Powser of Attorney, with specimen signatune, alang with the peocy form.
Attending the Annual General Meeting:

I, In case of individual, whether phytical sharehobder o the account helder or sub-account hobder at Central Depository Company [ICDC), shall
authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of attending the meeting,

il Theproxy shall also preduce hisfher anginal CHIC or ariginal passpart at the fime of meeting,
. Members registered on CDC are also requested ta bring thedr account defalls with the COC,

v, Incase of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/Power of Attamaey, with specimen signature of the nominee, shall be produced af the
tire of the mesting (uniess it has been provided earkies].
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5. Change in Members Addresses:

Mambsers ane requested to notify sny-change in their addresses immediately to the Share Registrar MYs, THE Associates (Pyi) Limited,
6. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:

The Annual Report of the Company for the vear ended 30 June 2033 has been placed on the Company’s website wewamrelisteels.com.
7. Electronic Circulation of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023:

Thie Annual Repaort 2023 and notice of AGM are being circulated electronically wia email to all thase shareholders whose email addrasses are avallable
with the COC or the Share Registrar of the Company. In case of rematning shareholders, whose emall addresses are not available, a printed copy of
notice of AGM containing QR enabled code and weblink to access and download Annual Report 2023, has been dispatchied on thekr registered
addresses, as allowed by the SECP vide its S.R.0. 38%(11/2023 dated 21 March 2023 and as approved by the shareholdess in the Extracrdinary Genesal
Maeating of the Company held on 24 Jene 3023,

Hawrever, il a shareholder, requests for a hard copy of the annual audited finarcial statements, the same shall be provided free of cost within seven
(071 days of receipt of such request as per Section 235 of the Companies Act, 2017, For the eonvenience of shareholders a “Standand Reguest Form for
provision of annual sudited sccounts” has alio been made available at the Company’s website www.amrelistecls.com,

8. Consent for Video Conference Facility:

In compliance with Section 13401] (b] of the Companies Act, 2017, members of the Company may attend and participate in the AGM throwgh video
conference facility, if members) residing in a city other than Karachi, coltectively holding 109 or more shareholding, demand inwriting, to participate
in the AGM through video conference at least ten (10] days prior to the date of the AGM,

Tor avail such facility, please submit the following foem with the reguisite information at the Registered Office of the Compary -

e of being a member
af Amreli Steels limited, holder of _ ardinary shapesis)
as per Registered Follo/COC Account No. hereby opt for video
conference facility at to attend the AGM.
Date:
Name and Signature (s)

The Company will Intimate members regasding venue of video conference facility at least five 105) days before the date of the AGM along with
complets information necessany to énable them to sccess such facility,

SPECIAL NOTICES TO THE SHAREHOLDERS:
A.  Unclaimed Dividends (Important and Mandatory):

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not ckaim thelr dividend are sdvised 1o contact dur Shares Registras 1o collect / enguine about their unclimed
dividends, if any. Flease note that any dividend unclaimed for morne than three years shall be deposited with the Federal Government under section
2442 of the Companies Act, 2017,

The shareholdess are hereby glven a notice to clalm any of their dividend within 90 days hereof Le. latest by 31 December 2023, thereafier the
Comgpany shall proceed with depasiting the unclaimed dividend amount with the Federal Government as per the requirements af section 244 of the
Companses Act, 2017

Clabm form is annexed with the Annweal Report 2023 and also available on the Company's website wwwamelisteels.com.
B. S5th Reminder to the shareholders for submission of bank account details/IBAN (E-Dividend):

Asper-Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2007, any dividend payable in cash shall only be remitted through electronic mode directly into the bank
aocount designated by the entitied sharehobders. Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are once again requested to update thedr bank
accounts detadls (e, title of account, complete bank account numbser (e, 24 digit IBAN), complete mailing sddress of the bank, name of tha bank, folio
numiser, mobile nomber and email address) for payment of any future cash dividend through electronic mode.

Iy case of physical shares, please provide bank sccount details to.our Shane Registrarn M THE Associates [Pvt.) Limited, Please ensurne an early update
of your particulars to avosd any Incomvenience in future.

C. 2nd Reminder for conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form:;

In cormpliande with section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SECP's letter Mo CSOVED/Misc /201 6-639-640 dated 26 March 2021, listed companies
are required to replace exdsting physical shares issued by them into Book-Entry Form. In view of the above requirement, sharehobders of the Company
having physical folios share certificates are regquested to convert their shanes from physical form into Book-Entry Form as soon as possible,

Comversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form would facllitate the shareholders in marmy ways Le. safe custody of shares, readily available market
for instant sabe and purchase of shares, eliminate risk of loss & damage, easy & safe transfer with lesser formalities as compared to physical shares. The
shareholders of the Company may contact Share Registrar of the Company for assistance in conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form.

Far any query/problemsinformation, members may contact our Share Registrar at the following address:

THEK Associates (Pvi) Ltd

Plat Mo, 32-C, Jami Commencial, Strest-2,
DiH AL Phase-I, Karschi-75500, Pakistan
LIAK Mo (0210 171 71-000-322

Email sfeathk com.pk
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As at 30 June 2023

Categories of Shareholders Number of Shareholders ‘Shares Held
Directors and their Spousels) and Minor Children
Abbas Akberal 2 92540482
Sharyan Akberall 2 37441223
Haci Abbas Akbarali 1 37732
Mariam Akberali 1 1,000
Teizoon Kisat 1 500
Badar Kazml 1 1,000
Zaffar Ahmed Taj i 12,000
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties
Matwash Akbesal) 1 55,733,030

Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies, Insurance
Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds

Banks, DF & NEFI [} 3.533,960
Incaurance Companks 3 2647093
Modaraba 1 21,500
butual Fends 13 1497013
General Public

Local G764 44323552
Foreign 5 Goa4,123
Others 103 15,443,400
Foreign Companies 1 13000
Total 10,306 2970011427
Abbas Akdberali 9,284,723
Matnash Akberal 55732530
Hadi Abbas Akberali rrzan2
Shayan Akberali Faaan
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As at 30 June 2023

Number of _ ‘Shares Held Percentage
1 100 2157 0073

5135 01 500 2508810 D.B447
1608 501 1000 1573108 05206
1903 1001 5000 046760 16992
a0 5001 10000 2311870 11151
159 10001 15000 2052489 0G0
126 15001 20000 23153 0r7E3
81 0001 25000 1911031 D34
a7 5001 20000 120047 DA050
1l 30001 35000 EH00 D354
26 35001 0000 1006797 03300
16 40001 45000 GEFDG oEa
12 45001 SO000 1580600 05352
14 50001 55000 4TS5 02514
a 550101 B0000 266500 nisn

3 E0001 E5000 150500 00641

6 5001 70000 410700 01383
1w 70001 75000 41825 02458
7 TEOON B0000 551500 01858

6 20001 BS000 503236 01694

5 ES001 SO000 440373 01463

3 0001 S5000 284000 D5
16 GE001 100000 1589400 05351
5 100001 105000 513500 07

L 105001 10000 435100 0i465

z 115001 120000 3500 DE0G

& 130001 125000 F30591 0450

3 125001 130000 LR 01291

3 130001 135000 397500 01338

4 145001 150000 596500 02008

2 150001 155000 309500 D02

2 160001 165000 327100 oo

2 175001 180000 353000 01189

2 180001 TE5000 000 01232

3 TESD0 150000 SF0000 099

5 195001 200000 1000000 03367

2 200001 205000 407000 o13m

4 205001 210000 BIR500 023

1 215001 230000 215500 00726

1 230001 22000 224000 DTS4

1 223001 230000 227500 DO76E

1 230001 235000 233500 DUITES

2 290001 245000 AFB000 01643

5 245001 230000 1247715 420
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PATTERM NESHAREHN
PATTERN O = A H 4

L. 1 T OMANETILIL .'ii':.:
As at 30 June 2023

3
1
2
L]
1 320001
1 325001
2 335001
1 345001
1 350001
1 3E5001
1 ZR0001
2 S00001
1 415001
1 420001
1 500001
2 555001
1 595001
1 G45001
1 685001
1 775001
1 785001
1 B45001
1 875001
1 945001
1 950001
1 GRE001
i 1045001
1 T0E5001
1 1195001
1 F250001
i 1445001
1 3100017
1 2075001
1 20001
1 2105001
1 2405001
1 37440001
1 ATTI0001
1 55730001
1 G 200001

10,306
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INVESTORS GRIEVANCES POLICY

The Company believes in prompt provision of resolution to all grievances of our valued shareholders in accordance with the statutory guidelines and
wall-designed policy. The development of sustained stakeholder relatlonships is paramount to the perfosmance of the Company. Investors’ grievances are
managed centrally by the Corporate Compliance Department of the Company through an effective grievance managemant mechanism for handling of
investors queries and complaints, through the following key measures -

o Inereasing the imedtorsawareness relating to modes for filing of quesses;
Hwﬂw'ﬂflﬂwﬂmﬁmha timely manner;
«  Handling of grievances honestly and in good faith withoat prejudice;

Escalating grievances to the appropriate levels with full facts of the case requiring attention of the senior management or the Board, for judicious
settlement of the gricvance, if required;

= Carrying out investigations to inguire about the cause of the grievance;
+  Taking appropriate remedial action immediately o faciltate the respected investars of the Company;

Iroestors can communicate their grievanoes through any of the following channets -

By calling at UAN: (#92-21] 111 - AMRELI (267354}

By writing to: The Company Secretary
Hrmreli Steels Limited
Plot Mo, A-18, SLTE. Karachi, Pakistan

By sending an email: adnanghafar@amelistecls com
Investor-relations@amrelistesls.com

By accessing website: httpefamrelistes| s comiinvestor-relations#Complaints

DISCLAIMER: “In case Investors' complaints are not properly redoessed by the Company, investors may lodge their complaints with Securities and
Exchange: Commission of Pakistan ("the SECP). However, SECP will entertain only those complaints which were at first directly reguested to be
redressed by the Company and the Company has failed to redress the same. Further, the complaints that are not relevant to SECP's requlatory
domainfcompitence shall not be entertained by the SECE

By accessing SECP; hiipsefsdms secp.govpks

INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023 | |1 v



Imstitutional
Investors /
Shareholders

Customers &
Suppliers

Banks and Other
Lenders

Media

Regulators

Analysts

Employees

Local
Community and
General Public

-

oy

ASL acknowledges and honoss the trust our investors have put

in ws by striving Lo provide a steady retumn an thelr imestment.
We rigosously enforce a-transparent selationship with all our
“takeholders.

ASL has irvested significantly over the wears in customer
refationship management. Our dontinuous and sustainable
growth is also attributable 1o engaging reputed suppliers as
business partners for supply of industrial imputs, equipment
and machinery.

Banks and other financial institutions are engaged by the
Company on an onmgoing basis in relation 1o negotiation of
rates, lending purposes, short term financing, deposits and
investments. Banks are also consulted on isswes linked with
letters of credit and payments to suppdiers, along with other
disburserments of an opevational nature,

Different communication mediums are used on need basis o
apprise the general public about new developments, activities
and philanthrophc initiatives of ASL

ASL prickes itself in being a sespensible comporate citizen and
abides by the Laws and regulations of Pakistan, ASL consciously
ensures that sl the legal requirements of other countries are
also fulfilled while conducting business outside Pakistan.

ASL has paid a total of Rs. 10,6 Billion billion tax [comprising in
terms of income taxes, federal encise duties, sales taxes and
custom duthes) 1o Government Exchequer during the financial
wear under review- and continues to be one of the highest
taxpayers of Pakistan,

Irv orcer o remain transparent and attract potential investors,
ASL regularly engages with analysts on detals of projects
already disclosed to the megulators, with due regard o
regulatory restrictions imposed on inside information and or
trading, to avoid any negative impact on the Companys
reputation or share price.

ASEs commitrent to its most valued resource, a dedscated and
cornpetent workforoe, is at the core of its human resource
strategy. ASL provides a nurturing and employee friendly
enironment while inventing congiclerably in local and foreign
employes trainings. Besides monetary compensations, ASL has
absaiwvested in health and fitness activities for its employees.

In addition 1o local commamties near plant sites, ASL engages
with general pubdic at large through its CSR activities. This
engagement helps to identify needed interventions in the held
ol education, heslth and general economic wplift of the sociely.

1 | INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023

The prowiders of capital alboss ASL the means to
achbeve its vislon.

Qur sucoess and performance depends upon the
loyalty of our customers, their preference and our
supply chain management

Dealings with banks and lenders is key 10 ASLS
perfarmance in teems of the following:

« focess o funds

= Better interest rates and loan terms

= Minimal fees

= Higher level of customer sgrvice

= Effective planning for the future

By informing the media of the developments and
activities of ASL, effective awareness i Created
regarding the Company and the products and
services offtned, indirectly having a positive impact,

Lavard and requiations, determination of prices and
other factors controlled
by the Government affect ASL and its perfarmance,

Providing all the required information (o analysts
on the historical performance of the Company,
material announcement made during the perod
and help them understand the industry and s
dynamics more :lﬁ'-urly for Erepte & positive investor
environment.

ASls employess represent its biggest asset They
Implement every strategic and operational decision
and represent the Company In the industry and
eommunnity.

The people of the Country pravide the gaounds: For
ASL to build its future on,



ENCOURAGING MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS TO ATTEND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Cormpany disseminates the noticeaf its general mestings to all registered sharshalders along-with annual repost containing financial statements of the
Company. Besldes this, the Company also publishes the notice of AGM in English and Urdu newspapers having circulation: across the cowntry and
shareholders are also informed by Company throwgh timely updating the notice of AGM and other relevant information at the official website of the
Company as well as designated web-portal of the Pakistan S10ck Exchange,

Shareholders are also encowraged to avail the facility of video conferencing (as pes the prescribed procedures) and getting notices by emall addresses (as
provided by shareholders] to encourage maximem attendance at the meetings, The Company always facilitates and ensures sharcholders’ presence while
enteraining their requests if feasible and viable, It values and honoss their inputs, records thelr concerns, prepoditions, suggestions in minutes snd keeps
thedn abreast on the progress and ubkeguent actions. Shareholders can also actively participate during general meetings in discutiions on operations,
objectives and futwre strategy of the Company.

SUMMARY OF CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION HELD DURING THE YEAR 2022-23

The Campany has conducted mandatory Corporate Briefing Session [CBS), fer the financial year 2022-23 throagh virtual means for better pacticipation from
anatyst community by ghving fair advance intimation to sharehobders and analysts communkty. Chief Financial Officer of the Company gave presentation on
financial and eperational details of the Company during Corporate Briefing Session pertaining to the respective periods covered. Presentation were also
posted on the Company's website after the Corporate Briefing Session, which can easily be viewed by all respected shareholders of the Company as well as
the analysis. The  same can  be viewed by accessing Investorss  Relations  portion  of  the Companys  website  (le
hitpsyfwenwameelistesls.cominvestor-relationsgmvestorinformation).

Corparate Briehng Session for the year énded 30 June 2022 held on 17 Rovember 2022,
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STRATEGY TO OVERCOME LIQUIDITY PROBLEM AND THE COMPANY'S PLANTO
MANAGE ITS REPAYMENT OF DEBTS AND RECOVER LOSSES, IF ANY.

The company has establiched b strong liquidity management framework, supported by 3 team of seasoned experts respansible for overseing its quidity
postion and debt portfolio. This dedicated treasury team proactively handles the company's working capatal peeds, meticubously plans and forecasts is
cash flow requirerments, and serses as a shield against any potential Bguidity challenges.

The Company primarily fulfills its working capital requirements through a combination of internal fund generation and external short-term financing.
Internal funds primarily compese revenve generated from sales to customers. Additionally, the company maintains stringent controls over cwstomer
recelpts, employing a proactive appaeach that includes rigonsus follow-ups on accounts recefvable, regular aging analyses, pertodic reviews of credit limits,
and the facilitation of advance and cash sales.

To manage trade debts efficiently, the Company has established a dedicated credit administration and monitoring department staffed by experienced and
committed professionals, with a primary focus on securing debts from the commercial sector, Furthermore, to prevent any unforeseen cash flow disrup-
tions, a robuwst commundcation and caondination mechanism has been implementéd among the treasury, sales, inventory management, and production
departments. This ensures the maintenance of an optimal inventory level at all times.

In the fiscal wear in gquestion, Pakistan's economic performance faced considerable challenges, The country experienced a notable decling in its economic
indicators, with the reported GOP significantly lower than the preceding vear. The local currency, the rupee, exhibited a concerning bevel of instability,
undergoing a substantial devaluation resulting in record high inflation and interest rates. Having facing these macro bavel [ssues, the continued political
instabality throwghout the year have shook the confidence of the business community and deterred potential investors.

On external front, persistent global inflation, triggered by events like the COVID-19-related lockdown and the Russian invasion of Ukraine, resulted in a
notabde uptick in fuel and commadity prices, This inflationary pressure had a dampening effect on overall economic growth figures,

From the beginning of financial year under review, foreign reserves faced continued pressure which eventually resulted in restrictions on access to Letters
of Credit (LE) to save the precious reserves. However, the company’s management responded adeptly to these challenges, by managing working capital
facilttics under different possible modes that ensured the unintérrupted continuity of the business cycle and mioving sabe voburmes to sustain these challeng-
¢4 which wene beyond cnes control, It is worth noting that the company enjoys robust relationships with banks and other lending institutions, backed by
an impeccable credit history,

Throwsghout the year, the Company spent RS, 1,597 mallion towands capital expenditunes, primarily directed at enhancing production efficiencies and

reducing production costs These strategic investments are expected to fortify the company’s financial position and overall performance, ultimately
translating into attractive returns on investment fos shareholders:
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WJOR EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23
Eoard of Directors’ Meeting was held an 18 August 2022,
AUGUST The Board approved the annual awdited Ainancial
2022 statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2022 and the Directors’ Report thereon,

OCTOEER

Board of Directors' Meeting was held on 25 October 2022, The < 2022
Board approved the condensed interim financial statements
fawr the first quarter ended 30 September 2022 along with the

3Bth Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held
on 20 October 2022 for approval of annual audited financial
statemants of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2022,
Diresctars’ Report therson,

N

NOVEMEBER _ The mandatory Corporate Briefing Sessbon (CB5] for the
2022 year ended 30 June 2022 was held an 17 November 2022,

Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 24 February 2023, The

Board approved the condensed interim financial statements of FEBRUARY
the Company for the halfyear ended 31 December 2022 along 2023
with the Directors’ Report thereon,

¥4

Board of Directors' Meeting was held on 27 April 2033, The
AFRIL EBodrd approved the condensed interim, financial
2023 ¥ statements of the Company for the thind quarter ended 31
March 2023 along with the Directors’ Report thereon.

v

/ Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 02 June 2023, The Baard recommended the following: _\\l

1. Toincrease the authorized share capital of the Cormpany fram Rs 5,000,000,000 (Repees Fve Billion Only)
divided Into 420,000,000 ardinary shares of Rs. 104 each and 80,000,000 cemulative preference shases of
B, 10/ each to Re. 10,000, 000,004 (Rupees Ten Billion Cnby) divided into $20,000,000 [MNine Hundred and
Tweitnty Million) ordinary shares of R, 10/ each and 80,000,000 (Eighty Million) cumulative prefersnce shares
of As. 10v- each, along with the consequent alteration in the Mermorandum and Articles of Assodation of the
Comipamy subject to the approval of general meeting (with or without modifications)
Tz alter the Articles of Association of the Company to empower the BEpard of Directors of the Company to
capitakize any sumoor sums forming part of the reserves, undistributed prafits or other accounts of the
% Company subject to the approval of general meeting:

3. Todrcuiate the Annual Audited Financlal Statements / Annual Reporty Motice of Genaral Meeting(s) to the

L]

JUNE > Members through OR Enabled Code and Weblink subject to the approval of general meeting;
2023 4. Toconvene Extraordinary General Meeting for abtaining approval of the shareholdirs on the above matters.

An Extracedinary General Meeting ([ECGM) of the Company was held on 24 June 2023 for obtaining approval of
the following matters by the sharehalders of the Company:

1.. Toalter the Articles of Association of the Company to empower the Board aof Directors of the Company 1o
capitalize any sumn of sums forming part of the resenves, undistributed profits or other accounts of the
Company subject to the approval of general meeting,
2. Tocirculate the Anmual Avdited Financial Statements / Annual Repoct) Motice of Genersl Mestingl) ta the
\\ Members through OR Enabled Code and Wehblink subject to the approval of general meeting; /
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MADDADATE SMM/EDMARNCE DICWY RALRLE CERACKRIT ANIDY MDY 1ARTE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE

The Company recognizes that Governance, Risk Management, and Compliance (GRC) are three pillars that wodk 1ogether for the purpose of assunng that
thie organizatson meets its objectives.

GRE is a discipline that aims 1o synchronize information and activity across governance, risk management and compliance in order 1o operate mone
efficiently, enable effective information shasing, more effectively report activities and avoid wastefsl overlaps,

Governance

Governance [Corparate Governance] is the combination of processes estabilished and executed by the Board of Diréctors (the Board) that are reflected in
the Company’s strecture and how it i managed and led toward achleving goals of the Company as a whole.

The corporate governance structure of the Company is based on statutory and regulatory compliance requirements that are applicable to companies listed
on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and Company’s Artiches of Association complemented by several internal procedures. These procedures inchede a
risk assessment and control syitem, a5 well as a system of asserances on compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the Companys Code of Conduet.

Major External Regulations
+  Companées Act, 2017 (Formerly: Companées Ordinance, 1984) and Rules made thereunder
Listed Companies {Cade of Corporate Governance Regulations), 2019
Securitios Act, 2015
Leting Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Rule Book of Fakistan Stock Exchange Limited
= LD Aegulations
All appficable Labour Lawes
All appficable Taxation Laws and Rubes made thereunder
Competition Act, 2000 and Rules nrade thersunder
= OtherSECF Regulations, Circulars, Notifi~cathons and Guidelines (ssued from: tinne totime
= (therlocal and Intesnational laws applicable directhy or Indirectly
Major Internal Regulations
Thee BMemarandurn and Articles of Association of the Company
Code of Conduct
Whisthe Blowing Policy
Other Skgni-hcant policies formulated by the Company fram time o time

The Board is responsible for governing the organization by establishing Board policies, setting the goals, objectives and strategies the Company s required
te adopt, and formulating policies and guidelines for achieving the said goals and chjectives. The Boand i accountable to the shareholders for the discharge
of its -fiduciary function

Thie management is responsitle for implementation of the aforesald goals and strategies i accordance with the policies and guidelines laid down by the
Baoard. In prder tofacilitate the smooth running of the day-to-day affairs of the Company, the Board entrusts the Chief BExecutive Officer (CEQ) with necessary
powers and respongibilities. The CEQ is, in tunn, assisted by various committees comprising of the Chiel Operating Officers, Chief Financial Officer and the
Heads of Businesses and Functions, The Board i also assisted by sub-committees comprising mainky of independent/non-executive Directors,

Risk Management

Risk management is predicting and managing risks that could hinder the Company to achleve its objectives. The Board has the overall responsibility of
overseeing the risk management processes, which include both risk management and intérnal control prededures, The Companys prodesses, which ane
documented and requiarly revicwed, are designied 1o safequard assets and address risks that the business might face or that may impact business
cantinuity, These are, in tum, reporied to the Board and senior management for timely action where required, to ensure uninterrupted operations.

The Company maintains a clear organizational structure with a well-defi-ned chain of authority. Senior management is responsible for implementing
procedures, monitoring risk and assessing the effectiveness of various controls. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the
wnpredictability of fi-nancial markets, regulatory bevies and taxes, external factoss affecting the marketability and profi—t margin of its produts, intermal
factors that may compromise the Company’s ability to meet {15 targets, and seeks to minimize potential adverse affects on the Company’s firnancial
performance,

Compliance

Compliance at Amreli Steels maans adherence with the applicable laws and regulations and the Company's policies and procedunes, The Company
considers strong and efficient governance as a key to the Company's sucoess:

Due to the increasing mumber of regulations and need for operational fransparency, the Company is mcreasingly adopting the use of consolidated and
harmonized sets of compliance controls. This approach is used to ensure that all necessary govesnance reguirements can be met without unnecessany
duplication of efforts from resources 1o ensure ¢fectiveness and efficiency,
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CORPORATE CALENDAR

Tentative Dates for the Financial Year 2023-24

« Board Meeting

For the First Quarter ending

30 September 2023
Last week of October 2023

For the Year ending 30 June 2024
Second week of September 2024

» Corporate Briefing
Session

For the year ended 30 June 2023
Second Week of Movember 2023

Board Meeting
For the Third Quarter ending
31 March 2024

Last week of April 2024

Annual General
Meeting

For the Year ending 30 J_ur'le 2024
Third week of October 2024
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RISK MANAGEMENT GOVERNANCE
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

mmuwhmwmhm of company’s risk management scthities frorm a strategic, financial, and sperational pergpec-
thve. These activities are designed to identify and manage, rather than efirninate, the risk of faiure 1o achieve business objectives or to successhully delver aur business
strategy, We follow the Three Lines of Defense approsch to ik managerment. Risks are owned and managed within company and reviewed atieast annually.

- Conicler key business + Assess controls = hecept or remediate + Business Unit, Process Level,
and conduct exposane action if nedded
Three Lines of Defence
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RISK CATEGORIES

IMPACTED CAPITAL
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'&-

No

Description

s
of Risk

Capttal

T

Economic Eactors,
inclustry
conditions,
industry cyclicakty

Rieputation Risk

Resgpulatony chandges mirny affect bocal
steed industry due to ad-hoc taniff
acdjustmients o0 impoets o dumping in
Pakistan The political chaos may affect
Lerwe andd order Situaticn, which rmay
Puamper SConoamic activity.

Thie cycic nature of steel industny may
adhveruedy affect our business. The
construction sector is langely dependent
O Gverrment & spending and oerall
econamic conditions of the country and
army achverse ot On eoonomy may
dhineeihy affect stosl nchusiry,

Rk of loss in revenmes resulting from
iyl mirturmued o B pubScity in prets
o guality and performance of the
product.

Extenmal

Intemal

+ The management of Ameeli steels

conkinmeously seeks dialoguewith
the policymaiers at different forums
to-safequand the interest and growth
of the Seel industry in Pakistan.

Thie Inchuestry status for the
constructon secton will nesult in the:
greevth of the indusiny,

«  The Company continuoushy tracks

chamges i the econons:
ervinonmsent of the country in
general and stel industryin
particular in crder to align its
itrategy proactively through short
and smart forecast.

- The previous year GDP of 5.97%

together withi the mega peojects in
the pulblic sector and large dams
Trelpet the Comgany to Litdize a5
avatlable plant capacity.

- The Campary has forecashed to

meet the tanget sk (guankity-wise)
and will diversify thi customer
pmﬂdrn:ncnup up-m:h

fomal management systern
confiorrning o150 9001: 2015. Wa
ane an 150 9001201 5 Certibed

compary.

+  All sur products are approved and

certifiid by the Pasistan Sandards
Ouality Control Authority [PSOCA)

+ Thue cermipary Faintisns & state of

At testion labomatony whereeach
heat produced is tested against
Intemationsl Standards [ASTM
A-E15 505 4949,

= The stalf of the besting & Operating

facility is professionally trained by
foreign experts to use the machines
and deder acouwate results

8@
8

20
Nt

&°

Medium

Madhium

4.

Intenesy rate risk

Licquidéty risk

Charges in Inbenest rates can cause
chianges in the bomowing cost of the
COMMPany.

Devaluation of PRR against LISD may
resuilt in costhy npats wehich in tum can
Chuse acherie impact on our
pofitabidity and pricing.

Ohr risk of default on our finangial
ooMmimitEnts to other pasties.

External

Extemnal

Internal

+  This manaagement & continuoushy

Takiregy g (0 Briprcead B weorking
capitad position,

« Armied Shocls treasury function

minimizes the gk through peoper
planning basedd on the futume
euthook of FOREX rates and by
enbering inlo hadgng amangement,
i recuuired.

« The rick s dealt with monitoring of

eeonomik stuations for informed
gdecishon-making and regular
encagerrent with extermal panics to
assess the sk

«  Strong adherence o the practice of

fulfilrrent of commitments hasa
porsitive Impact o our lenders.

+  The Comparny malntaing heatthe

redationship with different lenders to

$®

P
0
F
8

Medium

Medium
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Financial Risk

keppthe avadability of finandng

opticn

+  The Company negotiates its terms
with supphiens and customers to
reduce working capital

7 Counter-Party risk  Riskof default in paymments by onedit Extermal = Maitenance of a healthy and acthae Miediem

CLISEOITETE. relaticachipowith custormerns s a key
o rmithgate the credit risk. Credinis
extendad only to those customeens
e enfoy good market reputation,
hawe hnandcial strength and ane abe
o secure a manimurm numiser
reqquined for credit on Amred’s
internaly designed credit sconecard,
These is a propen oredt Cormimities in
place to approwe the transaction,
Lirnits onoe assigned i entered into @
the ERP and cannot be changed
without the appnoval of credit
COMTItEE. Proper wiithen
agreenients ane in place along with
open chequeswith a value, 25%
crver and abowe the assigned crods
limit,

W have defined follow-up
proceciuncs, The payment, sales, and
operational performandce of
CLISom e properhy docurnentied
andd ang incorporated into the
CLERONENS appeaisal

= The Company has a segment of
credit ocontrod bo strengthen
recervable management in response
ftoincreased risk arsing due to an
Increass in revere,

8 | Fnancial Risk.of reporting issies with requilators Intemal = The Company complies with the Very Low
Respiating risk vl authorithes bt practicoid st by the

regulatony autharities of Pakistan,
The Financial Statements confonm 1o
International Fnancial Reporting
Sandards.

« Our accounts, finance, and
commpliance toams e well 8@
enperiancad and professhonalhy
cpulified fie the continucas
manitcaing and implementing
charuges in the kegal arepoting
Framiswork,

= With a well-reputed External Audit
Firrm, & strong Intenmal Audit function
along with outscurced internal
Juuichit firm the risk i chay miticated.

Operational Risk

o Ereachol T Riksk thiat IT security can be beeached External = The Corngany reguiary manitors T Lo
eniising s to the doned information. controbs for the secunty of data and
Seciity information flow by implementing
sBOLe Conmectons and firevwals.

+  The Comparmy ako mamiains.an
appropriste data backep
e haniam b drdure data

availaodlity n case of any damage via
the developrment of comprehenshe

Dsarster Recovery Stradedqy and
conduct of data recowery ona

reglilar badis,
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st

10 Unable tormest Thee company s unalbis (o sunply
cusleTers hetined quaritity to its customers,
dernancds

11, Business Prolonged power outages will eesultin
inferruption due  delayved production and which rmay
1o power outages.  result in loss of comnpetithee advantage

and reputation,

12, | Technology faling - Sacificial loss in profitabilty dueto

toprovidecost & outdated technology of fallune in
aquesafity technology system.
Comipetihaseas
13, Fadureto Lewss of high potential talent in the form
mairtain high of attraction, engagerrent and retention
potentalhurman  muny resultin loss of idoas that gve us
Capital competithee advantage.
14, | Product Carewainety riprmbers of kool plnsers in the
cormpetiton rriarket and cheap guality of steel bar
areailaole in the madeet 3t uneconomical
prioes may senously affect companys
rriarket shane.

Il

intenal

External

«  The Cormgaany has enhanced its

»  HR ensunes vigorous sucoession

= Tha Cormnpany betieves in healthy

Operational Risk

» The emplogees ane oondtanthy

comemumicatied about cyber-attack
thrgats torame staff awareness,

+ The Information Security s

evaluated both intennaly and by
Competent independent eqperts on
a regular ok,

The Ciorngany has encugh
prodhuction capacity 1o meet anmy
ki rise i chasmanicl.

logistics faciiies by incneasing
CURTEent wWileiuouse capacity and
increasing dispatch units.
(Warehouses) in different pasts ol
CoUntrs.

= At Dhabeji plant, the Company is Loy

suppdied with poswer by K-Eleciric
fronn the national grid at
13T TR it Bvo Lranafodrrers.
rating of S0/63 MMA whidh is mone
than sufficient to cater to the
requinement of Company’s exdsting
opefations and expanshon plans.
Further, the Comparny hars laad one
eadtra phase cable of 132K 10 avoid
a single point of faikure, The
Company has adedicated bay at
K:Blectric’s Dhabeji grid station, from
whichiits dedicated power feaders
transme povwer at 13260 voltage to
the gk station at the site:

@

» The Raling Mill plant at SLTE

Karachi s supplied with power from
two dedicated feeders of K-Blectric,
suppbying poweer 21 1TEY level one
in kne and ather on standby: Each of
these feechan: originates at the
E-Electric substation and termninates
at the plant with no other customes
of KrElectric drinwing posser from
these Enes.

»  The Corngiany has irstalled Low

state-of-the-art equipment for
metting and skt nolling, which are
contracted from an intemational

this inisbmend To geai it
competithe technalogical
advantage and unparalieled cost &
auiality benchmarks, which will help
translate ko & better bottom fine,

Very Low
plannineg to identify engage, and
redain intellectusl capital by offering

comgetition and at the sarme time
iriberts b enhsnde it marked share

in the coming years by increasing its
rriarkat outreadh

= The installation of the fifth-genaration
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150 Hoalth&safety Poor hezalthe & safiety endionment may Intemal
beoore oot cause of fatal work place
scridents which can result in lowering of

emplovess" mathation and which
wltimatehy might cost the repastation of
the Comparmy.
16 Supply chain Projorged production stoppagesdueto - Internal?
management risk  shortages of inputs may reselt in External

disruprtions in cuivall Business
operations. Also variation in prices of

Faw Fraterial ray achversely affect our
profitability,
17, Operational Diperational disnuption due 1o any infemal
disrupticn conflich miscommunication or

uravailability of resounes.

18 | Erdironmental Actual or potential theeat of adverse Exterral
i, ffecti on erndrsnment arising out of
COMany acthities.
190 | Litigation & Piser kv, megqulations or other External
Tegulatory requiremEnis may nesult innew Rability

compliancerisk  in the case of non-compliance.
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phant givess the Comparny the benefits

of cormpetitive comversion oosts and

economies of scale and production @
of high-quality producs, peovides

competithe adhantage ower other
steed rebar manufaciurers.

o The risk b5 reduced via educating the
employees about workplaos ety @

thicsugh contnmous training and

practioes to counter the challamges
of the Cowid-19 pandemic.

The Cormpany rmaintains adequate
stock bevels 1o support smooth
operations and has enough stofage
space o maintain sdfely stockat an
Sppeapiati el

WATENESS PEDgams.
= The Company has adopted best ?ﬁ

¢ The Company has strong

comimitrrien s from s vendorsin
fermes of quality and competitive
pricas of raw materials, q%
Inthe case of cver-dependence, the
Company also has altermate vendors
o it approved vendor st

To aveid disturbance in the
prodection process, the Company
optimizes the wse of market
irrbedigenos and updates vendor
peerfaimanie,

+  The Comgany functions througha

waiell-chedirvined 2ructune with 3

defined fiow of information to avoid @
any conflict or communication gap.

The Cormpany has adequate human

rissouroes, and the operational

weorkflen deshgns to stpport

S CERSIoN planning.
« The Cornpany has rintained
starage with sufficent spares to

richuce posibbe downtirne incase of
any potential beeakdoem,

The plant at comparry is installed
witha PLC-based APC {Adr Polluticn
Cortrolier] which reduoes the
carban foatprint by captuing fumes
anel dhrst For safie disposal, instead of
releasing them in thealr.

+ The Compary has regittened B

plant under the Sell-Monitoning and

Reporting Frogram (SMART),

micmitoned bey Pakistan fB‘l
Ervdronmental Protection Agency &-—*&
under thie umnieeils of the Minkiny of

Emvdronment, Govemiment of

Pakistan,

The Cormpany reguilay monitors
changes in the regulatony
evdronment and proscthely deals
with the changes in the regulatony
framiasi

The Cormpany has anexperienced @
tiam of professionats snd advisors
it fevewss on the evaluation of ks
nall legal transsctions.

Thea Cornpany provides tralning to its
employess to remain up tedate
waith the: rdevant regulstions,

Ly



RISK ASSESSMENT CHART

Risk Factor

R
R2
R
Rt
RS
R&
R¥
RE
]
H1O
/11
R12
CRE!
f14
15
/16
R17
r18
19

Change In government laws and policies

Economic factors, industry conditions, industry cyclicality
Regsutation Rigk . .
IRterest ratbe rigk

Forelgn exchange sk

Ligusidity risk

Counter-Party risk

Financial Reporting rigk

Braach of IT sequrity

Unalle to meet customers’ demands

B:u.lsine-s-g [mem.q:_ut_lwquzm'power outages
Technology falling to provide cost & quality competitiveness
Failure to maintain high potential human capital

Product competition

Health & safety

Supply chain management risk

Operational disruption

Environmental risk

Litigation & regulatory compliance risk

Likelihood Impact

2 4

3
1 4
3 3
3 3
= 2
3 3
1 2
2 3
1 3
2 2
r 3
1 3
3 2
3 3
3 3
2 3
r 3
2 2
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Internal contaad is infegral part of our activities, It consists of all measures taken by the company for the purpose of:
Protecting its resources againit waste, fraud, and ineffciency;
Erviaaring accuracy and relizbility in accounting and operating dota:
Securing compliance with the erganizational policies; and
Evaduating the lewel of performance in all erganizational units of the company.

Wiz are in the process of adopting COS0 framework Lo attain the objectives that are;

«  Operational Objectives—these pertain to effectiveness and efficiency of the entity's operations, including operational and financial performance goals,
and safeguanding assets against loxs.
Reporting Objectives-<These pertain to internal and @xternal financial and non-hnancial reporting and may encompass ridiability, timeliness,
transparency, or other terms as et forth by regulaters, recognized standard setters, or the entity’s palicies.

Campliance Objectives—ihete pertain (o adherence to loes and regulations to which the entity is subject to.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system of infermal cantrols and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board considers that strong
internal conirols ane mtegral to the sound management of the ceganizathon, and it s committed to maintaining strict financial, operational, and risk
management contnol over all its activities with formally defined lines of responsibility, delegated authorities, and clear operating processes, The systems
that the Board has established are designed to safequard both the shareholders' investmant and the assets of the company, Entity level controls are in place
for the achlevement of desired objectives. To ensure the effectivensess and relizbility of internal contrsd, ASL has both in-house imtermal audits a3 well a5 an
catsourced function.

The systems, standard operating procedures, and controls are implemented by the executive leadership team and are reviewed by the internal audit team
whease indings and recommendations are placed before the Awdit Committes,

Ter maintain abjectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports o the Audit Committes, The lnternal Audit team develops an annual awdit
plan based on the risk profile of the business activitles. The Internal Audit plan is approved by the Audit Commities, which alio reviews compliance with the
plan.

Thie Internal Audit team manitors and evaluates the efficacy and sdequacy of internal contral systems in the Company, its compliande with operating
systirns, sccounting procedures, and policies at all locations af the Company, Based on the report of the internal aedit function, rocess owners undertake
cofrective actions in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit obsersations and corective actions thereon are presented
to the Audit Commitbes,

The Audit Committes reviews the reports submitted by the Internal Acditors in each of ifs meetings. Also, the Audit Committee at semiannually has
independent sessions with the external aeditors and the Management (o disouss the adequacy and effectivensss of internal financial contrals.

Internal Control Framework

F Control A Risk (" Contral Activities }( Information& [~ Meonitaring N
Ervironimsnt Amreli Steels has The policies and Communication The internal control
Management is keen ta oAgoing process of praidures ane Amreli has & defined system is adtively
promote Integrity, ethical | | identifying and analyzing developad in order to formal mechanism of monitored. Ongeing
walues and the rigks, Mechanisrms are ensure that communication and FRERGRinGg eocurs in the
commitment 1o developed to respond to management directives sharing of infarmation ordinary coursa of
competence, the changing condition, are understood clearty amongst the aperations, and includes
Thr ichenatifusd risk are anvtl carried out propery. departments and regulir managenient and
Company and evaluated and priaritized stabahaldert: supsrvisory activities,
departmental in oo to take All the neccessory aryd other actions
Organograms are apgropriate actions. actions are taken to All respansible personal persannel take in
designed property address risks to achieve have been given clear performing their duties
assigning the Btiy's objective. understanding of thelr that assess the quality of
ﬂﬂprupl:'lﬂll: lines far Théseinclude a rangs of rode bn internal control internal control systerm
reparting of each activities such as st ks will s how performance.
functeonal area apivoval, individual acthaties relate
P to the others.
Kesy Performance autharizations,
Indicatars [KPIs) are verifications,
establishind to moniter reconciliations,
thie perforrmarnce of its budgeting. security of
departments against assets, seqregation of
their stated chjactives. duties and reviews of
operating perfosmance,
Mo AN £l Sl 0 N _.J

| INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023



EY Ford fhodes LuAM: #5221 11T 1139 37 (EYIH
Chariered Accoundants Tel: #5221 3565 COOT-11
Progeesihng Plars, Beawnont Rosd Far: 8221 1558 1965

PO, Box 15541, Marachs TS530 Sy ahil oLy Lo

Building a better Pakisan e B comip
working workd

Independent Auditors’ Review Report
To the members of Amreli Steels Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies {Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations), prepared by the Board
of Directors of Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2023 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it
does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding
of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures
and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that
the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately refiect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2023.

ce PO Rb,

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi

Date: 28 September 2023

UDIN Number: CR202310120ICYPvgwS{
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCEWITH THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Armreli Steels Limited {“the Company™) has complied with the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corperate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the
Regulations™) in the following manmer.

1. Thetotal number of Directors of the Company ane seven (07) as per the following:

Male
Femake 1
2. The composition of Board is as follows:
Mr. Bacdar Kazimi
’ Mr; Teizoan ¥eat
Independent Direcion
Mr, Zafar Abmed Tag
Mo Expcytive Dirvcton’ Chaimman Mr, Abbas Aldberal
Femniale (Mon-Executive Director) Ms Mariam Akberali
Me Shayvan Akberali
Bxerutive Cuectors M. Hadki Abbas Akberal

3. The Directors have confirmied that none of then is serving a2 a Directar on mone than seven listed companies, including this Company,

This Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensuned that approgriste steps have been taken to disseminate it thraugheast the Company
along with its supporting policies and procedurnes.

5. The Baard has developed Vizsion and Mission statements, overall corporate strategy and shgnificant policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that
complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval and subsequent update is maintained by the Company.

& Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have Been taken by Board/ Sharchalders as emposered by the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 ("the Act®) and the Regulations,

kS 'lhemeeﬂngiﬂﬂhe_ﬁﬂqrd wene presided over by the Chalrman and. in his absence, by a Director elected by the Board for this purpase. The Boasd has
complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board.

& The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Birectors in accordance with the Act and the Regulations,

G Allthe Directoes of the Company have either abfained certificate of Directors Training Program ar are exempted from the réquirement as per the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governancel Regulations, 2019,

10 The Board has approved appointrnent of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of intemnal Audit, incheding thesr remuneration and
terms and conditions of employment and complied with rebevant requirements of the Requlations.,

11, Chief Financial Gfficer and Chiel Executive Officer duly endorsed the finangial statements before approval of the Board.
12, The Board has farmed following committees comprising of mémbiers given below:

B Audit Comemittes
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13 The terms of reference of the aforesaid committess have been fosmed, documented and advised 1o the commaitteas for complance.
14,  The frequency of meetings of the committees held during the yvear are as under:

il Audit Committes ~ Sk (b)) meatings

o] Human Resource and Remuneration Committee = One (01} meeting

15.  The Board has set up an effective internal audit function comprising personnel who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the
puEpose and are wall convessant with the policies and procedures of the Compary,

16 The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Contrel Review program of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and a1l their partners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) quidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Instiute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan and that they and the partrers of the fiem invalved in the audit are not a clowe relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children} of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Awdit, Company Secretary or Director of the Comipany.

17. The statutorny auditors or the persons assoclated with them have not been appolnted to provide other services except in accordance with the Act,
the Regulations or any ather regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18, We confirm that alf other requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, B, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with,

1% We confirm that the Company has complied with respect 1o all the material requirements of the Regulatbons.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors
f- - f

Abbas Akberali

Chalrman

(8 Septemiber 2083

Karachi
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The Chairman s responsible for leadership of the Board and ensures that the Board plays an
effective role in fulfilling its responsibifities In terms of formulating and implementing corparate
direction and strategy. He plays a central mode in encouraging effective relationships and
communications between board members especially non-executive directors to promote
constructive debate and effective dedision-making.

Besides effective operations of the Board, the Chairman ensunes that its Committees oparate in
conformity with the highest standards of corporate governance and (e commitiees are properly
established, composed and operated as required under the applicable corporate laws, At the
beginning of tarm of sach Diréctor, the Chairman ensures that each Director understands his! her
role, obligations, powers and responsibilities in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and
Comparny’s Articles of Association. He reviews the Board's performance and suggests the training
-and development of Board Members on individuat and collective basis.

The Chairman sets the agends of the Board Mectings and ensures that all written notices and
refewant material, including the sgenda, of meetings be circulated amongst the Board Membiers
prior to the meetings.

Abbas Akberali

The Chief Executive of the Company is responsible to manage the overall affairs and day to day
operations of the Company and to improve the sharcholders” wealth by way of maximizing the
profits of the Company under the overall directicns of the Board,

He develops strategies for implementation of decisions taken by the Board and its Committees, The
CED enaunes that he develops sdequate financial and operational plans and attaing the targets set by
the Board in the best interest of the Company,

He acts as a divect lialson between the Board and Management of the Company and communicates
to the Board on behalf of Management, He ensures that all strategic and operational rishs ane
appropriately managed 10 an acceptable level and that adequate system of intemal controls is in
place for all major operational and financial areas. He s also responsible for highest moral, ethical and
“professional values and good governance culture throughout the organézation, Shaya“ Akbﬂrﬂ"
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Dear Shareholders,

I-am pleased to present an overview on the Company's performance foe the fiscal year 2023, The
preceding vear has Been characterized by a multitude of global and domestic challenges which put
substantial pressure to Pakistan's economy. Considering these difficult and demanding times, |
anmticipate that survival will be secured by only those who possess unwavering faith in resilience,
adaptability and creativity,

Fakistan is currently grappling with a severe balance of payment crisis, mecessitating sulbstantial
foreign exchange 1o address trade deficits and international debt commitments. The financkal
performance af state-owned enterprises (S0E5) in Paklstan also remains a source of concern, adding o
the economic challenges faced by our nation. Due o an urgent need to reduce inflation and contain
the current account deficit, high interest rates and import contrals have crippled the business
ervironmient and sentiment, A fast deprecinting dollar and rising enengy prices have caused building

C Bt - . . rmaterial prices to soar past the individuals' capability to parchase, As such, many constraction projects
Abbaiﬂmrall have been halted or shelved.

It is mporiant to contextualize these economic challenges with your Company's performance during the financial year 2023, Yowr Company faced
substantial challenges, which manifested in a notable boss and 3 significant reduction in overall sales wolumes compared (0 the previcus financial year,
teading to an £.15% decrease in grass profil, IUs important to emphiasize that despite these hurdles, our solid cormmitrent to resiliencs and determination
rirriaing steadiace.

Mewing forwand, Amreli Steets Limited is resolutely committed 1o maintaining its grawth trajectory. While your Company’s inancial performance for the
outgoing year resulted ina ned finangial loss, we bold a steadfast belief in our kang-term growth potential and our focus on the continueus enhancement
of operational efficiencies, the exploration of new growth avenues, and the preservation of impeccable standards of product quality and customer service,

Amidst these challenges, there |sa glimmer of hope. Recent reports have unvelled Saudi Arabia's plan to imvest a substantial 525 billion in Pakistan over the
naxt two 1o five years. This commitment, spanning multiphe sectors such as mining, agriculture, and information technology, aligns with Pakistan's vast
mineral wealth, conservatively valued at approximately 56 trillion, and underscores our potential for robust economic growth. This potential investiment
from Saudi Arabia, coupled with commitments from ather friendly nations including UAE and China, will hopefully turn out to be a great opportunity for
the revival of the economy and enhancing financial stahility,

The prespects for construction activity remain strongly Enked 1o the state-level management of the magro economic conditions, If the governmant is able
to bring in enough FDIto create fiscal space for growth and a gradual reduction of interest rates, there will surely be a shew of infrastructune of housing
projects that are already on the drawing board, Based on global benchmarks, Pakistan should be spending USD 30 billion a year only.on Building
Infrastructure, which will spur demand across a range of sectods in the economy,

As Chalrman of the Board, | reaffism our unwavering commitreent to upholding the highest standards of governance, ensuring transparency, and
safequarding the intesests of all stakeholders, especially the minority shareholders, while ensuring adherence to all relevant laws and regudations. The Board
takes its gowernance responsibilities seriously, encompassing oversight of the business, decision-making processes, risk and control framewaork, requiatory
campliance, as well as arategic planning 1o safequard and enhance bong-term objectives and strateqic values, As part of our dedication 1o meeting
requlalony requitements, we conduct an annual seif-aisesement to evaluate the efficacy and perfarmance of the Board, its members, and sub-committees
Lam pleased o state that the cuteormes of these assessments have been satisfactony, signifying the Board's and its Committess steadfast commitment to
maintaining excellence in ity functioning and fostering a cubture of continual improvement,

1 extend my heartfelt appreciation to all members of the Board for their proactive apgroach in keading our employees, workers, and every individual
associated with the Amreli Family amidst such challenging circumstances. Your solid support and confidence in our endeavors is deeply valued and greatly
honored.
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Dear Sharcholdery,

| hope this note finds you all in goad health and spirits, As we gather here 1o reflect upan the sutgoing financial year
and set our course for the future, | am acutely aware of the economic challenges that have tested us In FY-23. Tha
simaudtaneous challenges of soaring energy costs, depleting foreign exchange, the high interest rate enviranment. the
unprecedented depreciation of the Pakistani rupes, the political turmoil that has wrecked consumer confidence, and
the logming uncertainty of Pakistar’s Ananclal default have indeed been farmidable hurdles that we, as a company
have had o navigate. However, | firmly belleve that it is during such times that the true mettle of an erganization ks
tested; It will be our collective resilience and determination that will steer us through these challenging times.

The significant drop in demand of steel bars due o the highly uncertain and valatile economic and poditical landscape has been a challenge that has
riverberated throughout the industry. With inflation having peaked at 299 and with the price of steel bass having touched an alt-time high of Re 310,000
per tan, the cost of construction has sky rocketed and has now becorme unaffordable for many segments of our society. This can be seen in the wolumietric
decline of our sales tonnage which clocked in 38% lower in the year under review vs. the preceding year,

Cur revenue for the outgoing fiscal year decreased by 21.8% as compared 1o last year, whereas ouwr gross profit decreased by 8.2%. In quantity terms, sales
wolume of rebars saw a massive decline by 36% Yo, from 369,543 tons to 229,176 tons.

T compaund to these challenges, the non-availabilsty of Forex with the banks has sewerely impacted our abality to open Letter of Credits (LCs). LCs play a
pivotal role in our international trade and procurement processes, The scarcity of USD had led to delays and disruptions in our supply chain and trade
operationt which has effectively resulted in Lack of availabbe finance lines Lo procure sorp at the levels required ta meet owr slandard operationi.
Doubling down on the reduced svailability of sorap, the electricity prices have increased by over $7% in the outgoing fiscal year, With Pakistan having signed
the IMF mandate, there is no othed option for Pakistan but to drastically increase the electricity tariff and reduce its circular debt. The cost of stedd scrap and
the costof electricity constitute 81% of your Company's COGS, and hence your Company had no other option but to pass on this price increase to the end
consumer, \With a huge cost-push inflation, the average price of steel increased by 30.5% in a matter of six months.

The high interest rate enwironment has taken a significant todl on your Compamy’s bottom line. The (mnoreased cost of borrowing and servicing debt has
squeezed our financial resources. Our finance team has worked diigently to manage our debt pertfollo and optimize our capital structure, but ewen with
these efficienches in place, the high cost of bomowing, wihich has been the highest in Pakistan over the last 4 decades, s slaughtering the econsmy and
strangulating growth. Traditionally, our finance costs 1o revenwe ratio used to be around 43 today we are seeing this rato increased to 9% primanty dus to
the increase in the KIBOR rate.

In 2023, Amreli Steels continued its streak of bringing gold home by Bagging the Effe Gold Award for the Best Campaign and the Pakistan Digital favard for
Social Media Marketing on Linkedin, With these latest wins, Amreli Steels became the first and only Brand to complete a three-peat of wins on these reputed
marketing farums in the combined categery of steel, construction, allied industries and real estate in Pakistan, This repeated success is a testament of our
commitment te bulld a brand of cholce for our end consumer, cur approach to Inrovate in all facets of business and our desire to be the standasd bearer in
the industry and as a result, Arnredl continues to dominate others by remakning the lasgest selling brand of rebars in Pakistan both in termys of voleme and
walue.

To conclude, the coming fimancial year i3 going 1o be highly challenging and will test the nerves of even the most resilient. We need 1o keep our head above
waster and keep adapting ta the daity change and challenges that the country throws at us, The constantly changing landscage has demanded flexdbility and
the abality to adapt o new market conditiond, As we move inte the futune, we will do 5o with the same umeaverning determination and commitment that
had defined us for years, Qur strategic vision remains chear, and our resolve remains unshaken.

1 would like to fecognize the efforts of our executive managemant team for their leadership and bard work during these difficelt times. | would alse like to
thank you for your support and confidence in the Company and would like to thank the government, customers, vendors and financlal institutions for thelr
continwed suppart along with our employees and the management team for their deep level of commitment to the Company.

Yours sincerely,

& E Eﬁav_%_
Shayan M.lberili

Chief Executive Officer
OB Seplember 2023
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Esteemed Shareholders,

We are pleased to present the Divector Report for your Company covering the finangial year ended 30 June 2023 This period wai marked by condiderable
challengies that not enly impacted the steel industry but also impacted the brosder economy of Pakistan, Undoubledly, your Company encountered
numaencus obstacles and navigated through the uncertainties prevailing in the curent economic and political Landscape, However, amidst these testing
times, our resilience was evident as we remained committed in our pursuit of excellence. This dedication has positioned your Company to address futune
challenges with confidence, establishing a rebust fewndation for a more promising and prosperous future.

Glebal Ecomnomy:

The world is cummantly facing a range of pressing Bsues on the global stage which range from climate change, the after effects of the pandemic to the
persisting angoing conflict in Ukraine which has jed to heightened debt levels particularly in less prospensus natons together with the looming threat of
increased inflation. Addressing these issues requines substantial financial resources for econamic stabifity and chimate solitions. However, the lack of robust
international cogperation is hampering the transition towards resilient, equitable and environmentally sustainable cconomies,

The global economic landscape 1s showing signs of slowdown (after achieving a 3.1% growth rate in the previous yearh as the workd economy is expected
to expand by a modest 2.0 pencent this year due to efforts dimed at curking the ever increasing global inflation numbers. Obstacles persist as a result of
widldwide financial limitations and subdued global demand, axerting a negative influence on the growth trajectory of emerging and developing
economies. Monetheless, the global economic projection could deteriorate in the event of helghtened stress levels within the banking sector, and If the
inflatbenary rend persists, this woubd necessitate more stringent-than-expacied monetary measures.

The situation underscores the necessity of implementing multifaceted policy measures. Foremost amaong these is the urgent need for comprehensive
global financizl requiatory reforem, especially in response to recent events of bank failures. At the same time, international collaboration assumes critical
importance in accelerating the Iransition to enewsble energy, addressing the challenges posed by climate change, and providing finpncial relief to nations
grappling with etanomic distress, The development and execution of credible strategies to confain inflation will ensune overall economic and fnancial
equilibrium, and implement structeral reforms that are crucial for establishing a rebust foundation for sustainable and inclusive developrment.

Domestic Economy:

The ghobal trade dynamics have direct and indisect impacts on Pakistan’s economy and its trade sirategles. The complex interactions between export
Hmitations, cimate-related challenges, and shifting trade dynamics enderscore the requirernent for a flexible and forward-thinklng approach to trade
strategies by Pakistani decision-makers, businesses and other stakeholders. This synthesis highlights the importance of aligning domestic trade policles
wiith the dynamic shift ocourring in the global arena

As one of the frontier economies, Pakistan encountered & multitude of challenges in the past year, Weak aggregate demand coupled with higher inflation,
severe qurrency depreciation, and a widened current accownt deficit set the stage for tight financial policies right from the beginning of FY-2023,
Compounding these difficulties, Aash floods devastated significant parts of the country, resulting in supply disruptions and significant losses of crucial
crops. Togethes, these occurrences contributed 1o a vear of upheaval for the domestic economy and its various major industries.

Thea soaring inflation rate; reaching an alarming histonical high of 29.4% in June 2023, has exerted a substantial impact on Pakistan's-economic landscape.
Thits inflaticeary surge is exacerbated by a mix of geopolitical uncertainthes; intensifying the difficulties confronting the nation’s econcmy. Additionally, the:
devaluation of the domestic currency has led to increased import expenses, thereby affecting the peices of imported raw materials crucial for various
industrial sectors across Pakistan,

Variations in Economic Growth of Pakistan from 2014 to 2023

Econgmic Growth (GDP. ann. var, %)
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The recently published prefiminary GDP growth mie of 0,29% for the fiscal vear 2023 ightights the influence of these macroeconamic imbalances an the
everall sepnamic perfarmance. The eonequences are particularly condpicuous in the Large Seale Manufscturing [L58) sector which recorded a substantial
year-on-year contraction of 9.9% during FY23, This decline can be attribated to the efects of stringent macroeconemic policies, continually escalating
operationa cxpenses, increxsed borrowing costs, rising energy and utility expenses, & well 33 local economic and political instability, These factors have
collectively exerted significant downward pressure on overall demand. Therefore, it is crucial to Implement sustainable solutions and coardinate
naticnal-level efforts to address these challenges and promote economic stability in the midst of ongokg risks,

Pakistan Gross Domestic Product Growth

Pakistan Gross Domestic Product Growth
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Recent figures from the Pakistan Bureaw of Statistics (PBS) indicate that the cement production expenienced a significant decline of 13.7 percent In FY23
companed to the preceding year. The import of steel and scrap lron also plummeted by 44 percent during FY23, reflecting a sharp showndown in construction
and mdustrial activities. ViFbually all major industries within the Large Scale Manufacturng (L5) sectar reported notewarthy declings in their performance.
Aceording to data frem the State Bank of Pakistan (SEP), imparts of dteel and scrap iran conracted Trom 54959 billion in FY22 to $2.784 billion in FY23,
Analysts attribute this concerning impert trend to a significant devaluation of the rupes impacting demand negatively, and restrictions imposed by the 589
onopening ketters of credit due o rapidly diminishing foreign exchange resenves, A detailed study conducted by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PRCRA)
rivveals that steel consumpdion in Pakistan has been declining far the past seven years when compared to the global average. This gradieal reduction in
consumption aver time underscores the negative impact of inadequate economic policies. .

The IMF's comprehensive Country Report an Pakistan provides valuabfe insights and a well-organized policy framewerk to effectively tackle the current
economic challenges being faced by the nation. The diligant execution of these patices is seen as crucial to improving Pakistan's economic outlook in the
COMiNg years.

Financial Perfermance for the year ended 30 June 2023

The financial year 2023 has indeed been a challenging period for the Company where the effects of adverse econamic conditions, unconducive business
environment and ever increasing coit of deang business including significantly rising finanding codt has badly affected the hnancidl perfermance of the
Company,

A comparison of the key financial indicators of the Company for the year ended 30 fune 2023 with the corresganding wear s as under -

............ i pm mls v
Sales Revenue 45402774 56,184,262
Gaoss Profit 5962764 G401 287
Operating Prafit 4,006, 845 4,384,761
{Lerss) / Profit Before Tax {25,805 2078,064
(Lass) / Profit After Tax [678,443) L325315
iLoss) Earnings per share - basic and difuted fin Rupees) i2.28) 4,46
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During the financial year under discussion, your Company sold a total of 218,279 metnc tans of prinne rebars, This stands in contrast to the 361,588 metric
tons recorded in FY-22, indicating a decrease in the Compary's overall sales volume by 143,309 metric tons, which is 39.63% short frem the previsus
financial year, In terms of vabee, the Cormparny registered sales of Rs45.49 billion a5 compared o Re 58,18 billlan in the pravious fscal year, the reasons for
such decling are mentioned above. This drgp of 21.81%, combined with 2 23.53% reduction in the overall cost of salis, resulted in an 8,1 5% decrease in gross
proft primarily due Lo lower sales wolume when compared with cormesponding year,

Analyzing the revenue breakdown, there wasa slight decline in distribution expenses, This decline was mainly a result of reduced advertising expenditures.
Conversely, administrative expenses roseby 2.06%, primarily influenced by higher depreciation cost and wehdcle fuel cost. Provision for expected credit loss.
witnessed Increase by Rs:114 million due to increase i the ageing of recelvable. Operating profit declined by Rs377 million of 8.63% as compared to
previows year due 1o decline in gross profit by #5209 million and increase in oosts by 27%.

Furthermong, there was a'significant increéase in finance costs, which rosé from Rs2.3 billion kast year to RLA03 billion in FY-23 mopping oul entire
operational profits and leaving the Company inta loss before tax The reason for such An enarmous ingrease in the inlterest cost was due to the increase in
average interest rates from 10%in FY-22 to 19% in FY-23,

As a cumulative consequence of these factors, the Company incurred a koss of Rs.26 million Before tax for the fscal wear, in contrast to.a profit before tax of
Rs. 2,078 million in the preceding vear, Ultimately, the Company posted a net loss after tax of Rs678 million, as opposed to a profit after tax of Rs.1,325 million
in the previous year primarily due to an increase in deferred tax liability on account of recent changes in super tax law In fiscal budget for FY-24.

The persisting macroeconomic imbalances, uncertainty of sumounding govermment economic paficles, overall economic contraction, reduced industrial
granwth, engoing depreciation of the local cumency, mounting Inflationary pressures; additional tax measunes especially the mposition of super tax, and
regulatary adjustrments collectively hindered the Company from fully passing on the rising operaticnal costa. This combination of challenges inevitably
resulted in & decling in the Company's overall profitability. However, in the face of these daunting circumnstancss, your Company thowcased ns resilience
and unwavering commitment to overcoming adversity. Despite the industry-wide downturn, your Company persisted in implementing prudent strategies
and taking decisive actions to mitigate the impact of these challenges on Company’s operstions. Our dedicated team remained agile in proactively
identifying oppariunities to optimize efficiency and strengthen its core capabilities, thus ensuring continwous growth and fang-term sustainability.

Future Gutlook:

The macroeconomic outlook for FY-24 presents an opfimistic phcture as the last government set the GOP growth rate at 2.5% as compared o 0.29%
achieved In F¥-23, Similarly, the anticipated trajectory for the headline Consumer Price Index (CPI) suggests moderation, with expectations for it to remain
betwean 30-22% in FY-24. However, despite these postive indicators, several substantial challenges still requine attention, partioslarhy in the domain of debt
servicing. The cost of servicing debt is anticipated 1o exceed PKR 7.8 trillion, constituting a staggering B3% of the projected revenue of around PKR 9.4
trillion, This allecation stands notably higher than the 10-year average of 45%, leaving a very limited room within the fecal account for even crucial
development expenditures, infrastructune development and several other social welfane initiatives, Furthermoare, any potential increase in the policy rate by
the State Bank of Pakistan could escalate the government’s Borrowing costs, intensifying the burden of debt servicing further,

Amidst the challenges faced In the current economic downturn, your Company s determined ko remaln strong and adaptable, The management team ks
proactively monltering the economic situation and implementing cost-saving measures to enhance the Company's financial position. Despite the
prevailing headwinds, the Company maintains a pesitive cutlock for the future, drawing on market anafysis and Industry forecasts that point towards a
promising turnaround far the steef sector in the coming years, With the anticipation of increasing demand and improved market conditions, the Company
aifms to seize upcoming oppartunities and leverage (s strengths to position itsell for growth,

The Company's umeavering belief in its long-term potential and its confidence in its capacity to rebound when economic conditions improve, sérve s the
fundamental principhes quiding 15 stratégic choices, To accomplish thite abjectives, the Company will persistently focus on improving aperational
efficiencies, fostering innowvation, and exploring fresh business opporiunities,

Maintaining the highest standards of product quality and customer service will remain a top priority. ensuring a solid foundation for consistent growth and
customer koyalty, As the Company steers through these challenging times. it remains dedicated to its vision and values, aiming to emenge from this period
even stronger and mode competitive in the evalving economic landscape. By remaining adaptable and forward-thinking, the Company is well-positioned
to flourish when economic conditlons take a positive turn, conatributing to the expansson and prosperity of Pakistan’s steed industry,

Role of Fakistan Azsociation of Large Steel Producers:

The steet industry holds a crucial podition in the Pakistani econormy, contributing significantly toeconamec growth, government révenues, aivd emplayment
geniration, The steel sector in Pakistan is curently facing & severe crisis caused by & range of econamic challenges. The Pakistan Aseciation of Large Steel
Produciers (PALSP) has persistently called for immediate government action to address the challenges confronting the steel industry to énsure industry's
survival and prevent its potential collapse, The Association has proposed a set of recommendations to combat smuggling steel rebars fram neighboing
Iran and Afghanistan, which includes stricter control and oversight at checkpoints, the adoption of digitalization to reduce cormuption, and the imposition
of penalties on those engaged in illegal trade. This ilcit activity has resulted in substantial revenue losses to the Exchequer, undermined the viability of sales
in the local market and poses a theeat to the sustainability of steel producers.
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Governance:
Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting Framework:

The Board of Directors of your Company i committed to upholding rigorous standards of effective corporate gowernance, The Directors affirm their
adherence to the Corposate and Financial Reporting Framework established by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Code of
Corporate Governance for the following dseas -

tal Thefnancial statements, prepared by the managerment of the Company, present its state of affabs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes.
i egqueity fairky.

i) The Compary has malntained proper books of accounts,

el Appropriste accounting podicies have been consistently applied to prepare the financial statements and accounting estimates ane based on reasonable
and prudent judgments.

fd]  International Financial Reparting Standards, a5 applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followsed in the preparation of inancial statements,

el The system of internal controls is sownd in design and has been effectively implemented and monitosed. The process of monitaring the internal
controls will continue as an ongolng process with the objective 1o further strengthen the controls and bring Improvements in the system,

{f}  There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a gobvg congen.

{g)  There has been na material departure foom the best practices of Corporate Governance, a5 detailed in the Requlations of the Fule Book of the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited,

{h) A semmary of key operating and financial data of the Company is annexed to this annual report.
i Infosmation about tiies and levies i gaven in notes 1o the iinandial statements,

i} The Company has an unfunded defined gratuity scheme for all permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying wears of service
for entithement of gratuity. The provislon for gratulty |s In accordance with the independent actuarial valuwation, The latest actuzrlal valuation was
carried out as of 30 June 2023 using Projected Unit Credit Method. Being an unfunded gratuity scheme, no irvestment could have been made and
hence the value of investments as at 30 June 2023 stands NIl

Board of Directors and its Committees;

The governance at Amreli Steels is 4 combination of procesies established and executed by the Board of Dicectors and the management of the Company,
wihich i refliscted in the Company’s structure and how it managed and led toward achieving its goals as a whaole,

The corporate governance structure of the Company is based on statutony and regulatory compliance requirements that are applicable to companies sted
an the Pakistan Stock Bechange Limited and Company's Artickes of Association complemented by several internal procedures. These procedures include a
risk assessrment and control system, as well as a system of assurances on compliance with applicable laws, regulathons and the Company’s Code of Conduct.

The Board of Directoss of your Company Is highly engaged In maintaining long-term and sustainable value creation founded on durable (decbogies of
governance, The Board comprises of three Independent Directoss, two Mon-Executive Directors and twao Executive Directors.

The Board of Derectors of the Compary ax of 30 June 2023 consists of:

b Mor-Exeoutive Deector 4) Abbas Akberali
¢ Fernale Mon-Executive Director 51 Mariam Akberall
Al
. _ 6) Shayan
Ty Hadi Alvbas Akberal
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During the year, six {06) meetings of the Board of Directors took place. All the meetings tock place in Pakistan, The attendance by each director in the
meetinias is as follows:

Abbas Akberali - Chairman

Teizoon Kisat 0506
Badar Kazmi 0506
Zafar Ahmed Taj 0606
Shayan Akberal| 0606
Hadi Abbas Akbesali® 04704
Mariam Akberali 0506
Kinza Shayan® 022

*Wr, Hadi Abbas Akberali was appointed a5 the Director of the Company by the Board of Directors in their meeting held an 34 February 2023 to All the casus
VACANGY Srose &% i result of resignation by Ma, Kinza Shayan which was approved by the Board of Disectors in the same meeting,

Board's Audit Committee;

The Board's Audit Comimittes ([BAC) monitors the Company's systems of intemal controls and rish management process perodically, assisting the Board in fulfilling
itz oversight responsibiithes pamarily in reviewing regulatory compllance risks and reporting financial and non-finandial information to sharehaolders,

The BAC reviews and challenges, where necessary, the actions and judgments of managerment. The BAL has the autonomy T call for information from:
management and to consult directly with the external auditors or advisorns as considered appropriate, The Chief Financial Cfficer of the Compary attends the BAC
meelings by invitation to present the inferim and anmual accounts. Afier each meeting, the Chairman of the BAC reports to the Board.

Duirireg s yisar, 4ix (D6) meetings of the BAC took place. All the meetings took place in Pakistan. The attendance by eadh directon in the BAC rsetings is a5 follows;

Teizoon Kisat - Chairman 05/06
Badar Kaami (a0
Zafar Ahmed Taji (W0
Kinza Shayan® 03403

*Msz, Kinza Shayan resigned from the Directorship of the Company and her resignation was approved by the Board of Directioss. in their mesting held on 24
February 2033

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:

The purpose of the Human Resources & Remuneration Committes (HRER) is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responzibifities in the field of Human
Resounces, their development, succession planning and compendation and to perform all such responsibilities s are assigned to the HRER Committes by
the Act and the Code of Corporate Governance Regulations. During the year, ane (01] meeting of the HRER Committes took place, The meetings took place
in Pakistan, The CEQ of the Company is & membar of the Board's HRER Committes. The Head of HR attended the HRER Committes meating by invitation.
Thie attendance by each Director in the HRER Committee meeting is o5 follows:

Zafar Ahmed Tap - Chairman

Teizooan Kisak o

Shayan Akberal| o

Anngal Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Committees of the Board:

The Campany ensures te evaive and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices sincerely to ot just boost long term shareholders value
but also to respect minarity rights, The Company considers it as inherent responsibility to disclose timely and acourate information reganding financial
performance as well as the leadership and govermance of the Company. A report on arnual performance evaluation of Board of Directors and its
Cornmittees is part of Chairman's Review which |s annexed in this annual repaort:
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Fernale Directors:

The Compary i committed b promote gender diviersity in the workplace and equal oppoctunities for all, Based on ment and suitability, Female Director
représent 14% of the composition of the Board of Directors af the Company. By having female director on Board, the Company also complics with section
154 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, The Board and management of the Company encourage females to join
the crganization,

Review of CEQ's Performanoe:

The performance of the CEQ s reviewed against pre-delermined operational and strategic goals aligned with the Wision, Misslon and Values of the
Cormpamy. The well-defined appraizal system includes the performance of the business, the accomplishment of objectives with reference 1o profits,
onganization building, succession planning and corporate success

Divegtors’ Remuneration:

The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent prodedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and Code
of Corporate Governance. The remaneration of the Board members is approved by the Board, In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance, it is
ensured that no Director takes part in the proceedings of the Board Meetings in deciding his'own remuneration. The Company does not pay remuneration
to non-executive directors except fee for attending the meetings. The Company's remuneration policies are structured in line with prevailing industry
trends and business practices. The detalls of the Directors and CEO's remuneration are adequately disclosed In respective notes to the financlal statements.

Directors’ Training:

The Board conducts arientation courses for Directors as necessary to familiarize them with their responsibilities as outlined in the Companies Act, 2007, and
the Code of Corpoate Governance, The Company ensunes that new Directors receive appropriate briefing snd orentation materials that provide them with
firsthand knowtedge of the Company's operations,

All Board members have either completed the Directors' Training Program certification or ane exempt from this requirement in accordance with thie Listed
Companies {Code of Corporate Govermnance) Regulations, 2019,

To keep Boand Members Infosmed about changes in Corporate Laws, the Company regularly organizes refresher courses aimed at acquainting them with
recent updates in Corporate Laws and other relovant rules and regulations, These sesshons also extend to senbor executives within the Company.

External Auditors:

The present auditars, Mis, EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants are retiting at the conclusion of the annual general meeting baing held an 24 Cetober
2023 and are not offering themselves for re-appaintment expressing their inability 10 cany cut the audit for the year ending 30 June 2024 based an their
internal procedures, The Audit Committes and the Board have recommendied Ms. BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartersd Accountants as the statutory seditors of
the Company for the year ending 30 June 2024, subject to the appeoval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting of the Company,

M5, BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants {the firm) has confirrmed that it has been awarded a satisfactory rating under the Cusality Contnod Review
Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the firm is fully compliant with the guidelines of the International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC] on the code of ethics, as adopted by the ICAR

The Board of Directors and the management appreciated the retiring auditars for their professional services previded to the Company over the last sisteen
WEArs,

Irvterral Audit:

The Company has an independent Internal Audit function comprising personnel wha are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose
and are well conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. The department is overseen by the Head of internal Audit who functionally
reports to the Board's Audit Committee and administratively reports to the Chief Executive,

Strategic Planning:

The Board of Directors regularly review the strategic direction of the Company In Board Meetings. The Board ensures that short term & long term business
and operational strategles established by the management are i line with the Companys overall business objectives,

Material Changes Concerning the Nature of the Business:
During the finencial year under review, there has been no material change concerning the nature of business of the Company,
Material Changés Between Balance Sheet Date and Reparting Date (Subsequent Events):

There have been no material changes since 30 June 2023 to date of the report and the Company has not entered into any commitment during this period,
wihich would have an adverse Impact on the financial position of the Company.

Pattern of Shareholding:

The Pattern of shareholdings as of 30 June 2023 is annexed with this annual repart.
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Communication with Shareholders:

The Company places high priodty on timely communication with its shareholders, The annual and interm fnancisl resuls are disteminated to all
concemed immediately upon their approval by the Board of Directons s per the compliance requirements,

The Company also has a website [www.amselisteels.com] which, inter-alia, contains up-to-date Information on the Company's activities, financial reports,
niatices-and anmouncements,

The Company has a dedicated ernail ID {Le. investor-relations@amrelisteels.com) to address and glves due pricrity to the queries of its shareholders and take
approprrate measures i resobve their grievances.

Safeguarding of Records:

The Company has.a well-defined system for safequarding of its physical, inteliectual and digital asseis in aneffective manner. The Comipany puts ample impoance
on storage and the safe custody of its finandial records, The Comparty usis SAP a5 an ERP systern for recording its Ainancial information, The access to electronic
dotumentation has been seouned through mplementation of & comprebnsive password probected authorization matrix in SAPERP systém,

As required by the Companies Act, 2017, records of all circular resolutions and minutes of Board Meetings are maintained in physical form for at least 10
years and for good in electronic form. Further, records of membess’ resolutions and minutes of general mestings are preserved both physically and in

electronic form respectively for 30 years and perrmanenthy.
Principal Activities of the Eﬂmpangihmrealmuln-ess]:

The Company is engaged in manufaciurng and selling of steel bars and bilets and is the largest manufacturer of steel reinforcement bars in Pakistan. The
Company’s product portlolio includes high strength deformed baes as per American and British specifications, Armreli Steels iz 150 9001:2008 and PSOCA
certified,

Primcipal Rigk and Uncertainties:

The Company has set up an internal audit function within the Crganizaticn which operates under the Board approved charter and provides independent
and ebjective evaleathons for reporting directly o the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of risk management and control processes, The identified risks
and the respective contral measures in terms of preventive, detective and corrective activities are regularly monitored and reported in a timely manner. The
Company has also formulated policies and proceduses which are considerad avital part of the Company’s risk governance framework o determine risks anid
develop strategies to mitigate those risks. & detailed description on risk and uncertainties is presented in the “Risk Management Report’ wiich is part of this
annual repart.

Modification in the Audit Report:

The External Auditors of the Company have provided a cleanopinion on the state and affairs of the Company and the same is enclosed in this annual report;
and as such, there has been no modification in the Auwditors’Repart for the year under review.

Holding Company:
The Company does not have anry parent company mor a subsidiary company.
Payment Methodalogy:

The Company strongly believes in timely payments of its debas 1o allits sakehelders and has not defaulted an any payment during the outgeing financial
YEar

Internal Control Frameworks

The Board acknowdedges its responsibility towards the implementation of an effective internal control envirgnment throughout the organization. Your
Cormpany has set up an efficient and effective internal audit function which rigorously monitars the contrel environment of the Company. A comprehensive
raport on internal controts of the Company |s presented in this annual report.

Business Continukty Flan:

The Companys comprehensive Business Continuity Flan (BCP) is in pace which includes activities required to keep the organization running without
interruption of normal operations during a period of disaster. The repart on BOP is annexed in this anmaal seport,

Health, Safety and Environment - impact of the Company's Business on the Environment:

The Company Is committed to developing, promoting and achieving the highest standards of Health, Safety and Environment [HSE} to ensure the
wiell-being of people wio work with us as well as of the communities where we operate, The detailed policy of HSE is enclosed in this annual report.

Human Resource Management:

The Company employs a talented workforce that steers the organization towarnds its vision throwgh professional development and motivation, The
Cormpany has been on a journey of Human Resource (HR) ransfermation. The HR strateqy i constantly evalving to meet the needs and challenges of an
arganization operating in an evalving market,
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Employess’ Retirement Benefits:

The Company has an unfunded defined gratuity scheme for all permanent employes wheo have completed the minimum qualifying years of service for
entitlement of gratuity, The provision for gratuity is in accordance with the independent actuarial vahuation, The latest sctuarisl valuation was chrred oul
on 3 une 2023 wing Projected Unit Credit Method,

Activities under Corporate Social Responsibility:

Contribution to the community has been at the core of Amreli Steels since its Inception and the Company strongly believes in improving thie standards of
lving of its employees and the community at large. A comprehensive report on CSR Activities of the Company is part of this annual report with the caption
of “‘Corporate Sockal Responsbility

The Corporate Governanoe Practices:

The Board of Directors of the Company is committed to the principles of good Corporate Governance, The corporate governance practice of the Company
s based on statutory and regulatosy compliance requirements that ane applicable to companies listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and
Company’s Articles of Assocation complemented by several intérnal procedures. The Board is responsible for governing the organization by setling
strategies and objectives of the Company. The management is required to adopt and formaulate policies and guidelines for achieving the said goals and

objectives.
Dividend and Appropriations:

A detailed in this financial report, the Company expenienced a financial deficit of Rs 0678 billion for the year under review: Given this financial shortfall and
considering the volatile and uncertain business environment within the country, the Company regrettably cannat recommend any distribution of cash
dividends for the fiscal year ended on 30 June 2023,

Contribution to Mational Exchequar;

The Company contributed Rs.106 billion (FY 2023 Rs.13.8 billion] towards the Mational Exchequer on account of various govemnment levies, taes and
import dutles in the year under review which dropped by 23% as against last year due to dedline in Company’s sales volumea by 38%.

Code of Conduct:

The Code of Conduct of the Company defines what we stand for and believe in, doocsmenting the uncormpromisingly high ethical standards our Company
has upheld since its foundation: Strong basiness ethics forms the basis for all of our relationships with employees, customers, competitons, suppliers and
colleagues, It is & fundamental palicy af the Company ta conduct its business with honesty, integrty and in accordance with the highest ethical and legal
standards,

Qperating & Financial Data:
Operating and financial data and key ratios of the Company for the last skx years ane annexad o this annual report.
Acknowledgement:

The Board wishes 1o comvey its profound gratitude to esteemed stakeholders, comprising shaseholders, custormers, financial institutions and valued
suppliers for thelr unwavering trust and steadfast support. Your confidence has been instrumental in oaer pursuit of excellence.

Iy addition, the Board would bike to take this apportumty 10 express (15 ancere acknowledgment and appreciation for the dedicatson, tireless commitmeant,
and valuable assistance consistently demonstrated by the management team and dedicated employees. Their relentless efforts have played an integral role
in managing the Company under extremely difficult and trying circumstances

We deeply value the contributions and collaborative spirit of all our stakeholders, and we remain committed 1o upholding the highest standards of
corpoarate governance and ethical business practices 1o ensure that we continee to earn and maintain your trust in the years ahead,

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

_f':f_; st s S
ﬂmmﬂhli-l Teizoon Fisat
{Chief Bxecutive Officer Dérector

22 Sepbernber 2033

Karachi
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AT COMMITTEE REPORT
."i.'\..”._ 4| 1\...'\. VIV T 1 EE :!LFI . .':! ..:I

Introduction

Wi ane pleased to present annual Audit Committee Report which provides an insight into sur work, the issues handled and the focus of the Audit
Committee's deliberations dusing 2022-23. The Ausdit Committes assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilifies in areas such as the integrity of
financial repocting, the effectiveness of the risk managerment and imternal control system and related compliance and governance matters. We are also
responsible for making & recommendation to thie Board on the appointment or reappsintment of the external auditors,

Audit Committee Members
The cammittes cormprises of thres Independent Non-Executive Directars
Chadr: Mr. Teizeon Kisat Independent Non-Executive and finamciabiy-literate® Director)

Members:

Mir. Zafar Alvmed Taji {independent Non-Executive Dirsctor)
M Badar Kazmi lindependent Mon-Executive Director)
M Kinza Shayan (Mon-Executive Directar)

*as defined in the Listed Companies {Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2004, Chapter X, Regulation 38 (THCL

The members of the Audit Committee have the appropriate knowledge, skills and experiencoe to canry oul the tasks entrusted to the Committee by the
Board. The approved minutes of Audit Committes are circulated 1o the Band for information and guidance,

Audit Committee Attendance

During the current year, six {06} meetings were held and attendance was as tabled,
Nami of Member Mumber of Meetings Attended

M. Teizoon Kisn 05

M. Zafar Ahmad Tajl i}

Mir: Badar Kazmi 0a

M. Kinza Shayan 03

Synopsis of Activities

Financial Reporting

The Committee has-a process to review the financial information of the Company when quarterty and annual financlal statements and the reports ane
presented to-the Committes by the CFOL The imancial reporting was assessed (o ensure that credible and reliable information should be timely reported.
Annual and quarterly financial statements wene revipwed prior (o thelr approval by the Board of Directors,

Appropfiate accounting policies have been consistently apphied except for the changes, if any, which have been appropriately disclosed in the financial
statements. Applicable International Financial Reporting Standards were followeed in the preparation of financial staternents of the Company on a going
concern basis, for the Ainancial year ended 30 June 2023, which present fairly the state of affairs, resubts of operations, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company for the vear under review,

Accounting estimates ane bated en reasonable and prodent edgment, Proper and adequate accounting récords have been maintained by the Company in
accondance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the external reporting i consistent with managernent processes and adequate for shareholders needs.

Review of related party transactions

The Audit Committee reviewed the statement of significant refated party transactions, submitted by the management. Audit Committee ensuned the
disclosure of materially significant refated party transactions, During the year 2022-23, the Company has entered into certain related party transactions as
disclosed in the note 45 to the Financial Statements. The details of all related party transactions were placed quarterly before the audit committes of the
Company and upon recormmendations of the Auwdit Committes, the same were placed before the Board for review and approval
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Effectiveness of Internal Control System

The Awdit Committes reviewed, discussed and beiefed the Board on the regular reports on risks, controfs and assurance, in order to menitor the
effectivenass of internal contrals aver financial reporting, compliances and operational maners,

The Audit Committes, on the basis of the internal audit reparts, reviewed the adequacy of controls and compliance shortcomings in areas audited and
discussed corective actions in the light of managament responses. This has enswred the continual evaluation of controls and improved compliances,

External Auditors

Thie Audit Committee is responsible for manitoring the ongoing effectivensss & independence of the external auditars and making recommendations to
the Board with respect to the re-appolntment of external auditors.

The external auditors was alfowed direct access to Awdit Committes. The Audit Committee reviewed the Management Letter issued by external awditors
and the management response thereto, Observations were discussed with the auditors and required actions recorded.

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors without the executive management during the year under review to discuss reservations, if any, arising
from awdit and any matters the external auditors may wish 1o discuss without the presence of management,

On- 16 August 2022, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board re-appointment of external auditors along with fixing remuneration for the year
ending 30 June 2023, The Sharcholders appeoved the recommendation in Annual General Meating held on 20 October 2022 and M5, EY Ford Rhodes.,
Chartened Accountants wene appointed as extermal swditons of the Company for the yeas ending 30 June 2023,

Internal Auditor

The Company has established Internal Ansdit Function, which is responsible for conducting audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s intemnal
contrals, fisk management prodesses and compliance with regulations, The Internal Audit Function is led by "Head of Internal Audit” who possesses the
necescary qualification prescnbed under the CCG Regulations 2019, The Head of Internal Audit has dinect acceds to the Chairman Audit Committee. The
Committes has ensured that the internal audit functbon s adequately staffed with personnel possessing the necessary internal audit acumen. The Intermal
Audit function has unrestricted access to Management and the right to seek information and explanation. The Internal Audit function has camied out its
duties under the Audit Charter defined by the Committes, The Committee has canefully reviewed material findings with management given direction to
engure that necessary steps wire taken fo mitigate ary issues. Head of Internal Audit attends all Committee meetings, during which reports are considered
and discussed indetadl.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct (the Code) of the Company defines what we stand for and belisve in, documenting the uncempromisingly high ethical standards, our
Company has upheld since it was founded, Strong business ethics should form the basis for all of our relationships with employees, customers, competitors,
suppligrs and collepgues, 1t is a fundamental policy of the Company 1o conduct its business with honesty, integrity and in accosdance with the highest
ethical and legal standards,

Here we cleary state our business principles and show thelr impact on everyone invodvied with the Company; from the Board, management and employees,
to the consumers, suppliers and business partners:

Following are the salient features of the Code of Conduct, however the complete code of conduct can be viewed at the Company’s website at the lnk
hitpsyfesnacamrelisteels.comSinvestor-relationsicodeCfConduct

Applicability

The Code applies to the following collectively termid a3 “Company Pertonnel” for the purposes of this Code):
Maembars of the Board of Directors
Senior Managemaent Personnel
All emiployees of the Company

Consequences of Mon-Compliance of Code

Any breach of the Code, terms of appointment, Company’s polices, rules and requiations or any acts of miscondoct and fraud or embezzlement will be
wviewed serioushy and may invite disciplinary action, including the termination of employment and criminal prosecution, if required, For the said parpose, all
Company’s polices and rules will also be deemed to be an intearal part of this Code,

Conflicts of Interest

The Company expects that all personned will perform their dities conscientiowshy, honestly and In accordance with the best inténests of the Companty, The:
Company personnel must not use their posithons or the knowledge gained as a result of thelr pesitions for private or personal advantage.

Regardless of the clroumstances, if Directors/employvees sense that a course of action they have pursued, ar are presently pursuling, of are contemplating
pursuing may tvvolve them ina conflict of interest with thelr employer, they should immediately communicate all the facts to thedr supervisor or to the
Board as the case may be.

Inside Infarmation

The Company personnel shall not use for their own Anancial gain o disclose for the use of others, inside information obtsined as a result of their pasition
within the Comgpany,

The Company personnel may find themselves in violation of the applicable securities laws If they misuse Information net generally kKnown te the public and
either trade os induce others {o trade i the stock of the Company or in the stock of another Company. Specific confidential information would include
financial infoemation, information concemning acquisitions or disposithens of properties and proposed acguisithon or mengers with other companies.

In case of this breach of confidentiality, the Company may be subjected to regulatory penatties and therefore, to prevent and address such instances, it may
consider disciplinary and legal recourse.

Health and Safety

Wi recognize the importance of bealth and safety within our basiness, We seek to provide a healthy, safe and clean working envisonment in line with local
Laws, regulations and industrial practice. We measure, appralse and report performance, as part of our commitment to the health and safety of our
employees; contractors and everyone whio works on or visits our sites.

‘We should take such steps as are reasonably practicable, to ensure that they meet owr health and safety objectives. These are -

+  Toprovide and maknitain safe and healthy working places and systems of work in order to protect all Company personnel and others, including visitors
and the public, in £ far as they come into contact with foresesable work hazards,

+ Toprevide and maintain @ sale and healthy working environment fod all Company personned, taking mto account individuald' needs and abdities,

To develop safety awareness amongst all Company’s personnel to enable them to take reasonable care for their cwn health and safely and of other
people who may be affected by their 015 or omissions.
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Consumers

We are committed to providing consumers with high-guality, wholesome produects which are marketed truthfully, labeled cleady, and, as a minimum, rmeet
domestic and global quality and safery reqgulations.

Suppliers

The Company is confident that its suppliers desite 10 operate in an érvironment that is free from influence dee t unethical business practices, Therefore,
suppliers ane expected to conduct basiness in a manner that would rat. in any way, comparomise the ethical principbes adopted by the Company, Ta ensune
this, the Company may convey |ts ethics requisements to its suppliers directly and also hold trainings and orentations for this purpose,

Integrity and Professionalism

The Company personnel should rememibser that they are a reflectéon on the Company and are constantly being judged or otherwise appratsed by everyone
they come in contact with. All Company Personnel should conduect themselves with the highest degree of integrity and professionalism in the workplace o
ary other location while on Company business.

Community Activities

Wi recognize our responsibilities as a memier of the communities in which we operate and commit resources ta support community and social investment
through national or locally targeted programs in partnership with others, We will also encourage and support employee efforts to be ivolved in and
provide leadership in the educational and social fabric of the commaunities in which they live,

Protection of the Environment

The Company personnel shall treat the pretection of the environment as an integeal factor in all decision making. The Company B commitied to the
pratection of the environment. To comply with this commitrment, the Company’s policy IS to maet or exceed all applicable govermmental requirements.
Emplayees must repart 1o their superior all circumstances in which texic substances ane spilled or released into the enviranment,

Vielations of environmental Laws, even if unintentional, can carry severe penalties, and could result in the prasecution of the Company ar the employess
involved or beth, Failure to comply with the Company’s instructions for the pratection of the ermdrenment may result in disciplinary actions,
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The Company is committed to the highest standards: of transparency, honesty, openness and accountability. In order to ensure compliance with the best
practices of the Corporate Governance, the Company has incorporated a Whistleblowing Policy (*the Policy”) o detect, identify and report amy activity
which is not in line with the Company polices, any misuse of Company’s propertées or any breach of law which may affect the repatation of the Company.

The Policy applies to all employees, managemment and the Board and extends to every individual assodated with the Company including contractors,
suppliers, business pariness and the shaseholders who are encouraged to report serious concerns that could have a significant Impact on the Organization,
such as

unkieful civil or criminal offence;
falure to comply with statutory obfigations/requirements;
financial or nen-financial mismanagement, fraud and carmuption, induding bribery;
violation of various corporate policies-gowverning business conduct;
violation of health, safety & environmental standards applicable to the business;
harassment, discrimination orother unfair employment practices:

= attempt to conceal or suppress information eelating to the above,

Open and candid communication is an impartant part of our eulture. All concerns ane 1o be made in wriling 1o ensure a dear understanding of the issues
bseing raised Whistleblowess may report their concerms thiough the fallowing methods:

E-mail - whistieblowing@amrelisteels.com which shall only be accessible to the Whistleblowing Unit.
Mail = Captioned "Whisthebowing Unit’ - Registered Dffice, A-18, 50.T.E. Karachl,
The Whistleblowing Unit shall comgrise of the CEQ and such other sentor officials of the Company nominated by the Board of Directors.

Every effort will be made to maintaln the confidentiadity of complainants and to protect them from any form of retaliation, reprisal or victimization for
genuinely held concerns that are ralsed in good faith. At the same time, it should be noted that unfounded allegaticons made recklessly, mallciously or
krowing that they were false can expose the complainant to disciplinary action

It is expected that all complaints will be lodged with proper identification, Anonyrmoos complaints will also be sccepted, however, the decision 1o take them
wip lies with the Whistleblowing Unit depending on their nature and urgency.,

The Company undertakes that all complaints will be investigated confidentially by independent persens and feedback will be provided to the complainant.
Defiberatety making a false concern is also an allegation under this Palicy and may lead 1o a disciplinary action against the complaimant.

The Board reserves its right to amend or modify this Policy inwhole or in part, at any time without assigning any reason whatsoever,

POLICY FRAMEWORK FOR DETERMINING REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Arneeli Speels atways strives to attract and retain professionals with high expertise to operate business with determination and dedication which ereates.
wabue for its shareholders, The objective of the policy frarmework is to provide fair, transparent and sound remuneration policy that is aligned with business
strategy, nisk and responsibifities 1o ensune that shareholders remain informed, conbdent in the management of the Company and 19 support positive
cateome acress the ceanamic and social context in which the Company operates,

The remuneration palicy attracts, motivates and retains qualified members of the Baard of Directors to align the interests of the Board of Directors with the
interests of the shareholders in such a way that it does not impair the independence of the respective Board Members.

POLICY FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A compiete and updated list of related parties is being maintained by the Company. All transactions with related parties are carried out on an unblased and
arm’s length basls as per policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. A complete st of all related party transactions is compiled and
submitted to the Audit Committes every quarter. The Internal Audit Function ensures that all related party transactions are canried on an arm's length basis.
Alfter resdew by the Audit Cammites, the transactions ase placed befgre the Board for their consideration and approval. All transactions with related parties
are disclosed in the inanclal statements.

POLICY OF SECURITY CLEARANCE OF FOREIGN DIRECTORS

The Company is commitied to the well-being of its Board and has in place various protocols and procedures to ensure the safety and securlty of Its Board
Members including Foreign Directors, however currently the Company does not have any Foreign Director at Board,
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STATEMENT ON MECHANISM OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE AND DELEGATION OF
AUTHORITY TO MANAGEMENT BY BOARD

The Directors are fully aware of the level of trust entrusted in them by the shareholders for managing the affairs of the Company and safeguarding their
interests, Theneby, the Board exercises its pownsrs and carres out its Rduciary duties with 3 sense of objective judgment and independence in the bes
interests of the Company. The Board participates actively in major decisions of the Company including but not limited to appointment of key management,
rindewing the annual business plan, approval of budgets for capital expenditures, investments in new ventures, approval of related party transactions,
review of matters recommended / reported by Board's Committees, review of status of any lw suits and report on governance, risk managemaent and

compliance issees, The Board also monitors Company’s operations by approval of interim and annual inandal statements and dividend, review of Internal
and extemnal audit observations regarding Internal controls and their effectiveness.

The Board has constituted Committees of Directors and management with adequate delegation of powers to effectively focus on the Bsues and ensune
expedient resolution. These Committees meet as often as required (o oversee the performance in respective areas. Each Commities has its own charber with
goals and responsibilities.

The Cammittees of the Board include Audit Cormmittee and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee, The Board meets at least once  quarter. The CEO,
CFO and other mémbers of the Executive Committine andor other employees atténd the meetings of the Board at the invitation of the Chairman for the
purpase of reparting or imparting information, The Committees report on their activities and results 1o the Board, The Board has delegated the executive
management of the Company ta the CEO for smoeth operation and day to day business affairs of the Company.

ANNUAL ?‘EF:.*T[:}F%{ILM'}.E‘&U EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, MEMBERS
ANDTHE CEO
The Company ensures to evolve and follow the corposate governance guidelines and best practices sincerely to not just boost long term shareholders’ valie

bt also bo respect minority dghts. The Company considers it as inherent responsibility to disclose timely and acowrate information regarding financial
performance as well as the leadership and governance of the Company.

The Board of Directors at Amrell Steels has recogrized that it would be imperative for them to continually assess how effectively the Board, its Committees,
miembers and CEQ are perforrming their noles against their respective objictives as o critical structural tool for assessing Board's effectiveness and efficiency
as reguired urnider the Listed Companies (Code of Conporate Governance} Regulations, 20019,

The effectiveness and performance of the Board, its Committees, Members and CED Is evaluated on following factons -

Board Structure: Its compasition, constitution and diversity and that of its Committees, competencies of the members, Board and Commitiee charters,
frequency of meetings, procedures;

= Dynamics and Functioning of the Board: Information availability, ineractions and commumication with CEO and senior executives, Board's agenda,
cohediveness and the quality of participation in Board meetings;

Busingss Strategy Governance: Role of Board in Company's stritegy;

Financial Reporting Process, Internal Audit and Internal Controls: The integrity and robustness of the financial and other controls regarding related
party transactions on arm's length basis;

Monitoring Role: Monitoring of polickes, strategy implementation and systems;
= Relationship: Assessment of quality of relationship between the Board and its Committees;
« Supporting and Advisory Robe;

The Chairperson’s Role;
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HOW THE ORGANIZATION IMPLEMENTED GOVERNANCE PRACTICES EXCEEDING
LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

The term “Governance” refers to a system of Companys management that focuses on responsibality, transparency and sustainable value creation. It
enoompaises the management and manitoring system of the Company, including its organization, business principles and guidelines, as well as internal
and external controls and monitoring mechanisms,

At Amredi, the Boand of Directors are committed towands the principles of good corporate governance across the Company thigagh its tep management,
Thie Board and management of the Company always foous towards the stakeholders expectation that the Company is managed and supervised responsibly
and proper internal controls and risk management policy and procedures are in place for efficient and effective operations of the Company. safeguarding
of assets, compliance with laws and regulations and proper financial reporting in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and other
applicable laws.

The Board encowages high standards of professionalism, ethical practices, accountabdity and transparency. in line with the global best practeces and
statutory requirements which are embedded in the Company’s governance structure through implermentation of sound internal contrals, Code of Conduct
and Whistle Blowing Policy of the Company to provide long-term benefits to.all stakeholders. The Board being cognizant to its responsibiity has established
a robust governance mechanism surpassing the legal and requlatony requirements which regulary evaluate the processes 1o ensune growth in stakeholders
vahue Besides safeguarding the interests of mindsity shareholders,

The Company conducts its operations in accordance with principles of good corporate governance and provides timety, regular and reliable information on
its activities, structure, inancdial situation and performance to all shareholders, The Company continuoasky strives towards Improving sound governance,
best management and C5R practices in day-to-day business activitkes.

PRESENCE OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD'S AUDIT COMMITTEE (BAC) AT THE
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)
The Chalrmian of Board’s Audit Committes - Mr, Teizoon Kisat (an independent Director) was present in the 38th AGM of the Company which was held on 20

October 2022, to answer questions on the Audit Committee’s activities and matters within the scope of the Board's Audit Committee, AN queries ratsad by
shareholders at the AGM were duly answered by the Chainman, Directors, CEOQ and CFO present in the meeting upto satisfaction of the sharehoiders,

STATEMENT ONTHE MANAGEMENT’'S AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS ' RESPONSIBILITY
TOWARDS THE PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management it responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statermnents in sccordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan and the réquirements of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal controls a5 mansgement determines i
necessary o enable the preparation of fimancial statements that are free from matedal misstaterment, whether dug to fraud or errar

In preparing the financial statemients, managenment is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as & going concern, distlosing, s
applicable, matters related to-going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management efther intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic afternative but to do so;

The Board of Directors ane responsitle for cverseeing the Cormpany’s financlal reporting process.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Board of Directors of the Company are dedicated in maintaining high standards of good corporate governance. The Directars confirm compliance with
the Cofporate and Financial Reporting Framewaork of the SECP and the C0G for the following matters -

a)  The financial statements, prepared by the mansgement of the Company, [ty present its state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flaws and
changes in equity;

bl  Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company;

Appropriate accounting polickes have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accownting estimates are based on
reasonable and predent judgments;

dl International Financial Reparting Standards, as applicablein Fakistan, have been duly followed in preparation of Ananchal statements;

el The systemm of intérnal controls is sound in design’ and has been effectively implemented and monitored. The process of monitoring the intemal
controls will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system;

Fi Thire are ne doubts upon the Carmpany's ability to continue as going concern;

gl There has been no maternial departure from the best practices of Corporale Governance, as detailed in the Regulations of the Rule Baok of the Pakistan
Steck Exchange Limited;

hl A summary of key operating and financial data of the Company is annesed in this Annual Repart;
il Infosmation abouwt taxes and levies is given innotes 1o the financial statements;

it TheComparny has an unfunded defined gratuity scheme for all permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying years of service
for emtitlement of gratuity, The provision for gratuity is made in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation, The latest actuarial valuation was
carried out a5 of 30 June 2033 using Projected Unit Credit Method, Being an unfunded gratuity scheme, no investment could have been made and
hence the value of investments as ot 30 Junie 2033 stands Nik
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RESILIENCE AT THE PEAK

FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS







SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

FINANCIAL FOSITION
Property, plant and equipment 1261 21578 20146 17651 Y066 15520
Rigtht-of Lesr st 136 T 09 72 . .
Iritargite st 7 12 12 L a2 8
Lo erm innvestimients 14 14 15 15 15 15
Loww-term deposit andloans 19 204 152 135 138 136
Cument assets 17558 21463 15,934 17,345 12306 10535
Total Assets A7 43,348 306,365 35243 547 26,643
Finanee By
Share capital and retenes 14562 15255 13841 10951 12196 12880
Lawng-term labadtios
Lowng-tern financing 3705 w521 a4g21 5430 1507 ]
Cument portion of long-term financing 1800 1354 115 a2 1.187 775
5505 5175 5,950 &40 2593 2580
Mon-curnent and deferred Exbiites 21 1.750 1116 a4z 1360 1162
Cirmerit Rakslities 19773 21523 6458 18015 14475 10,336
Cuirrent poetion of long term finanding {1,800) {1.354) (1,124 812} {1,187 (773
17aH 0165 15,350 17204 13288 9621
Total Funds Invested 40,172 43348 36,366 35,243 70,547 26,643
OPERATIONS
Tumaover-net A5493 58,184 39218 4.532 28596 1550
Carorss o 5962 6491 4542 1813 243 2758
Operating profit 007 4385 32 356 1,195 1871
EBITDA 4535 5100 3549 1229 1892 2305
(L) profit befiore tax 26) 2078 1,384 {1943 157) 1394
(L) profit after - 78] 1326 L6 (1242 3 1585
Tetal comprohensdee (loss). imoome 5% 1314 2550 {1,246} 17 2328
Capital expenditures 1616 L158 LT3 1,368 2132 2916
(Livss per share)  Earnings per shane: 235 446 451 (a1} a1 534
Cash Flow Summary
Net cash genesated from/ used in) operating activities 7040 2.190) 2440 {4003} 743 2219
Mt cash e in irvesting actihvitios {1,569 [FRE RE 11,367} 2137 (2804
Mot cash fursed inl /- generated from fnanding activities {5,492 4514 (1,596} 5815 1404 5304
Increase [ idecrease) incash and cash equialents 511 185 701} 452 16 [+
Cash and cath eauivalents atend of the year {1.20) (1650 [1,846) {1, 14) 147 13
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VERTICAL AMNALYSIS

BALANCE SHEET

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital fsvd Roserves

Share capital

Capital reserves

Revenue reserves - acourmsated profit
Actuaial koss on gratuity fund

Frenahzation surpius.on peopenty, plant and equipment

R Curment Liabdties.
Ly terrri financing

boney terrn prowision

Loy frem pedated parties

Dreferred liabdity - defined berefit obligation
Drefemed taxation

L fianbalitie

Govemiment grant

7.3 G5 a17 843 1005 1115
G54 A3 757 751 B 1047
1307 1353 1230 F ] 1309 1774
022 417 a1 017 009 15
07 H56 1038 649 794 i
3625 3519 3833 07 A28 4834
932 1112 1326 1541 510 a7
037 036 046 000 000 [Ty 3]
000 079 094 og7 095 Q0o
113 45 ] on Q70 L]
256 148 a5e 051 59 i
030 017 023 018 000 0o
055 035 (1104] oo 000 T4 4)
1453 15.16 1633 17581 573 1264
1240 1439 1396 1059 1206 an
119 178 137 m 005 090
(i) (i) (i1 002 002 o
199 120 an 154 119 051
/3 i i 3380 3076 2647
A48 112 an 230 402 0
0.0 03 006 o0z 000 Q00
a0 010 003 o 000 (1]
000 (i1 4] a0 000 000 0
079 a0 o 000 a0 (701
4922 4965 4534 5102 4559 3902
100.00 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000
S542 4378 5540 56,08 5742 5828
002 (TiE) oS 007 an 010
(T 003 004 o 005 06
e 18 038 o 000 000
045 047 042 038 047 051
5679 50Uk 56.19 SO.7E SB05 5896
648 636 400 478 453 136
1767 2542 16,48 217 2208 ZR00
1238 1254 1738 1350 1152 &7
ol 0.2 (1] 008 006 ({Te:]
053 00 a7s 150 043 085
005 0 006 182 01z a7
LFa) Y] 400 351 FNF 148
058 a2 1.04 145 050 049
437 4351 4381 4922 95 4104
100.00 10000 100,00 10000 10000 10000
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

BALANCE SHEET
EOUNTY AND LIABILITEES
Share Capital Asvd Rosorves
Shane capital il ] il Ll Q0. 000 ile s}
Capital oo 00 00 Q0 Q.00 ele ] (00
Reerioe reperves - accurnulated profit 104G 31,19 SOE% -2R30 -1258 T
Actueeial lorss on gratuity fund 1855 1783 652 670 3946 na
Revaluation sUTpiLs on peopenty: plant and equipment 170 BF:E) =15 307 3 k=l
454 %43 FIE]] 101 <531 1556
Mon Current Liabdties
Loy term fnancing -23.15 00 1122 He034 REL i HEET
Loyt prcesisinn -497 1A% 100G Q.00 Qo0 il
Lo reoem redatecd parties 10000 000 0.00 2190 100,00 00
Diefesmed labdity - defined berefit cbligation 1246 T 237 2am 3195 a2
Drefiemed taxaton GO O 1845 a4 QI St
Lizase liabadities 6819 4477 1359 100,00 000 1
Govemment grant 123561 1834758 E787 10000 000 £y
-11.18 1067 541 11829 ~14.59 T4
Current Liabiities
Trarde and other payabies 2008 2287 3607 481 [ 12841
Contract Eabilies =305 S <AL 24189 1676 5155
Uinclaimed deddend 275 159 454 £57 1157 7537
Interest / mark-up accred 5354 G4 5374 £3.76 16007 1456
Shaor terrm bomoeings 58 nn 047 308 2885 8443
Current portion of lng-term financing X295 1987 306 3181 5306 aaEs
Cuirrenit portion of baase Rabiities TS A 16125 100,00 Qo0 L
Current portion of govermnment grant. -3631 2413 19643 100000 rle) 000
Current maturity of refated party 10000 000 a0 0.00 000 il
Taneathon - ret {14 000 a0 000 Quiod OO0
£13 3053 47 2446 3033 10267
TETAL ECUITY AND LIABILITIES 733 1920 319 1028 1050 4632
ASSETS
Mon-Current Assets
Progserty, plant and equepment 118 FAN 1404 404 935 2673
Irtangide assets =441 3525 -F325 2399 1445 3670
Lemaptemy investrmients (T3 4] 454 e Ty ) 00
Right of use assots T 384 4R 10000 000 000
Long-aerm dhispasits and loans 504 3390 1258 202 158 431
333 711 1416 436 019 2649
Currest Assets
Seoves and spares S53 B335 <1352 5483 53482 G
Seochein-trade =35.58 B3AT 2331 1980 1256 et
Trade debits 21 4331 e 40 2034 285
Loand and achances MBE 5699 1773 5382 1954 521
Oehwer regemiables 79312 £300 47 87 21440 1392 ZREG
Trische chieprsits & shert berm progments -3357 4R35 D672 168879 1875 a5
Tawaition - et 382 2147 1762 5405 10453 10000
Cash and bank balances -23481 573 ~25058 249641 1215 B84
1820 3470 H.14 3993 1336 BHE4
TOTAL ASSETS 733 1920 319 1928 1050 4632

115 | INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023



VERTICAL ANALYSIS

PROFIT OR LOSS
Tumaowver-ret 100,00 100100 0000 10000 10000, 10000
‘Costofsales B 4 AT a317 B 5% £220
Gross profit 130 1116 11.58 653 848 1780
Chistribwation costs 232 207 241 -257 251 249
Adriinistrative expenses -145 -126 <141 -1.90 161 -235
Rewirsal of / [allowance forl expected credhit hosses 026 am 08 o 014 034
et income 02 04 006 003 a0z @15
Otherexpenses 018 032 432 036 D06 070
‘Operating profit 881 7.54 7468 134 418 1207
Finance costs 86 196 415 867 441 A0
Profit befors taation 006 357 353 -732 033 900
Teaticn -143 -12% 004 264 03z 123
Profit after tasation 149 238 349 A58 a1 1023
Dthwer comprehensive (lossh/ ncame 0103 02 414 Q0 006G 479
Total comprehensive loss) / Income 152 .36 762 -4.70 006 1502

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

PROFIT OR LOSS

Tumonver - et -2181 4436 478 722 8448 1660
Cost of sabes 2353 907 w28 555 10540 178
Gross profit 815 4151 15051 2515 EFRT] 11.76
Distribution costs 1619 0 364 480 85,75 1437
fdrministrative expenses 206 170 1018 502 A5 2140
Reversal of / [allowane for expoctisd credit bosses 210 -107A4 13757 E 2433 035
Qther income 6608 151 19531 1508 G852 639
Ot espnises, 5489 0562 315 43315 as61 558
Orperating profit BE2 4558 74541 7009, 3611 1025
Finance costs TAAD 4170 220 215 16500 B33
Profit befare taxation 10125 50,15 EFiF:) 279308 10482 352
Taiattion 1320 469575 10224 B0 4760 151 39
Profit aftier taxation 15118 342 210,16 -3683.96 -97.93 4759
Other comprehensive (oash/ ncorne 2158 10071 4259479 7632 10215 313580
“Torkal comprishensh (hoas) / Income -15270 5605 340,01 749033 9938 121,84
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

CASH FLOW

Net cash genesated from/ (used in) operating acthities 1::3&5 -liaz 348 -a67 40 36007
Net cash used in investing acthvities 3920 1154 163 s 13384 4753
et cash jused il / generted from finandng acthaties 13545 2435 224 1262 B BaE
Increase | idecreass) incashand cash equivalents 00 100 100 100 100 100

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

CASH FLOW

Mt cash genevated from (used in) operating acthities 421 -190 -181 634 134 A1
Mot s uesieed i irvessting activities 26 ar 16 -36 a7 29
Net cash (used inl / generated from finanding activities 22 326 13 35 RE 2924
Increase fidecrease) in cash and cash equivalents 122 -126 = | T4 -120
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Firincial Position, Perfrmaince & Cash Flosws
Statement of Financial Position
Shareholders Equity:

The Comparnys shareholders' equity hasexhibetied a diverse set of trends over the past
sbx wears, influenced by a confiwence of factors. Between FY 18 and FY 20, resendes
chidndle from R 1288 billon tofs. 10,95 billon, primariby stirbuted to a decreased
profitin FY 19 and divickend payouts during thas period, Additionally, FY 20 reconded
loess cue b Conid- 19 shutdon, further diminkshing the equity: However, during Py 21
and FY 22, shareholders’ equity expenenced growth due to peofit generation and an
inecrirse in suirphus resulting froen the rvaluation of feed assets, In FY 23, sharsholder
equity witnessad a dacine of Rs, 623 million, primaiby dven by a net boss incumed by
thae e oif thee yeas, atiributatbde to challenging and adverse ecomomic conditions and
paitical uncertainty in the country throughout the year,

Mon - Cument Liabilithes:

Within the category of non-cument Eabilities, there are variety of dlements such as
taniation, lease obligations, and government grants. Cher the period spanring from FY
T8 e FY 23, the trajedtory of non-current liabiities exhibited & combinatian of
flurtuations. The notable uptick in these Babilities can be primasity attributed to the
availing of terrm loans for permanent worldng capial and o fund capital expenditunes
for Solar project under refinancing schems and BMR aiming o reduce cost of
prochuction under ITERF faclity of State Bank of Pakistan, Furthes, incroage in FY 22 and
F¥ 23 represents increase in-defiemmed tax Kability due to imposition of super tao,

Current Liabifities:

Cunfent liabilites encompads shon-tenm bormosings, trade and other panables
wrckairned divichends, and the curent portion of longrtenm bormowing, Th surge in
curent Eabilities can be attributied primarly to short-term bormewings and trade and
miscelianeous payabies, which encompass financial suppert from klarmic banks,
specifically in the form of Murabaha financng, The fuctuations in shornt-termn
borowings mirmgs the fluctuations in working capital requirerents, influenced by
changes in capacity utilization, imported -sorap prices, oumency depreciation and
iy ingeut Coats throughout the given period.

Mo = Curment Assets:

This includes property, plant, and equipment, long-term deposits, long-temm
imvestments, and intangible assels. Notably, property, plant, and equipment have
conditenthy 'grown in vahee from FY 18 00 FY 23 This growth can be attributed 1o
several strategic initiathves, induding the acquisition and installation of a new roling
mill with an annual capacity of 425,000 MT, 3 substantial expancion in billet
ranufaciuring capacty from 200000 tons to 600000 tons per annum, the
acaquisition of land and the constrsction of warehoauses in Labore and klamabad, the
instafation of a 7.1 MW solar poweer plant at Dhabej, acquisition of new head office
and vainous other propects detignid to enhance production efficiency and reduce
production coMts.
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SIX YEARS AMNALYSIS

Finaincial Position, Performaince & Cash Flows
Current Astets:

Thee curent assets of the Cormpany encompass stones and spages, stock in irade, trade
debits, prepaid expenses, and cath and bank balances. Notably, thene has been a
substantial ise in the Company’s peocuction capacities and sakis valumes during the
FY 13 to FY 22 Consequently, thr cument asets have exhibited 2 compounded
anmsal growth mte of 184%. This growth is primaily attributed to the increase of
stock In trade, which escalated from Rs. 7.4 billon in FY 18 1o Rs. 1101 bilkon in Py 22,
Thils increase can be pttributed 1o amplified capacty UBERAGON, cumency devaluation,
ard an updwing in input codts. Howesern, in FY23, stock in trade doontased by Rs, 3.9
biion on account of redwoed capacity utilization due 1o economic downfum.
Furtherrrore, irade debts surged from Rs, 1.78 bllion in FY 18 to s 4.9 bilion in FY 23
which i in fined with the overall ingrsase in Congany's 1op lne.
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Firincial Position, Perfrmaince & Cash Flosws

Statement of Profit or Loss
Sabes:

The Cormpany has achieved a robust comipound annual grosth rabe JCAGR) of 2400
in sales revende dnce FY 18 Gl FY 23 This remarkable revenue geowth can be
aftributed 1o both an increase i sales volurnes and prices, driven by inoeased
demand for constructon matenals. The Company B continuowsly increasing its
footprints across the country and has significantly augmented its market share inthe
piartherm negean, surging from 19%in FY 18 1o an irpressive 43% by FY 23,

Mo, during FY 23, 3 confheente of adverse facton, induding recond nflation of
2, rupee devaluation moee than 0%, high bomowing cost of 22% and political
irstabiling have cverall compressed the national demand. Consequenthy. in FY 23 the
Compary witnessed asignificant decine in neven o by 22% mainty due to decreasein
s volumee by 38% when cormpaned to FY 22

Cost of Sale;

The cost of goods sold represents a consistent upwand trend fiom FY 15 to FY 22,
paraliel o the growth in sakis rissniue, Th prime rsasond for the inonsase in the <ost
of sales from FY 19 to FY 22 reflects increased capacity utiization and series of cost
increased Le. rupee devaluation, increass in intemational cormmodity peices. after the
resurription of global ecanomy post-COVID-19, Russia - Ukraine condlict, K-Electric
changes and cost of other input due 19 all time high inflation. Howewe, in FY 23,
-decrease in oost sale represents bow capacity utilization from 61% o 358% dwe to
reasons discussed abowve. On the other hand, cost of sale per Ton has inoneased
enormously due 1o significant upee devaluation of mone than 400%, enengy prices
from average of Rs, 19 per unitto Rs. 23 perunit and Yo' inflation of 29%

Gross Profit

Fresm FY 1810 FY 20, the gross mangin started to decline from 17.8% to 683% due to
the contraction of the econonTy;, a dedine in the country's GOR, Covid- 19 lockdown,
FroamFY 21 to Fy 22, the geoss profit irrgeoved both in terrms of margin bo an average
of 11.37% and in absobute terms from R 18 Gallion to Ra 6.5 bilkon becauss of an
impeovement 0 economic conditions and inoease in demand for corstnuction
marteriall post Covid- 19, In FY-23 gross profit dedined from Rs. 6.5 bidlion to Rs. 59
bl e 1o lower cale volurnes however, i term of manging i has imgeonved to
3.7 1% due 12 bidber price neténdion,

Aciminéstrative Cost;

COrver the Frve-year perod from FY 3018 to FY 3023, adminisirathae expenses swiged
fraim Rs. 349 million to Rs. 751 million, However, when considertd as a percentage of
tota sales, thene was an improverment from 2.25% in FY 201810 1.65% in FY 2023, The
increase in absofute tepms represents the inflationary increase in oost over the period,
an increase in the Comparny’s operational cost due to-an incréase in production
capacities inchuding a significant increase in the number of emplovees (o support
expanding openations of the Comparmy.
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ﬁﬁnﬂﬂFPt:ﬁ[hmPerﬁmnm&Cash Flows

Distribution Cost:

Diistrifution coits aligned with thi: Company's growth in sales revenue from FY 2018
1o FY 2023, Despite the distribution-to-sales ratio declining from 24%% in FY 201810
2.3%% In FY 2023, the absolute distribution costs have risen during this period. This
increase can primandy be attributed to inoeased expenditures on advertising, sl
and promotions, Additionalty, the Company o cxpanded its presence natiomwide
and extended its distribution operations in the northem region, resulting inincreased
expendes for cartage and transportatson. The upward trend i ansportation changes
s fuirther exacerduted by ring fuel costs Fusthirmones, there has béen an increase in
silaries and wages over the years, diiven by the growth in human: resounges. and
inflationary ircrease in labor costs.

Finare Cost:

The Fnance cost incorporates inberest payments on both short-term and long-term
boromvinigs, akong with vaniows other finandal charges. The Comparny has witnessed a
subsrantial upswing in its finance costs, with a compounded annual grosth rate of
53% spanning from FY 20038 to FY 2023, The primee eexson for the increase in finance
Costs was short-temm bormosings & inberest rates. The short-term bomowings from FY
18 to FY 23 were increased due to increased working capetal requiements a5
menticned abcmae uncher the heading of cument asset” The Company also ebthined
long-term loans to fund permanent working capital and 1o fund some of its capital
expendinees on vanous progedts. in FY' 23, the increase [ prinnasily attributabde o an
Imcrease i intesest rabe Troen an awerage of 10% @ FY 22 o 18.5%n FY 23

Taxation:

Taxabion expenes have exhibited luchations with the changes in profitability.
Dariteg the period spanning from FY 2018 1o Y 2020, thx risdrall occurmid ah it
of the company benefiting from tuc credits related to fts imestments in the newly
instalied rofling mill and billet capacity expanshon at Dhabejl, i accordance with
sections 65(B) and 65(E} of the Ineonne Tax Ordinaroe 2000 Additionally, difemed tax
assets were recogniaed resulting from taable lodses and axcess minimum tax over
current tax lability, as stipulated by section 113 of the Encome Tax Ordinance 2001,
Hoveeves, [0 FY 2000, taxation expenses emenged due 1o the expiraton of the
prinvicaesdy avadid section S5(E] credins from 2018 and the utifization of taxabhe ks
folkweing a retum b peofitability, a5 -explained eafier. In FY 2022, the tax expense
escalated due bo the imposition of a super tax, which led toan increase in the tax rate
from 259 1o 33%. Finally, in FY 23, the tax expense has increased due 1o reision in
SUpsr T ratis in fizcal buget 2023-24 resulting in recognition of defemed t lalility
ot 300

Mt Profit:

The Campary achiined positive net profits in FY 2008 and FY 2019, but faced losses in
P 2000 and FY 1023, as presiously disoussed in this analysis. The net peohit for FY 2009
dedined to Rs. 32 millon due o the sudden depradation of the nupee, leading to a
significant increase: in the Compary's production costs, Furthermcre, fnance costs
surged with inenest rates rising by over 1008, and dernand contracted during this

pericd,

In FY 2000, the SConainic dowmiuim persisted due 1o the factors detailed earkes in this
analyss including Covid-19 keckdowr, resulting in a net loss of Rs 1.2 bilion for the
Company. Moving on o FY 2021, the Compary reboundad strongly, neconding a ned
profit of As 1.3 billion, primanlly driven by increased demand spomed by govemmsent
st s parckages airmed af boosting the cormstruction industry

F¥ 2022 showerased a mitesd perfonmance in terms of profitabdlity for the Compamy.
Wil thoer farst i rnocithe of the year revnared robee, the Ut quanes witnessed &
dhoreeniliim, resaulting bna net profit figuine of Rs 1.3 bllicn, ratching the peevious year's
perfomrmancs,

Heremres, in FY 2023, the Company reparted a net loss of R 678 million due (o reduced
dermand caused by the factors discussed abowe in this anahysis. which led to a dedine in
sabes volumie, This wars exscerbated by inflation-driven increases in oouts, 4 substantial
Tise In uiiity expenses, recond high interest rates and increase in super By rabes,
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ﬁﬁnﬂﬂFﬁJﬁmm Performance & Cash Flows

Staternent of Cash Flows.
Cash flow From Operating Activities:

in FY 2018, the Comparny peocwed snfficant gquanities of feel sorap 10 meet the
increased requirernent arising Fom the commencement of operations at 3 new
rollineg il im Déhabsefi. This decishon bed to a negative cash flow for the yea In FY 20719,
the: company managed to generate a positive. cash flow from 25 operations by
wmmmmd&ww:mmmm*mmmmm
invenitony keets.

Cash flows faced challenges in FY 2020 due tolockdeswns and econome: comtracion
cawsed by macrceconarmic irmbalances, resulting in 3 negative cash flow fram
operations, However, FY 2021 saw an improsemient in the countny's sconomic
conditizns due to govermment stimulus packages, alowing the Company to generate
positive cash from cparations anmounting to e 2.4 billion, driven by profitabiity and
enhanced cash cormersion tyche

In Y 22, the salies quantities sold in the fourth quarter wene considerably keser than
brusdgeted due o regime change and economic dovwnbum resulting ina negative cash
Tl Fron operating activities.

Comversely, in FY 2023, the Comparny achieved @ poditive cieh flow, prirmary due to
reduced capacity utilization and reduction in imentony levels prmartly caused due to
restrictions on opening of LCs 1o save the foreign exchange resenves held by the
cowntry,

Cash flomy From bnvesting Sctivities:

The: cash fiow generated from investing acthtees prmarily irsohves imestments in
property, nfrastiociune, squipment and recuming capital spanss. Beginning in FY 2018,
the Company embareed on a Sgnificant invistment inltiative toexpand its prochction
capacities for both steel billets and mbars. This imeoived the addition of steel melting
fumaces and the instalation of a 42500000 rofing mill at Dhabejil In FY 2020,
alengiide other capital expenditunes, the Company sutcesshily completed the
constrction of warchouses in slamabad and Labone a5 part of its strabegy toextend its
geoqraphical reach acnoss the oowntny.
In FY 2021 sow continued imestments by the Company in the acgumstion of
techinolagics inchuding a4.2 MW solir poveer plint, snfanoements iothe
Continuows Casting Machine o boost prochecthvity, and mesaees aimed at reducing
manufacturing costs in FY 2022, the Comparny iinalized the nstallation of an induction
et Tioe brillats, & mcnee chisicned toenhane e production efficiendst, Addionally, the
Company expanded its solar poweer plant capadity by 2.7 MW during this period,
In F¥ 2003, the Comparny irested inonew head office at Sky Towers, 18O hood for
ernanemental protection, alumire ingats project and recurring capital spares.

Cash flow From Finanging Activities

T cash fow frorm financng acthaties inchedes dradend payrnents, changes in sho
and long-term financing, and dabersements for finsnce-related expenses. From FY
2018 o FY 2020, the Company securad both short4emm and kong-term financing to
baodster its working capital requirements and fund capital expenditunes. Addithonally,
in FY 2020, the Compary secured 3 syndicated hong-term finance package of R 4.0
Lillion fo Supgacet pemmanend working capital niceds.

In FY 2021, the Company generated cash from its operational activities, which it
allocated towaeds fundng capital expendifiees under the pundew of vesting
sethitic It also dinected these funds towaid retiring kend-ter debt ebligationd,
senvicing finance-related costs, and rechecing short-tamn running finance,

Mording on to FY 2022, the Comparny acguined shoet-term loans to meet the escalated
wrking capital dernands, driven by a sulbstantial nupee devaluation and increases in
i mateial pricess. Thee Comparny also obtained lang-term fnance under the lamic
temporary economic refinance facility (TTERF) to fund CAPEY, as discussed above

In FY 3033, the cach genemted fom operations wene used to pay short-tenm
Dorowing and principhe repmmnent of e loan,
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RATIO ANALYSIS

Geoss profit it Perceritage 13119 I NS 6E3% BAG%
Mot profi / Doss o sakes ratio Percentage  -14%% 228% 49 A% 0115
Retum onequity Percertage -455% 869 981%  -1134% 027%
Peturn on capétal employed Percentage  -354% 683% 779% 26 023%
Operating keverage Percentage  3951% S406%  155895% OTISEM  47%%
EBITDA maegin to-ales. Perceniage  1085% 876%  O05% A6 66X

2018

17.80%
1023%
1231%
1.77%
6582%
1487%

Currenitratio Tmes  089:1 1o0:1 0871
Quick / acid test ratio Tmes  053:) 0491 060
Cash to cument kability Times  008:1 Q081 001
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056:1
033
L
ALi5:1

086:1
TR
LR
Q031

10851
033:%
Ll
Atz

Inneniony TUrmover Tirmes 44 61 50
oo lays in Irverorny Dirys &4 B Pk
Dbt bumicres Tirmes &7 9% 70
oo ey i el Duys 4 37 57
Credilor lumcrr Trres 8 134 B4
Moof days in payables Dhrys . 3 “
Opsarating cyck Diays 105 84 i
Tostal assat fumcver Tires 11 13 11
e assat turmos e Tames 20 27 18

106
£l

w A Y

(LPS)/ EFS - basic & diuted FLipees 238 486 461
BEratio Times 672 535 943
DRvickinid conerage ratio . Times - - -
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Price to book ratia Times 153 234 434
Market value per share

~¥earEnd Rupees 1535 144 Calad
- Highest Fupees 3086 4958 5465
- Lowest Rupees 1499 2150 3255
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Profitability Ratios

Gross profit

The Cormpany has achieved a consisient annual sales growith rate of 24.03% between FY 18 and FY 23. In FY 18, the Company maintained a respectable gross
margin of 17.80% thanks to favorable economic conditions and the country’s growing GOP. However, in FY 19, a significant drop in the gross profit margin
10 B.AE% was observed due to an economic slowdewn caused by efforts to address twin deficits, leading 1o an abnormal devaluation of the national
oumency, reduced national consumption, and a‘decling in GOP from 5% in FY 18 to 1.4%. This dowrward trend continued in FY 20, exacerbated by the
cautbreak of the COVID-19 pandemnic, resulting in a further decrease in the gross profit margin to G83%.

The eoonamic Situation Began 1o imprave a1 the start of FY 21, with the Bifting of lsckdewn measuses and government and State Bank of Pakistan infliatnes
1o support the econamy, particularly in the construction and related industries. Thic improvement in conditions led to a 3.94% GOP growth from the
negative 0.4% recorded in FY 20, allowing the Company to achieve a gress profit marginof 11.58%, During FY 22, despite significant increases in production
costs due to currency depreciation and inflation, the Company managed to sustain demand and pass on the rising costs to 15 selling prices, resulting (na
slight decline in gross margin to §1.16% (a decrease of 0.42%),

in FY 23, economic challenges persisted due to political instability, record-high inflation, rupee devaluation, and rising utility rates. Nevertheless, the
Company successfully achieved a margin of 13.11% due to improved prace netention,

Operating and Net Profit

The eperating profit and net peofit margins followed a similar pattesn as the gross margin trend discussed earier. The Company effectively managed ks
adminkstrative and distribution costs as a percentage of sales from FY 18 foFY 23 However, in FY 13 and FY 20, the finance cost of the Company increased
due to the rise inthe poficy rate, leading tora decline inthe net prafit margin o001 1% and a negative 2.68%, respectively.

In FY 21, a5 the gross margin improved and the policy rate decreased (o 7% fcompared to 13%in FY 20}, the Company schieved a net profit margin of 3.49%.
Hewvar, in FY 22, the et profit mangin decreaded 1o 2.28% due to b significant inarease in the policy rate and higher borrowing costs. The substantiol rise
in policy rates during FY 23 t0 2F% redulted s substantial increase in Ananos costs coupled with increase in tax expende due 10 revision in super tax rate
resulted inan operating loss and a net profit margin decline 1@ a net loss mangan of 1T49%

Ligquidity and Working Capital Ratios

Liguidity Ratios

The liquidity ratics primarily stem fram the Company's intermal cash generation, As discussed earlier, the decline in prafit margins had a direct impact on the
current ratio, which decreased from 105 timed in FY 18 to DES limes in FY 23, To bolster its permanent working capital, the Company secured a syndicated
terrn loan of Rs. 4 billien, which led to an improvement in the curfent fatic, ingreasing it to 096 times from 0.86 tirmes in FY 20.

In FY 21, the current ratko saw a slight uptick to 0.57, driven by profit generation but still falling short due to impending maturities of long-term loans in FY
22, The improved collection of cash in FY 22 further enhanced the current ratio, reaching 1.00 from 0.97. However, the unprecedented economic challenges,
dechining foreign exchange reserves, limitations on LC opening and political instakility during the FY 23 have severely impacted the sale off-take which in
turn adversely affects the company’s prohtability, Consequently, the current ratio dropped to 089 in FY 23 compared to the 100 recarded in FY 22,

Working capital ratios

The duration for which inventory is held remained consistent within the range of 156 to 84 days fram FY 18 te FY 23: In FY 18, the Company accrued an
elevated mwventory period of 156 days due to the implementation of a new relling mill and the expansion of the melt shop, resulting In the stockpiling of
rany materials, In FY 19, the Company produced 59% more and sold §1% excess quantities compared to FY 18, leading to'a notable improverent in
imventory days, reducing them by 58 days to 9F days in FY 19,

In FY 20, inventory days extended to 106 days primarily due 16 the COVID-19 lockdown in the fourth quarer, resulting in minimal consumption snd an
aecumulation of raw material inventony during this period. BY 21 saw the Company adopt & just-in-time inventory approach 1o facilitate cash flow, resulting
im a decreass of inventory days by 33 days to 73 days.

Efficient working capital managemsant and the maintenance of an optimal inventory level led to a further 13-day improvement in inventory days, reducing
them to 60 days in FY 22, However, during FY 23, the inventory days increased by 24 days due to lower sales volume in fourth quarter due to increased
political unrest, delays in IMF, upcoming budget for 2023-24 and on-going macro-economic crisis. Creditors days remained consistent with the overall
frend.

Debtor days are cornputed bazed on the average debios balance and net sales The Company’s debior days have fluctuated between 36 and 42 days from
FY 18 to FY 23. The Company & dedicated to reducing tts debtor days and has established a specialized sales and credit administration department to
manage and oversee recelvables from customers. Mevertheless, FY 20 posed significant challenges dwe to extraordinarily bow demand and COVID-19
Iockdowns that disruplied sales, preduction, and coflections. Consequently, deblor days increased to 57 days In FY 20 compared to 33 days in FY 19,
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COMMEBNTS ON RATIO ANALYSIS
in FY 21, as sales and collections improved, debtor days were reduced to 52 days. FY 22 witnessed a notable improvement of 15 days, bringing debtor days
digwen to 37 days, achleved through diligent follow-ups; revisiting custormer credit policles, and adjusting ceedit limits. In FY 23, delrtor days increased by (5

dhays to 42 days due to slowdawn ineconemic liquidity.

Investrment / Market Ratios
The garnings {or losses) per share rermained within the spectrum of RS, 5.34 1o 2 lods of Bs. 228 from FY 18 throwgh FY 23, These fluctuations in earnings per
share directly correlate with changes in the Company’s profitability, as detailed in the profitabdity section.

The Company's shares were actively traded on the Pakistan Stock Exchange, with prices ranging from Rs. 14.99 to Rs. 30084 throughout FY 23, The lowest
recorded price was Rs, 14.99, while the highest was Rs. 30.86 durinvg the fscal year.

The breakup value pér share, without considering revabuation, maintained a consistent range of Bs, 35,17 to As, 36.76 from FY 1810 FY 23, This bréakup value
per share primarity relies on factors such a5 capital reserves, revenue reserves, and the total numiber of ardinary shares. Motably, the capital reserves and the
gpuantity of ordinary shares remained unchanged over the past six years, However, fluctuations in revenie resenes occurmed due to varations in poofits, as
discussed in the profitabifity section.

Capital Structure Ratios

The debt-to-equity ratio and financial leverage showed an upward trend from FY 17 to FY 20, This increase can be attributed to the Company's investments
in plant and machinery for expansion and modernization, as well as the helghtened working capital requirements discussed in detail in the profitabifity
section above. However, there was an improvement in both the debt-to-equity ratio and Rnancial leverage in FY 21 and FY 22 This positive change was
driven by the generation of profits and the recording of a surplus on the revaleation of fiked assets in FY 21,

On the other hand, the debt sendce ratio and interest cover experfenced a decline from FY 18 ta FY 23, Several factors contributed to this declinge, including
a-significant decrease in prohtability, increased borrowings, fhuctuations in the pelicy rate, and incurring losses in FY 1% and FY 20, Nevertheless, there was
a netewarthy improvement in both ratios in FY 21, This impeovement can be attributed to enhanced profitability and reduced finance costs. In FY 22, the
debt service ratio saw a slight decline due to increased finance costs and the maturity of kang-term loans, althoegh the interest cover improved because of
the enhanced profitability, In FY 23, both the interest eover and debt service ratio experienced a decline due to a net loss duding the year compared 1o 2
profit in the previous year due to the reasons discussed earlier in this analysis.
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION & WEALTH DISTRIBUTION

fmmsales

s B

Iud'hg sales tax

fevenue from other income
Bought in material and services
Value added by the Company

53.410,342 8,090,953
8312 24,507
{36,995,882). (46,016,129)
16,422,772 20,009,371

To Employees:

Salaries, Wages and Other benefits 1655772 10% 1,749,845 0%

To Government:

incame tax, Sales tax, Customs & Excise duties 10491936 | 6% 14010066 | 70%

To Providers of capital: ' '

Bank Charges and Markugp 4,032,761 5% 2306697 1%

For Replacement of assets: I

Dupreciation and Amartization 920,746 05% 707,248 03%

To Company:

{Net loss} / Rétained profit {678,443 4% 1,325,515 07%
16,422,772 100% 20,099,371 100

FY 2023 F"I"IEH

1 To employees

A Togovernment [l Toproviders of capital [l Forreplacement of assets [l To Company
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QUARTERLY ANALYSIS

Rs. ‘000

Sales QA1%063 13211020 11,666,940 10,794,507 45,403,724
Cost of Sales (8,231,276} (12357,132) (9, 559,8590) 19,382,263} (30.530.561]
Grass Profit 1,588,587 B53,888 2,107,050 1,412,638 5,962,163
Girass Profit % 16.18% B 1E.06% 13.09%. 13.11%
Administrative Expenses (163,805) [170,821) 1191,834) (224,654} (751,514}
(Allowance) ) Reversal of Expected Crodin Loses {42:551) 19,065 (102,535) 35473 {119,602)
Distribution Expenses 1219.425) (279,621) 246,353 (263.37E) (1,008,777
Othetr Expitnses (22475} 127 (33,6635 (39,056} (B84.067)
Other Income 1,887 5011 5502 14,085 8312
Operating Profit REFELTS 346,595 1,538,167 926,905 4,006,885
Operating Profit % 11.63% 3.0¥% 13.18% 8 55% BB
Finance Cost (927417) {1,031,054) 991,563 11,082,227} 4,032,761
Prefit { (Loss) Before Taxation 214,301 [631,459) 546,604 (155322} {23,671}
Taxation (10,238) 247652 (FOE91) (E14,090} {852,567)
Het Profit / (Loss) 204,063 [388,807) 475,713 (969,412} [678,443)
Het Profit / [Loss] % 2.08% -2,94% 408 % -B9E% -1.45%
* iy the fourth quarter, the Company faced  loss on selling of fived assets that excesded the other income'g { ehuring that Lame quarter.

QUARTER Y QuARTER

01 ) R 03 |

QUARTER

02

Billet Production Billet Praduction Billet Production Billet Production
57.099 73,472 67,588 17,071
Rebar Production Rebar Production Rebar Production Rebar Production
55,251 59,248 67,734 23,247
Rebar Sales Rebar Sales Rebar Sales Rebar Sales
49,023 70,192 51,992 47,072
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First Quarter:

Dworing: this quarter, the Company's performance was influenced by
exceplional circumstances encountencd in the country. The sales wolume
experienced a significant downturn of 43% when compared to the same
quarter of last year due to the unprécedented monsoon rainfall, keading to
flash flooding and extensive damage, However, salé price has increased by
41% primarily due to significant rupee devaluation by 40% when compared
with comedpanding guarter, reculting in @ declire in sales revenue by 17%,

The costof goods sobd witnessed a significant surge of 409 during thés quarter,
prienaly attributed 1o the substantial devaluateon of the nupee against the
doffar and low capadity utifization of 35% a3 compared to 60% in
corresponding quarter, Additionally, the prices of electricity and RLNG
(Regasified Liquefied Matural Gas) have ako experienced an Increase
throughout the quarter. Howewer, the company achiewed a notable
improvement in geoss profit rmangin, with a gain of 1.6996 due to better price
retention during the quarter,

Cnaring the quarter, the company's operational performance demoenstrated
improvement as - reflected by a reduction of B% In administrative and
distribution expenses. This decrease can be attributed to lowar sales volume
coupbad with enhanced gross mangins.

Thie company expenenced & 3/85% decling in its bottom line in this quarter
compased to the comesponding quartes of the previcus year. This decline can
b pricarily atributed to a significant increade in fnance costs, raulting from
higher interest rates. Furthermaone, the tax expense decreased due to the koweer
profitability as compared to same quarter last year.

Second Quarter:

Thie prevailing trends shaped by the extracedingry conditions fsced by the
couniry In the frst guarter persisted into the second quarter. The areas most
irnpacted in the Sindh province remained submerged in lood waters, which is
wherne the company sells more than half of s sales volume, Consegquently,
there was a 25% dedine in sales wolume during this period. Additionally,
factors such as continued rupee devaluation, increases in fuel prices, and other
input costs resulted in increased in sale price By 13%, &5 a result, the salas
revene fior this quarter declined by 11% compared to the same guarter of the
PEVIOUS year

Custineg this quarter, the cost of goods sold experienced a nofewarihy surge of
2%, primariby attributed to the substantial devaluation of the repee 2galnst
the dollar. Additionally, prices of additive materials, electricity, and fuel
witniessed an increase throwghout the quarter. Furthermone, international
srap prices saw a reduction due to global contraction and uncertainty in the
miarket regarding possible apprediation of PER to Dollar below 190 has put to
hald on overall bundng in the market, where the demand was already affected
dhu: to remaing of flood water. Consequenthy, prices of steel bars decreased
rissulting in & decling of 50% in the grods profit mangin cormpared 1o the same
guarter of the previous year,

The aperating margin followed by dropped in gross margin mentioned abave
witnessed a decrease of 4.8%, primarily attributed bo an increass in distribaution
costs and increase in the allowance for ¢xpected credit loss due 1o deteriorated
economic conditions and affected Boguidity in the countnyg

In this quarter, the company witnessed a decling i its net profit masngin by
7071%: compared ta the warme quarter of the peevious year, The factors that

prirnarily impacted the cormpany's bottom lne after operating rmargin was the
increase in fmance costs, driven by higher intemst rates and increased
utilization of borrowing facilities due to mpee devaluation, Tax expense
continued to decrease due to lower profits as compared to sarme quarter last
year,

Third Quarter:

Curinig this quarter, the prevalling economic conditions by the country
continued 1o deteriorate rather than showing signs of Improvement. This
further contributed to the contraction of the country's eccnomy, leading to a
sigraficant declineof 46%in the sales volurme of the company, Additionally, the
country faced an all-time high inflation and masdive rupes divaluation,
resuliing In Increased sake price by 34%. Consequently. sale revenue dedined
by 27% primanly due to lower sale volumed on account of dermand
Compesion,

Iy this quarter, the cost of goods sold witnessed a notable increase of 23%
compared to the seme quarter of the previows year, The factors contributing 1o
this cost increase remained langely consistent with the previous quarter, as
discussed earlier. Howener, there was a significant improvernent in the gro
margin by 7.3% primarily attributed 1o better price retention duing the
quarer.

During this quarter, the operational performance of the company edhibited
improvement compared to the same gquarter of the previous yeac The
operating profit mangin chw 8 posithve change, increasing by 5.5%, primarihy
attributed o the increase in gross profit margin and a reduction indisribotion
costs due to dower sales volume.

During this quarter, the niet profit margin of the company observed anoverall
irmprovement compaded tothe same quarter of the previous year that can be
largehy attribarted o increased operating profit margin, Howewer, its worth
noting that the finance cost of the company increased by 51% due
continued increase in interest rates. Furthermore, the tacation expense has
increased as 8 result of taxable profits,

Fourth Quarter:

I this quarter, the continued deterioration in macro-economic varlablies
coupled with political unrest has resulted i overaill contraction in national
demand, causing a substantial 31% decling in the company's sales volume,
However, sale peice witnessed an inoreased by 27% when compared {o
corresponding quarder due to unprecedented surge in inflation, energy prices
and devaluation of PER. As a result, sales revenue observed 3 decline of 45%,

Bruring this guartes, the costof geeds sebd experienced a noteworthy suge of
23% when comparned to the same period in the peevious year, The drivers
behind this cost upswing remained kargely consistent with those disoussed n
the peeceding quarter coupled with low capaciy uidization, all-time high
cnergy prices. and slight increase In sorap cost. However, gross masgin
observed improvernent by 4.1% prsmarily due bo betier price retention.

Thicughout  this quarter, the company’s operational  performance
demanstrated Improvement when compased with the corresponding quarter
af the price year. The operating proliy mangin disglaved o pesitive shift, rising
by 3.7%, This incrase-can b prirnarily attributed to mmprovements in the grods
profit mangin and a reduction n distribution costs: owing to the decneased
salis wolume. Further, aliowance for sxpected credit losses obsened reversal
due to better recoveny and decrease in receivalbles days which were increased
earlier in this financial year,

Irs this qusartes, the company's net profit margin exhibited a downwand trend
and transitioned into a loss when compared to the same quarter in the
previous year. This decline can largely be credited to the heightened finance
costs resulting from increased interest rates. Furthermare, the taxation
expense increased significantly due to increase knosuper tax rates in fiscal
budget of 2023-24 that has resulted in increased in deferred tax expense.
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Sales Revenue;

Dwring the year under conslderation, the sabes revenue exhibited a mixed pattern. A sunge was observed in the second quarter, followed by declines in the
subseguent third and fourth guarters. The Cormpany's revenue i subject to the influence of 3 multitude of factors.

In the initial quarter, sales volume experienced 3 decrease when compared with the previces quarter, This decline could be attributed to several factors,
including an unprecedented 24% inflation rate, edevated interest rates, as well as the substantial impact of monscon rains and flash floods. The second quarter
saw @ notable fse in sales revenue, prirnarily diven by an increase in the tales volumes. The sale price witnessed a decrease due 1o dernand contraction caused
by lingering effects of Noodwater aorass various parts of the Sindh provinee compounded by uncertainty in the market regarding potential decrease in rebar
perices on account of decline in international steel scrap price and appreciation in FER

The dowrward trajectory of révienue seen in third and fourth quarer, This decline can be attributed to & combination of factors, including supply chain
disruptions due to restrictions on Letters of Credit (LC) aimed at managing the cument acoount deficit, sconomic contraction resulting from record devahzation
of PER. inflation, heavy bomowing cost and polithcal unrest throughout this perod.
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Gross Profit:

The grass profit and gross peofit margin displayed a mived trajectory ower the course of the year, Inthe initial quarter, the gross mangin was at 16,18%, primarily
dise 1o the better price retention that wene increased in dth quarter of FY 22 due to significant increase in scrag prices beyond USD 600 per ton after
Fussia-Ukrgine conflict.

Howewer, In the second quarter, the gross profit mangin plummeted sgnificantly by 9.70% to 5.46% due to decrease in steed bar prices as discussed above and
increate in cost of goods manufactured, This surge in coat can be attrbuted 1o substantial rupee devaluation, fuel and electricity expenses, high inflation and
decreased capacity vtilization of 29%.

The economic environment rematned turbulent throwghout the year, causing the Company's perfosmance to lack a consistent trend. In the thind quarter, the
sefling price increaded by 23% in recponse 1o this continueous rise in input costs, and the company managed ba rethin the price increase, Consequently, the gross
percfit mangin improved to 18%. However, sales volume decreased by 29% compared to the preceding quartes,

In the last quarter of year under review, the gross margin experienced a slight decline, primarly attributed to 109 increase in cost of saled due to rupes

devalustion, high energy price and low capacity utilization, On the hand, prices only increased by 03% due to contraction in demand resulting in dropped in
gEoss mangin,
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The eperating profit margin fluctuated Between 11.63% and 2.00% from the fist quarter to the last quartér, These Auctuations in operating profit can be
attributed to changes in gross profit levels as disoussed above. Additionally, distribution expenses remained consistent throughout all guarters, while
adrinistrative expenses saw a slight uptick during the year, primarily drven by inflationary increases in fuel, electricity, travel, and related costs

Furthermare, the allowance for expected credit loss experienced an increase over the course of the year, This Increase was primarily duee to increase in receivable
diays caused by deteriorating economic conditions and overall economic Bquidsty during the year.

et Profit:

Follwad by varying tread in gross and opersting profits, the movement in net profit can be attibuted accordingly in addition to changes in fimance cast and

R EXpEnse,

Irs the initial quartes, the Company reported net prolfit of R 204 million o net mangin of 2.08% which was much lower than the operating profit of 11.63% in
the same quarter due to an incneade in hinance cost. However, the second quarter witnessed a sharp decline in operating proft discussed above and coupled
with continued increase in finance costs on account of rising Interest rates, the Company recorded a net loss of Rs. 388 million, with a net boss mangin of 2.94%.

Thie third quaner mardked a significant improvement, with & substantial increase in operating proht, supported by higher gross profit and gross margin
Consequently, the net prefit surged to Rs. 475 milllion, with a net profit mangin of 4.0%: Unfortunately, the fourth and final quarter saw a decrease in profitability,
with a 5% decline in gross margin compared to the previous quarter as discussed earlier in this analysis. This decline was also reflected in operational
performance and the sigrilficant increass in finance costs and tax expense primarily due increase in super tax rate and B3 impact on deferred tax has resulted in
a substantial foss of As, 369 million for the quarter, with a net Joss mangin of 5.5%,
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DUPONT ANALYSIS

1.13 times 14,563

* AN Fgures ane bn FEH milkon, cxhevatie indicated.
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Cash recefpts from the customers 45,886,624 £8.910.586
Cagh paid 1o suppliers and employees (34,322, 163) 158,396,687
Cashgenerated from ogerations 11,564,961 522859
Imcome taxes pad (821,178} 1631,537)
Grituity paad 132,833} [27.871)
Fimance costs paid (3,680,499} {2002,115)
Leng-term deposits - net 10,276 {51,6:4)
Met cash generated fram / (used in) operating activities 7,040,227 (2,190, 268)
Fimed capital expenditure (1,597 660) (2,158,142
Addition to intangible assets (2,347} 1891]
Proceds from disposal of aperating assets 10,780 21,112
Mot cash used in investing activities (1,589,227} (2137.921)
Short term barmowings - net (4,887,751) 4,127,741
Disbaersernent of long-teom financing 709 337 1,567.526
Repayment of long-term financing (1,325,244} (1,152,358)
Long term irmestment - 1000
Lease rentaks pakd (52,730} {30.271]
Laan from related parties {25, (a0} -
Dividend paid {154} {106
Met cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (5,491,542} 4.513.530
Met {decrease] / inerease in cash and cash equivalents 140,542) 185341
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1,660,342} (1.845,683)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (1,700,884) (1,660,347
Cash and cash equivalent comprise the following:

Cash and bank balances 13 356869
Running finance (1,972,797 {2017,211)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year {1, 700,884) (1,660,341
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EY Ford Rhodes UAN: 4922111111 3937 (EYFR)

Chartered Accountants Tel: +9221 3565 0007 - 11
Progressive Plaza, Beaumont Road  Fax: +9221 3568 1965
B b F.O Box 15541, Karachi 75530 ey.khi@pk.ey.com
b it Pakistan ey.com/pk
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT
Tes the members of Ameli Steels Limited

Report on thee Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annesed financial staterments of Ameeli Steels Linnited {the Comparny], which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, and the
staberment of profit or boss, staternent of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for thi year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, inchuding a summany of sgnificant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the bestof cur knowledge and belied, were nieceisany for the purposes of the audit

Ineur opirdon.and to the best of cur information and acconding to the explanations ghien to us, the staterment of financial pesstion, statermvent of profit or less, statement of
cexmprehensve ncorme, the staternent of changes in equity and the gatermentof cash Mows together with the notes foerming part thenead confanm wath the sccounting and
reporting standasds ac applicabls in Pakistan and ghve the information reguired by the Companias Act. 2017 (XX ed 201 7), in the rranner soreguired and eipectvely ghe a
true and Eair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 fune 2023 and of the peotit and other comprehenshve income, the changes in edquity and its cash flows for the
year thenended,

Basis for Opindon

We conducted our audit in scooddance with ntemational Standands on Auditing (158} a5 appdeable m Pakertan Owr nepondibelities under these dandands ane further
described in the Avcitors Responabeities for the Audit of the FAnancal Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Compary In accordance with the
Intemational Ethics Standasds Boand for Accoumants’' Cocke of Ethics for Professional Accountonts as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ithe Code)

and we have fulfilled gur other ethical responsiteities in accordance with the Code. We beliewe that the sudit evidence we have obfained is sufficent and appropoiate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Kary Aucdit Matters

Koy anachit iriatteds are thase matters that, in our profiessional adgrient, were of mast significance in our audit ofthe financial statements of the cument period, These matters
were addressed in the coniest of our audit of the financial satements as a whole, and in foming our npl.nbn thenesn, and we do not predde a separate opinkon on these

9 b
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Fofowing are the Key aida matters:

1. Existence and valuation of stock-in-trade

fis of the date of statement of fnancial position, the Comgany held
stock-inetrade balance of Rs, T097.218 - millicn which constitubes 16% of fotal
assets of the Compary, Thits comprise of Ranw scrap, billets and rebars,

A cheseritgdd in roote 5.5 10 the financial Sstatements, stock-in-trade i meatuned
at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of work-a-proces and
fnished goods & determined 3t average marsfactwing cost Induding
proportion of production overheads. Thee 5 an element of pudgement
b i dietenmining an  appropriate costing basis and - assesing s
vahation,

Given the sgnificande of sock-intracke 10 the Company’s total assets and the
level af judgernents and estimates irraohved, we huve identified valuation of
shock-in-trade as.a ey awdit matter.

Cur audit procedures, amongst others, induded obtaining an understanding of
conirols craee purchases and vialuation of stock-in-tradie and tested, on a sample

W performed obiervation of imentory counts far billets and rebars and
invobaed an extemal expen to perdomm physical irspection of mw scap held at
Companies’ premises.

W porformed tests ovor the praces of raw materials and week in progress and
werifid itermsin the product coting of work in peogriss,

W pstessed met realizable valae (NRV) by COMpanng managerment’s
estirmation of futune selling prices for the prodects with the seling - prices
achieved aubsequent o the reporting period.

Weassersind the adequacy of the obsohrsdende provision and the managément
Jadgement used,

W s the acketuscy of this Cormpary's disclosures in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting standands,

Infermation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does notinclude
the Anancial statements and sur suditors’ repart therson,

Our opanlon on the financial staternents does not cowver the ether information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Ini connection with cwr audit of the financial staterments, our responsibility is to read the other information and, In dodng $o, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the inancial statements or cur knawhedge obtained in the audit or atherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have perfarmed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we ane required to report that fact.
Wi have nathing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Staterments

Management isresponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finandial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
a5 applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2007 (X0 of 2017) and for such internal contrel as management determines is necessany
toenable the preparation of Ainancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Bnancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue a5 a going concern, disclosing, as
applcable, matters related 1o going concern and using the geing concenn basis of accounting unless management either intends to lbguidate the Company

of by cease operations, of has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsthle for overseaing the Company's financlal reporting process.

“4q b
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

O objectivis are to olbitain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements a5 a whobe are free from material misstatement, whither due to
Traud or errar, and to issue an auditers report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance but is not a guarantes that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1545 as applicable in Pakistan will abways detect a ratesial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can amse from fraed
or emor and are considered material If, individually o1 In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A5 part of an audit in accordance with 5As as applicable in Pakistan, we exerclse professional judgment and malntain professional skepticism throughout
the audit, We alioc

Identify and assess the risks of material rmisstatement of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud or eros, design and perform audit
procedunes responsive to those risks, and obtain aedit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our oplnion, The risk of not
deticting o maberial misstatement resulting from fried is higher than for ane resulting fram eoror, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional
QMiSIEN:, M presentations, of the cwerride of internal control.

- Obdain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in erder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in thie circumstances, but
niak for the purpose of expressing an opinson on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control

Evaluate the approgristeness of acoounting policies wsed and the reascnableness of accounting
catimates and related disclosures made by management,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of managements use of the going concern basis of accounting amnd, based on the audil evidence obtained,
wihether a material ungertainty exists related to évents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Companys ability 10 continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requited to draw attention in cur auditors’ report to the related discloswres in the
financial staternents o, If such dischosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinlon. Qur conclusions are based on the audit évidence obtained up to
thie date of our auditors report. Howewer, future events or conditions may cause the Company 0o 0ease U Contine a5 3 going Conoern.

. Evaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a mannes that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Ditectars regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the acdit and significant audit indings,
including any ssgnificant deficiencles in Internal contrad that we identify during our awdit.

We also provide the Beard of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may redsonably be thought to bear on ourindependence, and whene applicable, related

satequards,
Fraem the mattérs communicated with the Board of Directors, we determing thode matters that wene of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the curment period and are therefore the key atsdit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors report unbess Law ar regulation precludes

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare clrcumstances, we determine that a matter shoukd not be communicated in our report
becawse the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

#l
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements

Based on gur audit, we further repart that By our aginion;
4l  proper books of acoount have been kepd by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017k

b the statement of financial pesition, the statemant of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act. 201 7 (XX of 2017) and ane in
agreemant with the books of account and returns;

€} imeestments made, expenditune incuried and guarantees extended during the wear were for the purpose of the Companys business; and

d) o zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (Xl of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting bn this independent auditors’ repart Is Omer Chightai,

G Pd U

Place: Karachi
Diate: 02 Ogtober 2023
LI ARZDZ 3101 20W TPYgIHG
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2023
2023 2022
e SR T -

Pragerty, plant and equipment 7 22 263,497 21,578,251
Right-of-use-assets | 1357311 TaA10
Intangible assets ] 6,600 11,872
Long-term investments {4 14,289 14,289
Lang-term deposiis and boans 11 193,717 2035493
12,613,834 21,884,815

Stores and spares 2,604,137 2,756,628
Stock-in-trade 12 T.097,218 11,017 657
Trace debis 13 4,973,402 AT E005
Loans and advances 14 45,494 53447
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 15 20,767 30,260
Orther recelvables 15 211,236 266
Taxation - net 2,333,729 1,769,108
Cash and bank balances 17 271,913 356,889
17,557,896 21,463,241

T T A0,71,730 43,346,056

Share capital 18 2970114 870,014
Capital reserve 2,788,742 2,788,742
Revenue neserves - accumulated profit 5,250,225 5.865.758
Actuarial hoss on gratuity fund (B5,529) (75,507
Rewaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment % 3,642,789 3,705,659
14,562,241 15254, 706

Long-term financing 0 3,704,899 4 820,514
Lang term prowvision 27 146,863 154,463
Loarn from related parties 22 - 341,333
Deferred taxation 23 1028172 Gantaa
Deferred liability - defined benefit obligation 24 452,985 369916
Lease liakilitbas il 121,797 TrAtE
Government grant 25 381,564 170641
5.836,280 G570811

Trade and other payables 27 4,979,403 5,238,326
Contract lsabilities 475,226 773503
Intenest S mdrkup accrued i8 BOO, 284 521,139
Shori-term borrowings 9 11,330,137 12,573,272
Current portion of leng-term Rinancing 20 1,798,680 1.353.625
Current portion of lease [labilithes 25 34,529 14,351
Current partion of governmient grant 25 27,161 A2e43
Current portion of lean from related parties 22 316,333 -
Unclaimed dividend 5,456 5610
19,773,209 21522539

30
40,171,730 43, 348,056

Thie anngxwed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Anancial staterments,

S had .
Sohpliet = W —=

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S Bl
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
2023 2022
Hote o {Rupees in ‘000) ———
Sabps £ 45,492,724 58,184,283
Cot of sales 32 (39,530,560} 150,652,795}
5,962 164 LA 4T
Distribution costs 33 {1,008, 7 75) (1.203,640)
AdrminErative expenies 34 {757,114} (735,971
Allowance for expected credit losses 131 {119,603} (5177}
Other expenses 33 (84,097) (185,445)
Crther income 35 8312 24,507
parating profi 4,006,885 4,384,761
Finance costs 37 (4,032,761) 2,306,597}
Laes) / arahit befars tueatiar (25,876} 2078,064
Taxation 38 {652,567) (752548}
Loss] / profit after taxation {678,443) 1,325,515
(Rupees) ———
(Lass] S Earnings par-share - basic and diluted 39 {228} 445

The annewed notes 1 oS50 form an integral part of these Anandial statemerits,

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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"TATTAACRIT ST & RARAGDCTELIERI e TRLT ™ '
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

£ 1 N1kl

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Other comprehensive income

Iterns that will mot be subsequenily reclassified 1o statement of profit or loss:

Actuarial less on gratuity fund - net of tax

13l COMPpreEnensive

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Rinancial statements.

Chief Executive
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Director

2023 2032
e (Rup@es in 0]
(678,443} 1325515
(14,02 2) (17,2359}
{693 465) 1,314,078

TR

Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
Capital Rewenue
Issued, ﬂ.‘e;i:e Ritaicas Revaluation
s ll:i“m ) Total
and paid-up sen property, ota
capital 5'“'":m Accumulsted | oy iyfund |  plantand
bt pof equipment
{Rupees in 000}
Balanca asal 1 July 3021 2970114 2788743 4471374 {5,168 3,774,568 13,940,630
Prafit for the year : s 1325515 = 1,325,515
Cther comprehensive loss for the year o . (194390 c {17,439
Total comprihensive incami § (lossl for the year ¥ - 1325515 (11,439} . 1,314,006
Incremental diepreciation felating 1o revaluation . . 68,903 2 (68,205
surplus on property. plant and eguipment — net
of tax
Bolanceas at ] July 2022 2970114 2,788,742 2865758 (72507 3,705,659 15,254,706
Loss fior the year - - {678.443) - (678,443
Cther comprehensive loss for the year * - - (14.022) - 114,022}
Total comprehensive loss for the year 7 = {678,443 4022) = 1692, 465)
Incremental depreciation relating to revaluation ¥ 4 GA70 . 162,570}
wirplus on peoperty, plant and equipmant - net
of tax
2970,114 2,785,742 5.2150.225 (895259 3642789 14,562,241

The anngeed notes 1 te 50 form an integral part of these financial staements,

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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CTATEMENMT NECATH El OV

S LA EIVIEN | U wRam FLUY
FORTHE ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
2023 2022
FROM ODPERATING ACTIVITIES el e (Rupees in ‘000) ———
Cash generated from operations a1 11,564,461 522,850
Income taxes pald {#21.178) (631.537)
Gratuity pald (32.833) (2 871)
Finance costs paid 13,680,499) {2002,715)
Lang-berm de posits and Mg - net 10,276 [51,6:44)
Net cash generated / {used in) from operating activities 7040227 12,190, 268)
LSH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure {1,597, 660) (2,158,142
Addithons to intangible assets 12,347} (BT
Proceads from disposal of operating fixed asceis 10,780 21,112
HNet cash used in investing activities (1,589,227) {2.137.921)
"ROM FINAMNCING ACTIVI

Dividend paid [154) (108}
Shart-term borrowings - net 14,887,751} 4,127,741
Disbursement of long-term Anancing 799337 1,567,506
Repayment of lang-term financing 11,325, 244) 1,152,358}
Larg-term investment - 1,000
Logn from rélated parties {25,000} 5
Lease rentals paid (52,7300 (30,:271)
et cash (used in] f generated from financing activities 15,491,542} 4,513,530
Het (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents {440,542} 185,341
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (1,660,342} 11,645,683}
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 42 {1,700,.864) 11.-5-&},342_}“

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

—

1.1 AmreliSteels Limited (the Company) was incorporated in 1984 as a private limited company and converted into a public unguoted company in 2009
under the repeabed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance), The Company enlisted on Pakistan Stock Exchange in 2015, The Campany is
engaged in manufacture and sale of steel bars and bitlets. The geographical fzcation and addresses of the Company’s business units / immovabla

assets are as under:
Business Units Addreszes

Registered office and warehaouse Plot Mo, A-18, SLT.E Karachi (Land measwring area 2 490 Acres)
Mot Mo, D-89 Shershah Karachi (Land measuring anea 2.220 Acres)

Production plant Phot No, D-90/8 Shershah Karachi (Land measuring area 1.05 Acres)

Production plant and warehouse Industrial Land, Deh Gharo, Tapo Gharo, Taluks Mirgpur Sakeo, District Thatta, Sindh {Land
measuring anea 105 Acres )

Warehouses Moor Road Badami Bagh Lahore (Land measuring 579 Acres)
Pl # 392 sector -3 industrial area lamabad (Land measuring {0.50 Acnes)

(Office Premises 14th floos, West Wing, Sky Tower, Clifton, Karachi (20,000 sq.fth

These financial statermnents have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, The accounting
and reporting standards apglicable in Pakitan comprise of:

Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards [IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standasd Board (LASB) as notified under the Companies
Act, 2017 (the Actlk

lslamic Financial Accownting Standards (IFAS) isswed by the Institute of Charterad Accountants of Fakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Act; and
Previsions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the requiremients of IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act
have been followed,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 These financial statements hawe been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies below,
3.2 Thesefinancial Statemednts are prepared in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functionsl and peesentation currency,
33 TheCompany has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern,

TAMNDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMEMNTS APPLICABLE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Thare aré Certain new and amended standands, Baued brlnlﬁﬁﬂihhalmnlﬂlg Standards Boand (IASE), interpretations and amendments that ang

mandatory for the Company's accounting perods beginning on of after July 1, 2022 but are considered not 1o be relevant or do not have any

significant effect on the Company’s operations and therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Amendments to approved accounting standards

IFRS 3 Reference o the Conceptual Framework (Amendments)
A5 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use {Amendments)
185 37 Orerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendmentsh

The adoption of the above amendments to the accounting standards did net have any material effect on the Company's financial statements,

The IASE has alio Bsued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framewark) in March 2018 which is effective for
annual pericds beginning an or aftér lanvary 01, 2020 for preparers: of financial statements who develop accounting policies based an the
Conceptual Framework, The revised Conceptual Framewark is not a standard, and none of the concepts override thase in any standard ar any
reguirements in a standard, The purpose of the Conceptual Framewaork is 1o assist IASE in developing standards, to help prepacers develop consistent
accounting poficles if there is no applicable standard In place and toassist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

Improvements to Accounting Standands lssued by the 1ASE [20718-2020 cyde)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the 10 percent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities
a5 41 Agriculture - Taxation in fair valee meaturernents
IFRS 16 Leasas: Lease Incentives

The adoption of the above amendments to the approved accounting standards did not have any material effect on the Campany’s financial
statements,

4.1  Standards, amendments and imprevements to IFRSs that are not yet effective

The: following amendmenis and improvements to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates
mentioned belod against the retpective amendment of impiovements;

Effective dates
{annual perhods
beginning
Amendments or mprovements an o after)
IFR5 17 Insprance Contracts [Amendmants)
145 1 and IFAS 1-lan-2023
Practice Statement 2 Dischosure of Accounting Pedicies (Amendments) 1-lan-2023
A58 Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments) 1-Jan2003
tAS 13 Deferred Tax related to Aasets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments) Vedan-2023
A5 12 internaticonal Tax Reform - Pillar Twe Model Rules (Amendments) 1-lan-2023
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Man-current Lizhilities with
1451 Covenants (Amendments) {-lan-2024
IFRS 16 Lease Liability In a 5ale and Leaseback (Amendments) 1-Lin-2024
IAS T/ IFRS T Cisclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments) V-lan-2024
IFRS 10/ 1AS 28 Sake or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Assoclate or Joint Venture Kot yet Analised
{Amendmenis)

The above standards, amendments and imparovements aré not expected 1o have any material impact on the Company's financial statéments in the
period of initial application.

Furthes, the following new standards have been issued by 1ASE which are yel to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan
and ana not expected to hawe any material impact on the Company’s financkal statements in the period of initial application.

LASE effective dates
{anniual periads
. . beginning
Standard of interpretation on or affter)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 1-lan-2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1-lan-2023

51  Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets
These are initially stated at cost, Subsequently, these are stated at cost less accomulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any,

except for beasehold land, building on leasehold fand and plant and machinery which are stated ot revalued amounts less impairment, if any,
Depreciption s changed to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balsnce methed except for plant and machinery, compaters and vehicles
which' are depreciated on straight line basis and /. or unit of production method at the rates disclosed in mate 7 1o the financial statements,
Depreciation is charged from the month in which an asset is available for use, while no deprecistion is charged for the month in which asset is
dispesed,

Maintenance and repairs are charged to statement of profit of loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvernents which increase the
asset’s remainmng useful econamic life ar the perfosmance beyond the current estimated levels are capitalized and the assets so replaced, If any, are
retired.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sabe proceeds and the camrying amount of an asset
Is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period of dispozal,
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FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

52

54

55

5.6

The assets residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods ane reviewed and adjusted if appropriste, at cach finandial year ¢nd

The cartying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed a1 each staternent of financial position date for Impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that canying walues may not be recoverabie, If Such indication exists where the carrying values excecd the
estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down (o their recoverable amounts.

Arevaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income (OC1 and credited tothe asset revaluation surplus in equity. Howewet, the increase
Is recorded in the statement of profit or loss to the extent it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same. asset previously. A decrease as a result of
revalation is recognised in the statemnent of profit or loss however, a decrease Is recorded in statement of other comprehensive income to the extent
of any credit balance entry in revaluation surplus in respect of same assets.

Capital work in progress

These are stated ab cost less impairment, and represent expenditures incurred and advances made in respect of specific assets during the
construction / enection yeas, These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets ane available for use,

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencerent date of the lease (Le, the date the underying asset & avallable for Lse),
Right-al-use assets are measured at cost bess any accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
lizbilities: The cost of right-of-use assets incudes the amount of lease labilites recognised, initial direct costs incurred and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less amy lease incentives received, Right-of-use assets are depreclated on a stralight-line basts over the lease term.
Intangibles

These are carried at cost less acoumulated amortization and accumulated impaliment boss, if any.

Amartization is charged to statement of profit or loss on stralght fine basis over its econamic useful life ot the rate given in note 9 to these Anancial
statements, Amortization on sdditions is changed From the month in which an intangible asset i available for use while no amaortization is charged
fieur this manth inwhich an intangibile asset is disposed,

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible asset represented by the difference between the sale procéeds and the carrying amount
it recognized in the statement of profit o fess in the period of disposal.

An intangible asset’s carmying amount B written down Bo its recoverable amount If the carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
AUt

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cost, determined using moving average method and Net Realisable Valwe (NRV), less provision for obsobete items (if any),
Items in transit ane valwed at cost comprising inveice value phus other charges incumed thereon upto the repoerting date. Provision is made foritems
which are obsolete and slow maving and is determined based on management estimate regarding their future usability,

Stock-in-trade

These are valuad at the lower of cost and NRVY.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories (o their present location and condition,

Rawr materials - Welghted average cost
Work-in-process - Weighted average cost
Finsshed goods - Manufactured . Weighted average cost
Finished goods - Trading . ‘Weighted average cost
Stock-in-transit . Invoice value plus other charges paid theveon up bo the reporting date

MRV signifies the estimated selfing price in the ordinary course of business less estimated coms of completion and estimated costs necessarily 1o be
incurred bo make the sale.

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables excluding financial assets

These are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate mathod,
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59

589

592

393
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Investments at amortised cost
These are inwestments which meet the fallowing criteria:

held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows: and
the contractual terms of the financtal asset ghve rise on specified dates tocash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amaunt outstanding.

These are initially recognized at fair value which is equal to amount of consbderation paid at the time of acquisition and subsequently carried at
amaortised cost,

Cash and cash equivalents

These are carried 2t cost, For the purpose of staterment of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, bank balances and short
term running Anance.

Leases

The Company assesses al contract inception whether a confract is, or containg, a bease ve, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified assat for a period of ime in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurernent approach for all leases, excent for short-term lease, The Company recognises lease
liabilities o make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-tenm lease recognition exemgtion b its short tenm leases (e, beases that have a lease term of 12 months o less from
the commencement date and do not contain a parchase option], Lease payments on short term leases are recognised as expenss on b straight ling
basis cver the lease term.

Lease liabilities

Ar the commeancemant date of the leaze, the Company recognises lease Habilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made owver
the lzase term. The lease payments include fixed payments lincluding in-substance fixed payrnents) less lease incentives recelvable {If amy), variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate {if any), and amounts expected to be pald under residual value guarantees (if any)l. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasona bly certain to be exercised by the Company (if anyl and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease (if anyl, if the termination option is reasonably certain to be exercised. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index Gr 4 rate aré recognised &5 expenses in the period inowhich the event or condition that triggees the parypment odours, In calculating the present
value of lease payments a1 the lease commencement date, the Company uses the interest rate implicit in the lease. In case where the interest rate
imiplicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its incremental borowing rate, After the commencement date, the amount of
Iease labilities is increased to reflect the acoretion of interdst and reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is rermeasured i there i3 a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an
opian o purchsse the underdying asset,

Financial Instrements
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial Hability or equity instrument of another entity,
Financial assets

Initial recogmition and measurément Financial assets are classified at initial recognition and subseguently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other camprehensive income o fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of hinancial assets at initial recognition depends on the inancial assets contractual cash fow characternistics and the Company’s
business model for managing them, With the eception of trade recelvables, the Company initially meatunes a financial asset ot its fair valwe plug, in
the case of & financial asset not At fair value through profit or boss, transaction cos, Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15,
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In-arder for a Ainancial asset 1o be classified and measured at amortized costor fair valee through OCL it needs to give rise 1o cash flows that are sobely
payrments of princial and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, This assessment is referred to a5 the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level, The Company's Busingss model for managing Anancial assets refers 1o how it manages its hinancial assets in order Lo generate cazh
fiowes. The: business model Setermings whether cash ows will result from collecting contractial cash flows. selling the financial asets, or both,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets withina time frame established by requlation orconvention i the market place
{requiar way trades) are reccgnised on the irade date, Le. the date that the Cormpany commits 1o purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, Anancial assets are classified into following categories:

«  Financial assets at amortised cost [debt instroments)
«  Financial assets designated at fair value through QCIwith no recycling of cumulative gains and kosses upon derecognition (equity instruments]
+  Financial assets ot falr value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amaortised cost (debt instruments)
The Compaiy measures inancial aseets at amortized cost il bath of the fallowing conditions are met:

+  The Ainancial asset is held within a business moded with the ebjective to hold financial assets imorder to collect contractual cash fNowes; and
« The contractual terms of the inancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of peincipal and interest on the
princpal amaunt outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate [EM) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losges are recognised in statement of profit o loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is derecogaised, modified or impalired.

Financial assets designated at FVOC! (equity instruments)

Uposn initial recognition, the Company can elect 1o classify irrevocably its equity investments a5 equity instruments designated at FVOC) when they
maet the definition of equity under 145 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not hield for trading, The classification is determingd on an
instrument-by-instrument basis,

Gakns and losses on these financial assets are never recydled to profit of loss. Dividends are recognised as ather inoome in profit of loss when the rght
of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCHL Equity instruments designated at falr value throwgh O are mot subject to impalrment assessment.

Financial assets at FYPL

Financial assets at FYPL inchede financial assets held for trading. financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FYPL or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measwned at fair value, Financial assets are classied a5 held for trading if they ane acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term, Financial assots with cash fows that are not solely paymients of principal and intenest are classified and measured at
fair value threugh profit or loss, imespective of the business model, Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized
cost or at FVOCH, as described abowve, delbt instruments miay be designated st FYPL on initial recognition If doing so eliminates, or significantly
risduces, an accounting mismalch,

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the staterment of financlal position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in statement of prafit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

This categoey also includes derivative instrumenis and listed eguity investrvents which the Company had not lrevocably elected to classify at FVYOCL
Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when theright of payment has been established,

The Compamy has mot designated any Ainancial asset at FYPL

Derecogniticn
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a growp of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised tie. removed
frem the Cormpany’s statement of financial position) when:

«  The rights to recetve cash flows from the asset have expired, o

«  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flowi from the asset or has assumed an obligation o pay the received cash Bows in full
without material delay to a third party under a'pass-througlt’ arangement; and either (3} the Company has transferred substantiably all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither wansferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transfesred controf of the asset,
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5.2

When the Company has transherred its rights 10 recetve cash flaws from an asiet or has entered into @ pass-through amangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewands of ownership,

Whien it his neither trandfermed nor retained subdtantizlly all of the risks and resaards af the ssset, nod trandfened control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing Invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated Hability are measured on a basks that reflects the righits and obligations that the Company has
retaimed.

Continulng invodvernent that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset |s measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the madmum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repany.

ii} Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measuremaent
Financial liabilities are classified, at inftial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, beans and bomowings, pavables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate,

All financial [kabilities are recognised imitially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and pavables, net of directly attributable
transaction cost

Subsequent measurement

Financial lHabilitles at FVPL

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss Include Anancial Babilites held for trading and financial Eabilities designated upon nitial
recoqnition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on llabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or boss,
Financial Habilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only If
thie criteria in IFRS § are satished. The Company has not designated any financisl lizbility as at fair value through profit or loss,

Financial iabilities at amortized cost

Adter iniial recognition, borrowings and payables are subsequently measured at dmortized cost using the EIR method, Gaing and losses are
recognised in staternent of profit or lass and sther comprebensive inceme when the labilities are derceognised as well as through the BIR
ArOrtization proces,

Amortized cost 5 calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are anintegral part of the EIR. The
EiR armortisation is included as inance costs in staterment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer the settfement of the Hability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of borrowings in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of

the bomowing,

Derecagnition

A financial lability 15 derecognised when the obligation under the liabdlity is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced By another from the same kender on substantially dsferent terms, of the terms of an existing liability ane substantially modified, such an
exchange of modification is treated as the derecognition of the arlginal abélity and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective
canying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or less and other comprehensive income,

Offsetting of Anancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabdlities are offset and the net amount s reported in the statement of Anancial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an infention to setthe on a net basis, to realise the-assets and settle the Kabdlities
simultaneoushy,

Impairment

Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 replsces the Tncurred loss” model in 1AS 300with an ‘expected credit loss’ [ECL) model The new impairment model applies ta finsncial assets
measured ot amortised cost, contract assets and debit investments 31 FYOCH But not 10 investments in agulty instruments,

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash fiows that the Company
expects to recelve. The shortfall s then discounted at an approwimation 1o the asset’s original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
Inctude cash fliows fromthe sale of collateral held or other credit enhancernents that are integral to the contractual terms. However, in certain cases,
the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikety to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking Into account any credit enhancements held by the Company.
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AL each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired, A financial asset i credit-impaired” when one or mode
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred, Loss allowances Tor financial assets
msasured al amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the respective asset,

The Company uses the standasd's smplified approach and caleulates ECL based on life time ECL on its financlal assets. The Company has established
a provision matrix that is based on the Compary’s histosical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-leoking factors specific to the financial assets
and the sconomic environment.

Impalrment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. if such
an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, An impairment koss is recognised,
a% an expense in statement of profit o koss and other comprehensive income. The recaverable amaant is the higher of an asset’s fair value bess cost
to disposal and value in use, Value in use Is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows wsing a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets for which the ostimate of future cash flow have not been
adjusted, For the purpase of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for wivich there are separately identifiable cash flows
{cash-generating units).

An irmpairrnent lass is reversed if there i a change in the estimates used 1o determine the recoverable amount. An impairment boss 5 reversed only
to the extent that the asset's carning amount does not exceed the carrying amaunt that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, il no impairment koss had been recognised previously. Beversal of an impairment boss is recognised immediately in statement of profit
orloss and other comprehensive income.

Provistons

Provisicns are recognised when the Company has a present fegal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying econombs benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation and a rellable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions
are reviewisd a1 each reporting date and adjusted toreflect current best estirmate,

The amaunt recognized as provision is the best estimate of consideration required 1o settle the present obligation at the end of the neperting period,
taking into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the abligation.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable fo the acguisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for |15 intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assat. All other berrewing costs are expensed in the yearin
which they ocour. Borrowing cost consists of nterest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Fareign currency transactions and translations

Triwsactions in foreign currencies ane accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction, Manétary assets and
liahilities in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees at the rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing af the staterment of financial
position date, Exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit or less,

Unclaimed dividend

Dividend declared and remain unclaimed from the date it is dus.and payvable.

Staff retirement benefits - Gratuity

The Company operates an un-approved and unfunded defined beneht plan for all permanent employess who have completed the minimum
qualifying year of service for entitlemnent of gratuity. Gratuity is based on employees’ last drawn salary. Provislons are made to cover the obligations
under the schemw on the basis of actuarial recommendations, The actuarial valuations are carried out using the Projected Linit Credit Method.

Actuarial gain of loss [remeasurements) are immediately recognised in Other Comprehensive Income' a5 they occur, The amount récognised in the
staternent of financial position represents the present vadue of defined beneht abligations as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets, Cureent
service costs and any past service costs together with net interest coit are charged to prafit or lods,

Retirement benefits are payable to employess on completion of prescribed qualifying period of service under the Plan,
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5.24

[jarah contracts

Leases under Shariah compliant ljarah contracts, whens significant portion of the sk and reward of ewnership is retained by the lessor, are classihied
o5 arah, Rentals under thise arrangements ane chasged to statement of profit or loss on straight ling basis over the leade térm,

Taxation

Current
Provision for current tax is based in accordance with income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Daferred

Deferred tax is recogniped using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and Rabilities
and thelr carrying amounts appearing In the Anancial statements. Deferred tax fabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all dedusctible temporary differences to the extent that itis probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the futue and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets i reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer
probable that suffichent taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets 1o be utilzed.

As the provision for taxation has been made partrally under the normal basis and partially under the iinal tax regime, therefore, the defered tao
liability has been recognized on a proportionate basis in accordance with TR 27 issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan,

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the perod when the asset s realized or the Rability is
settfed, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date, Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the statement of profit or koss and other comprehensive income,

Rewenue recognition

Résvenue i recognised st amounts that reflect the consideration that the Company expects to be entitied 10 in exchange for tranaferring goods or
services o a custormern Revenue is messured 3t the fair value of the consideration received or receivabile, and is recognised when performance
obligation is fulfilled, at a point in time, when control of goods have been transherred to a customer. Generally, the normal eridit term i 30 ta 60 days
upcn delivery.

Other income

Return on short-term deposits and Investments at amortised cost are accounted for using the effective interest rate method.

Scrap sales are recognized on receipt basis.

Dividend and appropristion ta / from reserves

Dividend distribation 1o the Company’s shareholders is recognised a5 a lEability in the pericd In which the dividends are approved, However, if these
are approved after the reporting poriod but before the Snancial stitement ane authorised for issue, disckosune i made in the Anancial statements,

Contingent liabilities

Contingent abélity is disclosed whern: -

thiere is @ possihle obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the eocurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

there is a present obligation that arses from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the cbligation cannot be measure with sufficient reliabdlity.

Operating segments

For management purpases, the activities of the Company are srganized into ane reportable operating seqmient. The Company operates in the said
reportable sperating segment based on the nsture of the products, miks-and returnd, organizational and mansgement structure, and internal
financial reporting Systems, Accordingly, the figures reported in the financial staements ane related to the Company’s only reportable segment,
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525 Contract liabilities

A contract Habidlity is the obligation to transfer goods or services to 2 customer for which the Company has received consideration for an amount of
consideration is due] from the customaer, If a customier pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customaer, & contract
liabilty is recognized when the payment s made or the payment is due (whichever isearlier), Contract Habilities are recognised as revenue when the
Cormpany performs under the conlracL

526  Share capital & Reserves

Ordanary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Reserves comprise of capital and revenue reserves. Capital reserves represent share premivm while revenue reserves comprise of unapgropriated
profit.

527 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, Basic EPS s caloulated by dividing the profit or loss
anributable to ondinary sharehalders of the Company by the weighted sverage number of ordinary shares outstanding dusing the pericd, Diuted
EPS s determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ondinary shareholders and the welghted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding lor the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

5.28 Government grant

Government grants are recogalsed where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will e complied
with, When the grant relates toan expense [term, it |5 recogndsed as income on a systematic bases over the perlads that the related costs, for which it
Is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, It B recognized as income in egual amounts over the expected useful
life of the related asset.

5.29 Currént warsus non-current classifcation

Tha: Company presents assets and Rakbilities in the statement of financial position based on cumrent / non-cument classification, An asset is current
wihen it is:

Expected to be realised or Intended to be sold e consumed in the mormal eperating cycle

Heldd primaridy for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twebve manths after the eeporting period

Or

Cashor cash equivalent undess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at beast twelve months after the reporting period

Al other assets ane Classihed as non-current,

A fiability is curreny when:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

It i held primarily for the purpose of trading

165 e oy be seftled within twelve months after the reparting period

There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlernent of the liability for at least twebve months after the reparting period

The terms of the Kability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlerment by the isswe of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

The Company classifies all other liabdlities as non-curment.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-clrrent assets and lFabélities.

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with approved accounting standards requines the use of certain critical accounting estimates,
I-alse ridquires management te exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that aré believed 1o be
reasonable unders thie circumstances. Revisions o accounting estimates are recagnised in the year in whach the estimate is revised and inamy future
years affected, In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the follewing estimates and judgments which
are significant 1o the financial statements:
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Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the appropristeness of the rate of deprecistion, depreciation method, useful [Fe and residual vaboe used in the caleulation of
depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basiz, In
making thise estimates, the Company uses the technical resodrces avadlable with the Company, Ay change in estimates in future might affect the
canrying ameunt of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with coresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impaiment.

Surplus en revaluation of property. plant and equiprent

The Company reviews the appropriateness of the revaluation of certain assets periadically for the purpose of ensuring that the carrying amount of
the same does not differ materially from its fair vadue. in making this assessment, the Company uses the technical resources available with the
Company. Any change In assessment in future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with
corresponding effect on revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment.

Impairment financial assets
The Company uses a provision matex to caltulate ECLs for tradie debts and other receivables. The provision rates arg based on days past duee for
Company’s variows customers that hawe similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based an the Company’s histerical abserved default rates. The Company will calibeate the matrix o adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-loaking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are expected to deteronate aver the
next year which can lead to an Increased number of defaults in the manufactuting sector, the historical default rates are adjusted, At every reporiing
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the foreard-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation bebween historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs Is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs |s sensitive to changes in clroemstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss expertence and
forecast of economic conditizns may also not be representative of customer’s actual defautt in the future: The information about the ECLs on the
Company's kinancial assets exposed to credit risk is disclosed in note 43.2 to these financial statements.

Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options
The Company determines the kease teem as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option 1o extend the lease
il it i reasonably certain o be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if iTi reasonably certain not 1o be exergised,

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgerment in evaluating whether it
it reasonably certain whether of nol o exercise the option 10 fenew of terminate the lease, That i, it considers all relevant factons that create an
Soonamic incentive for it to exercise esther the renewal of tefmnateon. After the commencement date, the Company neassesses the lease term if there
isa significant event of change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to exescise the option o renew or to
terminate (e.q, construction of significant beasehold improvenments or significant customisation of the leased asset),

Estimating the incrermental borrowing rate

The Company cannok readily determine the interest rate implicit In the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate [1BR') to measure leasa
Tiabilities. The 1BR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessany to obtain anasset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economis environment.

Defined Benefit Plan
Cortain actuanial assumptions have Been adopled a5 disclosed in note 24 1o the finandal statements for the valuation of present value of defined
benefit abligations and falf value of plan assets. Ary changes in these assurmplions in fulune years might affect gains and losses in those years,

Taation

Skgnificant judgrment i requined in determining the provisson for income taxes and defered tax asset and Bability. The Company recognizes Makilities
for anticipated tax ssues based on estimates’ of whether additional taxes will be dus taking into account decissonsfudgement of appellete
authorities on similars tax issues in the past. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is diffesent from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the curment and deferred tax assets and labilities in the period in which such determination is made. The recognition of
deferred tax is also made taking into these judgements and the best estimate of Future resudts of the Company.

Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies. inherently imvalves the exercise of significant judgment as the cutcome of the future events cannot be
predicted with certainty, The Company, based on the availsbility of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and Rakilities
which may differ on the cocurrence / non-occufrence of the uncertain future events

Mate 2023 2022
F il 1ET I'T
o —— (RUp#Es in 0007 ——
Operating fixed assets ER 20,632,188 19,791,171
Capital work-En progress 12 1,631,305 1,787,080
22263497 21,578,251
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701 Operating foed asiets includee items having an aggregate cost of RS, 163,98 million (2022 RL 140 86 million] which have been fully depreciated and
are still in use of the Company,

712 Company’s leasehold Lingd, buitding on leatehold land and plant and machinery wene revalued by an independent valued - Ms MYE Assotiates
{Private] Limited on 30 June, 3021 on the basis of present market values for similar sized plots in the vicinity for land and replacement values of similar
type of buildings Based on present cost of construction [level 2) (refer note 43,6} and valuations for plant and machinery and bullding were based on
the estimated gross replacement cost, depreciated to reflect the residual service potential of the assers taking account of the age, condition and
obsolescence.

7.1.3 Had there been no revaluation, the book value of leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery would have been fis.
TOA 2027 (2022 Rs, 1.012.127) million, Rs. 1,836,534 {2022; Rs, 955.490) nﬂl_im and Rs, 12732102 [2022; Re 12,81 2.527) million, respectively,

7.1.4 Forced sale value as per the latest revaluation report as of 30 June, 2021 of land, buildings and plant and machineey is Rs, 7,361.3 million, As 1,223.9
million and Rs.10,554.6 milfion, respectively,

115
[Rupees in 000
M Capital Spares 9353 6430 7 6,357 Megatiation Minjabeer Wenor
Crther assets having book
walue less than
Ris S00.000 3002 5427 10,707 (3280
ULk 44,2155 11857 10,780 1077
e el 117880 T3 2 (2201}
716  Deprecistion charge for the year has been allocated as under: Mote 043 _ s
s [Hupees in 00} -
Cost of sales = produsction of bars 321 491,564 A7 48
Cost of sales —pfodl,lcﬂunnfhlllels 3204 346,465 282,997
Distribution costs 33 50,569 22,867
Administrative expenses 34 31,748 23,907
920,746 07,247

7.0.7 Includes land purchased from o related party with the tithe in process of being transferred in the name of the Company.

7.2 Capital work-in-progress

{Rupees In ‘000°)
Oypening balare 75,000 1,043,538 668,542 1,787.080 1467217
Additions during the yeae 45,000 153,499 1.263470 1.507,969 1842051
Transfer to aperating fioed assets = {966,130) {697,610} 11,663,7401 (1,622.188)

Closing balance 120,000 270,907 1,240,402 1,621,309 1 Er0en

7.2.1 During the year bormowing costs have been capitalized amounting to Rs, 200189 million (3022; Rs. 13,755 million) by using capitalization rate of 2.25%
{2022; 2.7,
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
OF-UISE-ASSETS

A at July 01

Cost

Accurmulated depreciation
Met book value

Year ended June 30

Crpening net book wvalue

Additions

Lease modification during the year
Depreciation charge for the year
Closing net book value

As at June 30

Lot

Accurnulated depreciation
MNet book value

8.1 Depreciation charge for the year on right-of-use-assets has been allocated as follows:

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Mote 2023 2022
ween (Hupees in 000} =
133,104 133,153
[56,694) 132R1
TEAT0 100,334
Té410 00334
102,284 .
= [49)
&1 (42,963 {23.875)
135,731 6410
235,388 133,104
(99,657) {56,694}
13573 76,410
2023 2022
wams (RUpeEs in 0007 =
i3 17678 17,390
34 25,345 6,485
41963 23875

832 The right-ol-use-assets comprise of office premises acquired on lease by the Company for its operations,

NTANGIBLE ARSETS
Computer software

Met carrying value

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Armartisation for the year

Balance at the end of the year

Gross carrying value

Cost

Additions during the year
Accumulated amaortization
Balance at the end of the year

Lisedul life

2023 2022
wans (RUpRES i QOO e
11,872 18,624
2,347 891
[7.619) (7.643)
6600 11,872
72,356 71,465
2,347 291
[6E,103) {50.484)
&,600 11,872
Years
3Ito5 ites

9.1  Intangible assets include lems having an aggregate cost of Rs. 48.015 milllon (2022: As. 34.333 milllen] which have been fully amortized and are still

Inwse of the Company
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FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

113

T2

LOMNG-TERM INVESTMENT orlired o

Riepresents term depasits receipts held with lslamic bank 25 a len for guarantee istued on behalf of the Company and carries profit at the rate of
10.9% (2022; B.4%] per annum having maturity in June 2024, These will be rolled aver at the end of their maturity.

MNG-TERM DEPOSITS AND LOANS-Intersst Free 2023 2022
R Note (Rupaes in 0007
Margin against guarantess 38,280 38,2380
Urilities 77,305 77305
Iparah f Demanishing Musharaka 34,546 511
Container deposits 6,000 G000
Rent 17870 14,171

174,000 174,267
2023 2022
LOANS - unsecured
D frarm; sl
- Exgcutives 111 34,770 45898
- Employess 18,931 13,314
1.2 33,7M 59,212
Less: Recelvable within one year
- Executives 10,193 17887
- Employees 23,792 11,599
33,985 29486
19,716 28720
193,717 203993

The maximum aggregate amount due from soecutives ot the end of any month diring the year was Rs, 44.216 million (2022: Ry.45.858 million], The
risconciliation of the carrying amount of loans 1o executives is as follows:

2023 2022

sana (RUpERS i VOO wee
Balance at beginning of the year 45,808 G261
Disbursements 12,379 55,806
Repayrnents [23,507) {19,189}
Balance at end of the year 34,770 45,898

Represents interest free loans to employees in accordance with the Company policy. These are recoverabde in twelve to fifty two equal monthly
installments.,

CTOCK-IN-TRADE 2023 2022
— (Rupees in"'000) —

Raw materials

- In hand 1,911,762 5,085,067

- In transit 1,485,233 TERAZG
3,356,906 5853503

‘Work-in-process 967.718 1,245.729

Finished goods

- Manufactured 2,727425 3918425

- Trading 5,075 -
2731504 3918425
7007218 11017657
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FORTHEYEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
Mote 2023 2022
i3, TRADE DOBTS - unsecurad
= [Rupees in 000} —
Considesed good 4,973,402 5478,00%
Considered doubaiul 297.714 187.011
133 5271116 5665015
Allowance for expected creditboss 131 {297,714} {167,011}
4,973,402 5478005
131  Mowvement of allowance for expected credit loss
Opening balance 187.011 182,355
Charge / (reversal) during the year 119,602 5477
Wirite-off during the year {8.899) 1 il
Closing balance 297,714 187.011

13.2 The ageing of rade debts is as follows:

2023 e [RUp RS [0 OO

Expected credit loss rate 5.65%. 0.12% 1.13% 7.16% 56.88%
Estimated total gross

carrying armount at default 527,116 3,379,014 1,222,373 202 565 __ 466855
Expected credit loss __ 297,714 3978 13645 14515 = 265566
022

Expected credit loss rate 3300 005 081 11.25% 6.1 3%
Estimated total gross

carrying amount at defauit 5865016 4,420,844 926,139 72304 245,719
Expected credit loss terenl . 3851 7510 AL 167 406

*inchades amount receivabile from related party

2023 2022
123 Includes amount receivabile from related parties a5 follows:
=== [Rupees in 000 ——
Hadi Akber Ali 834 ERED]
Abbas Akber All 4,093 =
4,917 ERE]]

13.4  The maximum amount due from related party at the end of any month dunng the year was Re. 11153 millbon (2022; Rs. 2.9 millon). The Company
has recognized an allowance for expected credit loss amounting te Rs 0,0145 mitlion (2032: s, 0,038 million) as of 30 June 2023

1023 2032
LOANS AMD ADVANCES - unsecured Mote — [Rupees in’0007] ---
Current portien of long term loans 11 33,985 29486
Advances - interest free
Considered good
Suppieers 10805 23,666
Employess T0g 285
11,509 23,961
Considered deubtful 1,376 1,376
Less: atlowance for expected credit losses {1,376) (1.376)
11,509 23961
45 494 53,447
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FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

Trade deposits - interest free, considered good
Considered good
Container depaiits

Shart term prepayments
- Insurance
Software maintenanos
Subscription fee
Ohiers

Note

Sales tax refundable
Accrued profit on term deposits recelpts and savings account

Cash in hand
Bank balances

Current accounts
Saning Accounts 171

17.1  These carry profit at rates ranging from 6.75% to 20.5% (2022: 5.50% to 5.67%) per annum,

K & ouE R O A
HARE CAPITAL

18.1  Authorized capital

Murmiber of shares
Note
023 2023
0,000, D00 20,000, 00 Orddinany shares of Ry, 10¢- each
0,000,000 B, 00 Curmasativi proference shanes of
S00,000,000 500,000,000 Fs. 10-each
18.2 |Issued, subscribed and pakd-up capital
Ordiniary shaees of As. 10/ each
263883930 263LA83930 Isspind For cash
33127497 33137457 Isssed for consideration otherthancash - 184

71427 297001427

| INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023

2023 2022
weas (Rupees in 0007 =
3.400 10,165
6,524 5,395
o247 10,997

= 3,750

1.596 953

17,367 21,095
20,767 31,260

2023 2022
- (RUpees in (00] —

210,435 .

BO1 266

211,236 266
5,307 46,299

261,278 308,164
1,328 2,406

262,606 310,570

271,913 356,869

2023 2022
—- (Rupees in"000) —
4,200,000 4, 000000

00,000 ED0000
5,000,000 5,000,000
331,275 331,275
2570114 2370114




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JLINE 2023
2023 2022

18.3  Following is the detalf of shares hetd by the related partbes: e [Rup@es in 000} ==
fr. Abbas Akberali 91,294,723 1,254,723
s, Makwash Akberali 55, 732930 85732530
Mr. Hadi Abbas Akberali ERRE P g bl Tz
P, Shayan Akberali 35,654,840 35,654,840
Ivis. Kingea Shayan 1,746,383 1,746,383
Ms. Salsabil Akberall 1,254,759 1,254,750
Nr. Badar Kazmi 1,000 1,000
s, Mariarn Akberali 1,000 1,000
Pr. Tedzoon Kisat 500 500
Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji 12,000 12.000

223,470,347 233470347

184  Includes 952,497 ordinary shares issued to various shareholders of the Company against plant and machinery and 32,175,000 ordinary shares of the
Company against purchase of other fixed assets,

185 Vating rights, Board selection, right of first refusal and block voting ane in proportion to the sharsholding.

2023 2022
T PLUS N PR P [ | LIPMEN
- (Rupees in 000} —
Dpening bakange 4,641,868 4,744,717
Teariler to wnappropristed prafit in nespect of incremental
depreciation charged dunng tha pear 1103,066) 11028490
4,538,802 641,368
Related deferred tax liability
Opening balance [936,209) {370,149
Incremental depreciation charged during the year 40,196 313,940
(896,013) 1936,209)
3,642,789 3705659
19.7  Breakup of revaluation surplus net of deferred tax is as follows:
Leasehold land 1,924,553 1,524,553
Builtdings on leasehold land 340,984 s 219
Plant and machinery —M3TTASE.  ___La3387
3.642,789 3705659
2023 022
MG-TERM FINANCING - secured Mote o [RUPEES in OO0)
Term Finance Facility 2001 3,668,355 4460373
[slamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF) 20.2 852,307 G807
SEP Financing for Renewable Energy 203 419,713 581,100
Temporary Economic Refinance Facility {TERF) 204 48,156 =
Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries 205 - 112,825
Diminishing Musharaka 205 15,048 3,434
Current Portion 11,799,650) [1,353.625)
3,704,699 A,F20914

20,1 Represents teem finance facilithes obialned from commeeecial banks and development finance institulkon (DFl) to refinance capital expenditure
Imcurred by the company. These carry markup rate ranging from & month KIBOR plus 0.40% to 3 month KIBOR plus 1,504 {20225 months EIBOR phes
0.4% to 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5% ). These facilities are secured initially against a ranking charge of 426.66 million on all present and future fixed
aasets of the company with 25% margin convertible to first pari passu charge on all present and Future fiked assets of the company with 25% marngin
and an equitable morgage over all immovable ficed assets of the company (inchading land & building) with 25% margin, As of June 30, 2023,
unatilized portion of the facilities is Bs. 563.5 million {2033 Ry, Nill,

202 - Represents financing facility obtained from an Blamic Bank for import of machinery wnder Islamic TERF Scheme by SBP repayable in ten years
theoargh 32 equal quartedy installments Btest by Agril 2031 and has been recognised at present value discounted at the effective rate of intenest. This
carries mark-up at the SBP rate plus 235% (2022; 2.25%) per annum, The differential mark-up has been recognised as government grant (as
rentionad in note 26) which will be amaortised over the useful life of thie assets. This facility is secured against specific change on plant and machinery
of the Company. Asof June 30, 2023, unutilized portion of the facitity is s, Ml (2022 #s. 100 méllion).
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203 Represents financing facility obtained from an [slamic Bank to setup a 7 MW Solar Power Project under SBP Financing Facility fer Renbwable Energy
repayable in tem years through 36 equal guarterly installments latest by December 20249 and has been recognised at present value discounted at the
effective rate of interest. This carmies mark-up at the SBP rate plus 0.95% per annum. The differentkal mark-up has been recognised as government
grant {as mentioned in note 26) which will be-amortised over the useful life of the assets. The facility is secured by way of Arst pari passu charge over
freed assets of the Company with 25% margin over the facility amount. As of June 30, 2023, unutilized portion of the facility is Rs. 15.88 million,

20.4  Represents financing facility obtained from development finance institution (DF) for impaort of machinery under TERF Scheme by SBP repayable in
eight years threwgh 24 equal quarterdy installments letest by Decermber 2030 and hag bien recognised at present value discownted a1 the effective
rte of interest. This caries mark-up at the SBP rate pus 2.25% per annwm, The diferential mark-up has been recognised as governmaent grant {as
mentioned in note 263 which will be amortised owver the useful life of the assets, The facility s secured by way of first pari passu charge over figed
assets of the Company with 25% margin aver the facility amount, As of June 30, 2023, unutifized portion of the facility is NIL

20.5 - Represents financing facility obtained from a conventional bank under the Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries by State Bank of
Pakistan carrying mark-up at the ratesranging from 1.5% to 2.5% repayabie in 8 equal quarterly installrments latest by January 2023 and has been
recognised at present value discounted at the effective rate of intesest. The differential mark-up has been recognised as government grant {as
rmentioned In note 26) which will be amortised over the useful life of the assets. The facility Is secured by way of first panl passu charge over fised
assets of the Company with 25% margbn over the facility amount,

206 Represents Diminishing Musharaka facilities obtained from lslamic Anancial institutions, These faciities are repayable in equal monthly and quarterly
installments latest by May 2027 and June 2027 respectively, These carry markugp rate ranging from & months KIBOR plus 0.75% to & manths KIBOR
plus 1.65% per annwm (2021 6 months KIBOR plus 0.75% to & menths KIBOR plus 1.6% per annum), These facilities are secured by title over
Diminishing Musharaka assets and current and future fioed asset of the Company, As of June 20, 2023, enutificed portion of the facilities i Rs. 83,952
riilliorn (B022: Rs. 277 565 million).

N | LR ERM PROVEISIDON

Represents non-curmnt portion of pravision for Gas Infrastructune Deévelopment Cess (0C) During the yea énded 2021, the Honorable Suprenme
Court of Pakistan {SCP) has upheld the Gas Infrastructune Development Cess Act, 2015 to be constitutional and intravires allowing settlement of GIDC
oeier 3 period of farty-eight monthly instaliments. However, the Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable High Court of Sindh {the Court]
on the grounds that no burden of GIDC had Been passed 1o its custemers and thus, the Company is not liable to pay GIOC under GIDC Act 2015, The
Cowrt vide its order dated September 22, 2020 has granted stay to the Comparny.

The Company without prejudice to the suit filed, has made a provision amounting to Rs. 212731 million under the relevant accounting standards
and ICAP guidelines in this regand,

Al FROM RELATED PARTIES

Represents loans abtained from related parties amounting to Bs, 21633 million {2022 Rs. 241 million) at a rate of 3 month KIBOR repayable on
September 30, 2023, The koan was oblained o meet the financial needs of the Company along with the purchase of immovable property.

2023 2022
IRED TAXATION Mote —— (Rupees in 0007 —
Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
Provisions {444,088) {330.5400
Unused tax credits 23.1 {2.6821,262) [2,525467)
13,265,348) (2856100
Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
Accelerated tax depreciation / amortization 3,344,573 2535812
Right-of-use-assens 52,935 25215
Surphus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 96,012 936,208
520 349735
1,028,172 641,128

231 Deferred tax assel is recognised for tax losses, minimum tax, alternative corporate tax, and depreciation avasdlable for camy forward to the extent of
the realzationof the related tax benefit through future taxable profits; based on the projecthons, 5 probable. As of the date of statement of financial
position, defered tax asset amounting to Rs. 356,455 (2002 Rs. 193 .264) million in respect of minkmum tax credits has not been recognised in these
financial staterments.
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2023 2022
JEFERREDD | |
e Note o (Rupees in '000°)
Defined benefit obligation - gratuity scheme 241 452,985 359,916
4.1 Amount recognised in statement of inancial position
Opening balance 369916 308,193
Charge for the year 4.2 92,915 .58
Recognised in other comprehensive income 22,587 17073
Benefits paid (32,833) (27,871}
Closing balance 452 585 IEH916
24,2 Mowvement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Current service cost 46,116 41,374
Interest ooet A6, 795 30,147
92915 71,521
24.3  Historical information for defined benefit plans
2023 2027 2021 2020 2015
[Rupees in 000"y
Present value of defined
beneht obligations 452,985 3655916 305,153 154,748 205420
Exparience sdjuitment
on plan liabilities 22987 17073 5608 5325 22458
244 Principal actearial assumptions 2023 1022
Expécted rate of ingreas in salary bevel 14.75% 12.25%
Valuation discount rate 15.75% 13.25%
Awérage expected remaining working fife of employees 10 years 9.7 years
Maormal retinerment dge of employees 60 years 60 yard
Expestedmurtolity ot SLIC2001-2005 SLIC 2001- 2005
Sethack 1 Year Sethack 1 Year
Age-Based Age-Based
{per appendix) [per appendix)

24.5 Risk on account of un approved gratulty scheme

Final salary risk

Thie risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of sarvice |s greater than what was assurmed. Since the benefit s caloulated on the final salary
{wehich will closeky reflect inflation and cther macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases proportionately with the increase in salary.

Discount rate Ructuation

The plan liabilities are caleulated using o discount rate determined by reference to market yields {2t the statement of fiancial position date) on
government band, Accordingly, there is b risk that any increéase or decrease in government Bond yields will decrease or increase plan liabslities

Withd rawal risk

The risk that the sctual withdrawal experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of thie withdrawal risk vares with

the age, service and entitled benefits of the beneficiany.

Mortality risk

Thee risk that the actual mortality experience is diffesent than the assumed monality. This effect i maore pronounced in schermes where the age and

senvice distributlion is on the higher side.
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246 Charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales - production of bars
Cost of sakes - production of billets
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

247 Sensitivity analysis

Present value ol defined benelit obligations

Prewent value of defined benefit abligations

iRt A RIFTLA CETATEMERTS
- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mot 2023 20232
= (Rupees in 0007} —
IxI2 4,178 20119
3211 18,202 13,540
33 17,244 11,685
341 33,291 26,067
92,915 71,5218
2023
Discount rate Salary increase
+ 100 byps - 1040 bps +100bBps  -100bps
(Rupees in 000}
400, 1ED 484,638 AR5, 344 358,919
2022
Discount rate Salary increase
+ 100 bps - 100 bps +100bps -100bps
{Rupees in 000)
330368 400,205 407,520 329277

248  Asof June 30, 2023, a tofal of 623 employees have been covered under the above schemse.

24.9  As per the recommendation of the actuary, the charge for the year ending June 30, 2024 amounts to As, 121,701 millisn;

Bafance at beginning of the year

Additions during the year

Accretion of interest

Lease rental payments made during the year
Lease modification during the year
Batance at end of the year

Current porthan of lease labilties
Lomng-term lease liabilities

250 Maturity analysis
Gross fease Rabilithes - minimum lease payments:

Mot later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not fater than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Future Ainarice charge
Present value of inance lease liabiliies

Qpening balance

Received durning the year

Released ta the stazernent of profit or loss
Closing balance

Current portion of gowermment grant
Won Current portion af government grant
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2023 2022
=== [Rupees in 0007 —-
85767 107,817
102,284 -
20,005 9270
{52,730} (30,271}
- {49}
156,326 86,767
{34,529) (14,351}
121,797 72416
48,785 22,060
116,586 2,401
50,555 50555
216,380 135,460
{60054} (48,697}
156,326 86,767
2022 2022
o= (Rupees in 000} -
213,284 13,419
217,354 232,272
{21,913} (32,407}
408,725 213,284
27161 42,643
381,564 170,641
408,725 213,284
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s
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26.1  As aforementioned in notes 20.2 1o 3005, the Government grant has been recorded as per the provisions of 1A5-20 due to the difference betwesn
coupan and effective interest rates of the aforementioned financial liabilities.

Hote 2023 2022
i — (Rupées in "000] —

Creditors 3,989,893 355,001
Murabaha & Musawama P 366,968 4,056,998
Aoerued liabilities 318,265 1,281,195
Curment partion of provision for GIDC 21 65,867 66,501
Woarkers Welfare Fund 212 202477 202 477
Wrkers Profit Participation Fund - 111,725
Withholding tax payakile 35500 21,784
Sales tax payable - 132,450
ljarah rentals payable - 191
4,979,403 6,238,326

27.1  FRepresents Murabaha & Musawama facihthes amounting to Rs. 8,300 milllon {2022 Rs. 7,300 millon) obtained from islamic banks for purchase of raw
material, These carry profit at the rates ranging from refevant 3 month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 3 month KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2022: relevant 6
month BRIBOR plus 0.5% to 3 month KIBOR plus 1.5% per annumi. These fagilities are secured by joint hypothecation change over present and future
current assets of the Company with 25% margin,

272 Includes Rs. 128024 milion pertaining to Ainancial wears ending 30 June 2075 to 30 June 2008, The amount is still outstanding as the matter is
pending adjudication at the Honerable High Court of Sindh due to the 18th amendment in the Constitution of Pakistan.

2023 2022

REST / MARK-LUP ACCRUED = |Rupees in 0007 ——
Long-term financing 95,826 71060
Short-term bormwings 584,723 298,210
Murabaha 28,393 110,572
708,942 480,243
Related parties 9,342 40,857
800,284 521,139
Mote 2023 2022

DRT-TERM BORROWINGS - secured —— |Rupees In 000} —
Cash finance Fi R To& TG o065
Running finance Fi ] 1,972,797 20T
Istisna 9.3 3,506,900 2.5006.882
Finance against trust receipts 254 3,580,724 TS0
Short term loan 9.5 1,404,000 $25.000
11,331,137 12,573,272

291 Represents working capital facilities availed from various Isdamic and conventional banks carrying markup/profit of 1 month KIBOR + 1% per annum,
{2022:1 moath KIBOR + 0.75% to 1 manth KIBOR + 1% per annurm).

29.2  Represents working capital facilities availed from various Islamic and conventional banks canrving markup/'profit ranging from 3 month EIBOR plus
00558 to 3 menth KIBOR plus 1.50% perannum {2022 3 month KIBOR plus 0.6% te 3 month KIBOR plus 1.50% per annum).

29.3  Represents working capital facilities avasled from variows Islamic banks canrying profit ranging from & month KIBOR plus 0U75% o6 month KIBOR plus
1.15% per anmum (2023 & month KIBOR plus 0,75% to & manth KIBOR plus 1% per annumi.

294 Represents working capital facilities availed from vatious Islamic and conventional banks carrying markupyprofit ranging from 3 month KIBOR plus
055% to 6 month KIBOR plus 1.00% per anmem (2022 1 month KIBOR plus 0.5% to 3 month KIBOR plus 1.35% pér snnum).

295 Represents working capital facilities avaibed from various lslamic and corventional banks canmying markupfprofit ranging from 1 year KIBOR plus
1.00% to 3 month KIEOR plus 1.35% per annum (2022 3 month KIBOR plus 1,15% por annum (e 3 month KIBOR plus 1.25% per annum},

296 As of the statement of financlal position date, the Company has unutilized facilivies for short term bosmowings from Islamic and comventional banks

armounting to Fs. 3,521 million and Fs, 4,702 million (2022: Rs. 2,004 million and Rs: 5,027 million) respectively. Thess facilities are securad by way of
joint lvpothecation charge owver present and future cusrent assets of the Company with 25% margin
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0.2

303

0.6

LN TN GENCTES AMNEY CORNITTMENTS
Contingencies

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Deputy Commisgioner Inland Revenuee (DCIRY, Large Taxpayers’ Unit (LTU), Rarachi passed an Order on the
contention that the Company had violated the provisions of Rule 58H of Chapter X1 of the Sales Tax Spedial Procedure Rules, 2007 (the Rules) and
raised an alleged demand of Rs. 2013620 million for the tax periods July 3013 e December 2004, Thie Company filed an appeal against the Onder at
the Appellate Tribwnal Inland Revenue (ATIR) and had secured interirn stay from the Honorable High Court of Sindh {The Couwrt], During the year
ended 30 June, 2018, the ATIR has deckded the case in favour of the Company. During the year ended 30 June 2030, the Federal Board of Revenue
filed reference application before the Court agakmst ATIR's Order. Althoigh the case is still pending adjudication, the Company Based on the merit.of
thie case and as per the advice of the legal advisor expects a favourable outcome on this matter and accordingly, no provision has beenmade in these
femancial staterments.

The Federal Board of Revenue issued Sales Tax General Ovder (STOO) Mo 18 of 2016 an 14 March 2017 and STGO Nod 192017 on 18 August 2017,
whereby the procedure for payments and claiming adjustments of advance sales tax was amended, Before the STGOs, sabirs tax was being paid by the
Company on the basls of Rules 58{H) of the Rules, The Company has challenged both the STGOs before the Court restraining the tax department to
cabculate the sales tax liabitity on the basis of the sakd STGOS and requesting continuation of the procedune of paymant and adjustrent of advance
tax on the basis of the Rules. The Court granted stay against bath the said 5TG0s with the direction that impugned STGOs shall remain suspended
and the Company shall e entitled for ¢laiming adjustment of advance sales tax on the basis of the Rules, The financial exposure af the Company wp
1o 30 June 2021 is Re 1,166.03 million (2021: B, 1,166.08 million]. The managerment based on a legal advice is confident that the sutcome will be in
favour of the Company. Accardingly, no provision has been made in these financial staterments.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Deputy Commissioner infand Revenue, Large Taxpayers' Unit; Karachl issued show-cause notice under
Section 11{2) of the Sabes Tax Act. (the Act] 1950 {the Act] for alleged non-charging of further tax on the supplies made to unregistersd persons and
raised an alleged demand of Rs. 305 millon for the tax periods July 2015 to June 2017, The Company had fled a Constitutional Petition bafore the
Court which issued an interim order, restralning any coercive action against the Company. The stay will remain in field until further directions from
the Court, The management, based on legal advice, is confident that the eventual outcome will be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no
provision has been made in this respect in these financial statements,

Durineg the year ended 30 June 2021, the Deputy Commissioner Infand Revenue, Large Taxpayers' Unit, Karachi issued show-causs notice under
section 1102} of the Act, for alleged non-chasging of further tax on the supplies made 1o unregistered and raised an alleged demand of Rs, 1,723
billion for the tax periods July 2014 to June 2020, The Company filed 3 constitutional petition before the Court which issued an interiom order dated
December 23, 2020, restraining any coercive action against the Company, The arder will rermain in farce until further directions from the Court. The
management based on the legal advice, is confident that the eventual cutcome will be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, ne provision has been
macle in this respect in these finandial statements.

During the yearended 30 June 2021, the Additional Commissioner inland Revenue (ACIR), Lasge Taxpayer Office (LTO), Karachi passed an Orderunder
section 1221541 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) and raised an afleged demand of Bs. 7224 million for the tax year 2015. The
Company Is currently contesting the sald order at the Appellate Tribsnal Inland Revenue. Although the case s still pending adjudication, the
Company, based on the mevits of the case and as per the opinion of its fax advisorn, expects a Favarable outcome. Accordingly, no prowision has been
mare in these financial statements.

Durirvg the year ended 30 June 2022, the Additional Commissioner Infand Revenue (ACIRY, Large Taxpayer Office (LTO), Karachi passed an Order under
section 122(5A) of the Incame Tax Ordinance, 2007 and raised an alleged demand of Rs, 150,207 million for the tax year 2017, The Company led an
appeal against the Order at the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) = (CIR-(Appeals)) and had securned an interim stay fram the CIR (Appeals)
under Section 140 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 3001, Althowgh the case is still pending adjudication, the Company based an the rmerits of the case
and as per the advice of the tax advizsor expects a favarable outcome on this matter and accordingly, no provision has been made in these Anancial
ERELT

Dwring the year ended 30 June 2032, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) ssued show-cause notice dated 05 April 2032 under
Section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby he had raised certain queries relating to apportionment of expenses, tax credit under
Section 65E and admissibility of provisions relating to return filed for tax year 2027 . In response, the Company filed explanation along-with
docuementary evidence, Subsequent to the year end, ACIR isswed an order under Section 122(58) of the Ordinance whereby tax demand of
Rs. 196,061,562 has been raised. The Company is currently conbesting the said order at the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue. Although the case is
still pending adjudication, the Company, based on the merits of the case and as per the opinlon of its tax advisor, expects a favorable cutcome,
Accordingly, ne provision has been madein these financial statements.
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Commitments

0.8 Quistanding letters of credit
= Material
- Capes

Curstanding letters of guarantee

2023 2022
= [Rupees in 000 —
5564811 5814377
356,567 229,045
5,921,378 G423 405
ARG, 356 583,356

0.9  Commitrments for meatald payable under Harah contracts in reipedt of vehicles and plant and machinery with llamic banks ane as follows:

Mot |later than ané year

Later than coe year but not later than five years

Local

Gross sabes

Less: sales tax

Less; trade discounts

Export sales

311
millian],

Manulactured stock - Bars
Manufactured stock - billers

321  Lostof sales - manufactured goods

Opening stock = work in progress

Cost of bittets manufactured internally

Billets sold
Purchases
Closing stock - work in progress

Manufacturing overheads
Arores and spares consurmed
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Cartage and transpart

Fuel, power and water
Depreclatian

ljarah rentals

Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Rent, rates and taxes
Condultancy charges
‘ehbcle runnkng expense
Conweyance and trave|ling
Canteen ¢upendes

Othars

Cost of goods manufacturcd
Cost of bars wsed for 0w use

Finished goods
Opentng stoack
Closing stock

Hote

12
3211

12

£ )

3213
116

12
iz
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m@ lEIEE
24,461 56,373
2023 2022
== |Rupees In 0007} ——
53,438,364 B8,079,565
(7,917,618} (5,505, 711)
(99,216} (46,916]
45,421,530 58,126,333
71,194 57943
45,492,724 58,184,782

Revenue recognized duting the year from contract liabilities as at the beginning of the year amounted to Rs, 773573 million (2022: Rs. 499.708

023 2032
- [Rupees in 0007 —-—
3B,544,680 51,121,850
985,880 570,845
34,530,560 51,692,795
1,245,739 790,573
34,930,381 49,358,241
{985,880) (570,545
35,282 1,507 826
(967, 718] (1,245, 724)
T 34,257,794 T a9g40488

281,865 325,528
422,954 45213
438,769 420,153
1,209,369 1,643,163
491,964 377476
57 1396
43,652 2BARY
3628 3669

114 (213

65 in

23,702 14,440
30,487 15,103
27,165 17.003
337 28,79

3,107,498 3328890

37,365,242 53,269,356
(11.612) {14,323)
37,353,680 53,255,034
3,918,425 1,785,341
(2,727,425} (3.5918,425)
1,191,000 i2.133,084)
38,544,680 51,121,950




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
32.1.1 Cost ef billets manufactured internally Hote 023 022
Raw material consumed —— {Rupees In 0007 —
Opening stock 12 5,085.067 2024381
Purchases 24 hFy ) 2648152
19,531,996 44672573
Clesing stock 12 (1,911,763} 13, 0E5,067)
27,620,233 30,587,506
Manufacturing overheads
Stores and spares condumed 2,376,412 3333377
Salaries, wages and other benefits 321 532,631 546,313
Depreclation FA6R2G 324,552 282,907
Fuil and power 32102 Fan.sre 5410228
ljarah rentals 3,003 5,360
Cartage 60,652 67,535
Repalrs and maintenance 29,754 33,067
Fent, rates and taxes 1,894 562
Insurance 7,023 4812
Conveyance and travelling 43,214 28,248
Cantedan expenses 8,773 15113
Wihicle TURINING ExXpre 21,1 14,214
Others 9,557 27,505
7,310,148 9,770,735
34,930,381 45,358,241
32100 Includes Rs. 18,3202 milllon {20232: /5.13.54 milliom) in respect of staff retirement benefits,
T2V 1 ncludes Rs. Mil million [(2022; Rs. 229.660] In respoct of reversal of provision of Industrial Support Package Adjustment (15PA) charge.
32.1.2 Inchudes Rs. 24,178 million (2022; Rs. 20,129 million) in respect of staff retiremient benefits.
3213 Includes Rs, Mil millian (2022 Rs43.001) i respect of reversal of provision of Industrial Supgart Package Adjustrent (1I584) charge.
Note 2023 2022
3 ISTRIBUTIO = [Aupees In 0007} —
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 331 238,018 243 ,B71
Carriage and transport 392,022 375,008
Advertisement and sales promothon 108,893 286,631
Depreciation fleg&sl 68,187 40,257
Utilities 16,021 11,341
Bundling and special order charges 73,754 113m
Rent, rates and taxes 1,22} 755
Vehicle running expense 21,386 11,882
Travedling and convieyance 2,430 13,790
Packing material 35824 53,022
Regair and maimténance 29,635 41,745
Entertainimani 8,284 5,940
Others 6,102 5,567
1,008,778 1,203,640

330
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Includes Rs. 17.244 million {2022: Rs. 11685 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits,




AITEE T THE CIRARMSIAL CTATEAMEMTE
W iel IOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

for

2023 2022
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEMNSES Note - (Rupees n 0007 —
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 34.1 462,139 506,948
Depreciation T16881 57,093 30,392
Amortislion @ 1619 F.643
Travelling ond conveyance 5,906 5314
Legal and professhonal charges 47319 33,353
Research expanses 3,304 10,057
Vehicles runnkng expenses 37,600 2,189
Security guand expenses 6,432 a4,102
Insurance 2,793 1.711
Comperter consumables 27,736 24,630
Rent, rates and tames . 2812 11,547
Communication charges 8,965 9,195
Printing and stationery 3032 4631
Litilitics 19,395 11,426
FAupditors’ remasneration 4.2 4,164 3 B95
Repairs and maintenance 38,707 30,664
ljarah rentals 2870 6,739
nhers 13,155 12,345
751,114 735571
341 Includes Bs. 33,2971 million (2022 Rs, 26,167 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
2023 2022
342 Auwditors’ remuneration —- (Rupees in "000°) —
At fee 2415 2,300
Review of half yearly Rnancial statements and other certifications 1,155 1,100
Out of pocket expenses 554 405
4,164 3895
2023 2022
' o - (Rupees in'000') —
Workers profit participation fund - 111,725
Warkers Wellare fund - 44,690
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 715 1,077 -
Exchange Loss 24,101 -
Detention chasges 36,500 8,062
Donations. 3518 352 J],-ﬂ-'l'ﬂ 21,938
84,007 186,445

35.1 Donations include the following donees to whom donations excesd 10% of total donation or Rs. 1 million wihichewver Is higher:

Ciaweat & Hadiya 2,500 .
Hunar Foundation 3,000 .
JEC Foundation 2,000 *
Muharmrnad Anaar 1,511 5
Pakistan Mational Society for S0il Mechanics & Foundation Engineering 1,000 -
Hamal University = 8,000
The Citizen Foundation = 3,000
Khana Ghar 1,996 1,369
Guality Schoots Foundation - 1,000
12,007 13,360

35.2 Recipbents of donations do not include any denee In which any director or his spouse had any interest except for donation paid to &mreli Foundation
and Hunar Foundation amounting to Rs 0.31 millicn and Rs 3 million respectively. Mr. Abbas Akberali, Mr. Had| Abbas Akberali, Me. Shayan Akberali
are also directors in Ameell Foundation. Further, M, Abbas Akberall |s also a director in Humar Foundathon,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
OTHER INCOME 2023 2022
= (RUpees in 000} —
Inceme frarm financial assets
- Profit on saving accounts 554 4
- Profit on TORs 6,313 1,018
income from non-financial assets LT 1459,
- {Galn on disposal of property, plant and eqguipment - 2,200
- Scrap sales 1,445 a407
- Reversal of excess provision against security deposit considered doubtful - 12,750
1,445 23544
8,312 24,507
FINANCE COSTS 2023 2033
=== [Rupees in 0007 =
Markup f interest
Long-term Ainancing 991,203 538,795
Shart-term borrowings 2,556,908 1,315,555
Murrabaha & Musawama 355821 376,764
Loan from related parties 61,410 38720
Right-of-use-assets 25 20,005 3270
Wharkers' profit participation fund 14,708 5,206
4,000,755 2,184,310
Bank charges 32,006 23,387
4,032,761 2,306,697
7, TAXATION 2023 023
MNota waee (RUpeRs In OO0
Current tax 38.1 256,557 318,750
Diefarred fax 396,010 433,759
652,567 752,544

381 The return of income for the tax year 2022 has been filed by the Company. The said return, as per the provisions of Section 120 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 has been deemed 1o be an assessment order passed by the Commissicner of Inland Revenuse, During the year, provision for current
tax is based on minirurm tao and final L regime. Accosdingly, tax recenciliation has not been presented in these financial statements,

2023 2032
), BASIC AND DILUTED EAENINGS PER SHARE —— (Rupees in 0007 —
Heet (Loss) f prof for the year (678,443) 1,325,515
Number of shares
Weighted average numbser of ardinary shares of s, 104~ each 297,017,427 297,011,427
sees (RUP@@S) ===n
Basic and diluted {Loss) [/ earmings per shane [2.2B) WA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

40, REMUNERATIOM OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Hote
Managenal remuneration 17,100 1,035 157923 176058
Heusing alkowmnce 7685 1035 65,030 73,760
Litities & conveyande 7555 230 50,266 58311
Medical 1,710 - 15728 17428

- Gratuity 1066 a4 18,579 #1479
Dthers 403 . 2300 113,868 116,168

36266 5434 azia1a 463,114
Mumbes 1 1 59 61

Mote

Managesial remuneration 23440 . 139,057 162,497
Hearsing allovance o548 . 54372 4,920
Litilities & conveyance 10,548 . 45556 56104
Medical 2343 . 13,263 15606
Gratuity B3 - 158553 18725
Bonus 6450 - 73303 79753
Cthers 403 - - 52916 5196

56,161 E 34350 450,521
Nunber 1 50 51

40,1 The Chief Executive and the Chairman are provided with free use of Company maintained cars and club membershipg with certain reimburiements
pertaining Lo business purposes in accordanice with their entitlernents. Certain executives are alse provided with company maintained cars a5 per
entitlement,

402 The aggregate amount paid o the six Mon-Executive Directors (2022 six Non-Executive Directors) as a fee for attending the meetings is fs. 3575
millicn [2022: Rs. 4.7 million)

40.3  Other incledes payment against car benefit allowance, drivers’ salarles, mobile allowance, achievernent of KPI, career merit points and gratulty
contmbution &te,

INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023 | 1w



Tat

L ¥

FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

431

- | INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023

Cazh flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments fon

Depreclation - operating fized assets
Depreciation - right-of-use-asset

Amoetization

Allowance for / (Reversal of | expected credit loss
Bad debts written off

Riviersal of provision for security deposits
Addjustrnent (I5PA) charge

Riversal of provision for GIDC

Unrealised exchinge gaind £ bass
Prevision fof gratuty

Loss / (Gain] on disposal of operating fixed assats
Amortization of government grant

Finance costs

Intarest expenses on leases

COperating profit before warking capital changes

{increase) f decrease in current assets:
Stores and spares

Stack-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Dahver receivables

Increase [ {decrease) in current labilities:

Trade and other payables
Contract Habilities

Cash generated from operations

Cash and bank balances
Rurining finance

['ES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mote

16
8.1

ix1
131
36

241
35
25
37
37

Mote

17
249

IVES AND P

2023 2023
emeeees | RuEpes i O oo
{25.876) 2078064
920,746 07 247
42,963 23,875
7819 7643
119,602 R
18,8549} {100,561}
- (V27500
- (2T2ET1)
(7600} (12,846}
17,30 *
92,915 71521
1,077 (2201}
{21,913} (32.407)
4,012,756 2,297 427
20,005 9270
5,196,582 2688, 74
5170706 4,766,768
152,491 11, 300,802)
1,920,439 15,025,495}
393,900 ST TS
7953 (19,403}
10,493 2,362
{210,970) 174,947
4,274,306 15,0 30,466)
2,413,796 812,712
(294,347} 273,865
2119449 BA65TT
11,564,461 522899
2023 2022
weseeees (RUPRES i OO wooveree
271,913 156,869
11,972, 797) (2017211}
11,700, 884) {1.660.342)

The Company's activities expose it ta a variety of inancial risks Le. market rsk, credit risk, lquidity risk and aperational risk. The Company's overall rigk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize polentzal adverse effects on the Campany's
financial performance. The Company’s risk management function continues 1o monites the developing situation and proactively manage any sk

atksing thereaf.

The board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of the risk which are summarized below.

Market risk

Market risk i the risk that the value of the Snancial instremant may Muctueate as a result of changes in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or
the equity prces due to a change in crédit rating of the issuer o the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supgly and
demand of securities and bquidity in the market, There hag been no change in the Company™s exposure 10 market risk or the manner inwhich this rigk
is managed and msasured, Under market risk the Company i exposed tointenest rate risk, currency risk and ather price risk (Squity price riskl,




NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

43.1.1 Interest rate risk

Inberest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will flectuate because of changes in the market interest
rates, The Company mitigates its risk againgt exposure by mainfaining adequate bank balances, The Company’s interest rate risk arjses from
longeterm financing, shor-term bBorrowings, mursbaha, saving accounts and term depodit recipts having floating rates. Change in benchmark
interest rate by 1% may have a positive of negative impact of approximately s 177 million (2022: A2, 231 milion] in statement of profit or loss, The
analysis is made based on the assumption that all sther variables remain constant,

43.1.2 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a inancial instrument will flectuate because of changes in foseign exchange rates. it
mainky arises where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company’s exposure to the nisk of changes in forebgn
euchange rates nelate primarily to the Company’s operating acthvities iwhen revenue or expenses are denominated in a different currency from the
Company’s functional currencyl.

Trade and other payables
Shert-tesm botrowings

The following significant exchange rates have been applied at the reparting dates:

—{Rupees—— —{Rupéts——o
28I 31437 -

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the US Dollar and Eure exchange rate, with all other vanables
held constant, of the company's profit before taxation:

30 Jme 2023

30 June 20022 +10 - +10 101
<10 = -10 (1o}

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit / loss for the year and assets and labilities of the Company

43.1.3 Equity price risk

422

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or fulure cash Rows of inancial instrurments will fluctuate because of changes in mamket prices (other
than those arising frorm currency sk of interest rate sk, whether those changes are caused by factans specific to the indoidual financial instraments
o its isswer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed Lo equity price risk as currently the
Company has no investmants in equity securities.

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the sk which arises with the possibility that one party to a inancial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties ane engaged in similar business activities or have
similar economic features that would cause their abifity to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
ather conditians. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Companys performance to developments affecting a particular
imclusiny:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposunes only 1o customens considersd credit worthy and obtaining
sedurities wherne apphicable. The maxinmasm exposure to credit risk a1 the reparting date is:

Mote 2023 2023
~= [Rupees in 0007 —

Inwestments (1] 14,289 14,289
Trade debis 13 4,973,402 5478005
Loans 14 33,985 29,486
Security deposits 15 3,400 10,165
Other recelvables 16 211,236 2066
Bank balances 17 262,606 F10.550
5498918 5842 7E1

43.2.1 Credit quality of inancial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that ane pether past nod impaired can be astesied by reférence to external credit ratings of to historical
information about counterparty default rates as shown below:

Trade debts Note 2023 2022
The ageing of trade debis at the statement of financial position date wag: - (Rupees in ‘0007 —
Meither past due nor impaired 3,379,014 4,420,844
Past due 1 to 90 days 1,222,372 a905,139
Past dua 91 to ¥4 days 202 865 7,304
More than 180 days 464,865 245 719
13 5271,116 5665016
Bank balances
Ritinigs
Al 177,962 06,732
A1 78,570 TG0
A2 1,809 24,583
Unrated 4,265 8,565
17 262 606 310,570
Investments
Ratings
A 14,286 14,285
1 14,289 14,269

433 Liquidity risk

Licytalelity risk is thee risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raizing funds to mest commitiments assaciated with the Anancial indtrements,
The management is closely monitaring the Company’s liquidity and cash flow position throwgh its treasury function and ensures availability of funds
by maintaining credit facilities available from financial institutions. The liquidity management also involves monitoring of liquidity ratios and
maintaining debt nancing plans.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

Table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

2023
Interest bearing finandal Rabilites
Lesng-term financing 392644 1,411,866 3,495,630 STTETT SETTE7
Lz frceis reslabed parthes. 407,675 - - - ATETS
Long-tanm bease habilities 25,666 23119 116,596 50,999 216,380
Trade and other payables 356,968 - - - 366,968
Shaort-term bomowings 4,110,987 7,220,145 - - 11331132
Noninterest bearing financial liabdities
Tradke and other payables - 3,589,893 - - 3,589,893
Ancnied marke-up 478,956 129,946 - - 708,902
5,788,352 12,674,969 3,512,206 628,576 22,904,223
Haz
(Rupe:cs in ‘000
Iritirest bisaring finandal Rabilities
Longr-tenm financing 187322 1159863 4673144 TeT28 6,739,057
Lesan From related partics 10,230 30355 351563 - 392,148
Lioney-term bedse Babuilities - 22060 52401 S0.595 135,460
Triche sl othe payalies 3059302 1362889 - - 442210
Short-term bosrowings 7235140 5320927 - - 12,556,067
Mon-interest bearing financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 57 5,50 E - - e ]
Uinchairmed dividend 5510 z > - 5510
Acenied rrark-up 455396 24851 + = AR0.247
11,526,584 792045 5,087,108 769727 25706774

414 Operational sk

Opevational risk is the sk of direct or indirect boss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology and infrastructure
supparting the Company's activities, either internally within the Company or externally ot the Company’s service providers, and from external factoss
ather than credit, market and Buidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory reguirements and generally accepted standards of
operation behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.

The Company’s objective is 1o manage operational risk so-as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to is reputation while achieving i1s
business objective and generating retums for investodns,

Primary responsibility for the development and implementation of cantrols over operational risk rests with the management of the Company. This
responsibility encompasses the contrals in the following areas:

« requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between varigus functions, robes and responsibilities;

- requirements for the recongiliation and menitoring of transactiong;

- campliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- documentation of controls and procedures:

- requirermnents for the penodic astessment of aperational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedunes o address the risks identified;
- ethical and business standards;

- risk itigatian, including insurance whene this is effective; and

- opeationa and qualitative track record of the plant and equipment supplier and related service providers.

Business Continuity Plans for respective areas are in place and tested. Work-from-Home capabilities hawe been enabled for staffwhere required, while
ensuring adequate controds 1o ensure that company's information assets are adequately peotected from emerging cyber threats.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

43,5 Capital risk management

The Company’s prime abjective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continuwe as a going concirn, maintain bealthy capital ratios,
strong cridit rating and optimal capital structure in order to ensure amiphe availability of Anance for iy existing and potential investment projects, to

maximize shareholder value and reduce the cost of capital

In arder to maintain of adpust the capital structure, the Campany may adjust the amownt of dividends paéd to shareholders, issue new shares ar sell

assels o reduce debi.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearning ratio. This ratio is caboulated as net debt divided by

tatal capital, Net debt Is calculated as total borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital ks calowlated as equity as shown in the statement.of

financial position plus net delt.

During the wear, the Company’s strateqy was to minimize keveraged gearing. The Company finances its expansion projects through borrowings and
management of its working capital with a view to mainfaining an appropriste mix between various sources of Ainance to-minimize risk, As of the date

of statement of finandal position, the Company was fianced through equity and debt.

HNote 2023 2022

=ees [RUp@es in 000 =
Gearing ratio l
Long-term financing 20 5,504,579 6,174,539
Trade and other payables x 4879403 £.238.326
Contract Habllities 479,226 773573
Lease Liabilities a5 156,326 85,767
Acorued mank-up 248 800, 284 51,138
Short-term boreewings 29 11,331,137 12573272
Totad debt 23,250,955 26,357,618
Cash and bank balances 17 {271,913) (355,869)
MNet debt 22,979,042 26,010,747
share capital 18 2,970,114 2970114
Rigeérens 7,948,338 B578.933
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 19 3,642,789 1,705,659
Total equity 14,562,241 15,254,706
Equity and net debt 37,541,283 41,265453

61% 63%

43,6 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to seil an asset or paid to ransfer aliability in‘an orderly transaction between market participants at the

marasurement date,
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial staterments approximate fair values.
The following table shows assets recognized at fair value, analyzed bebween those whaose fair value is based on:
- Level 1) Quoted prices in active markets for identical assers of labilities;
Lewvel 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and
Level 3: Inputs for the asset orliablility that are not based on cbservable market data.

2023

202X

el lewlz lew3 e R

{Rupees in ‘D007
Froperty, plant and equipment - 20,219,565 = 20,219,565
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUINE 2023
a4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

44,1  Financial assets as per statement of financial position

Mot 2023 022
At amortised cost — (Rupees in ‘000 —
Term deposits recelpts T 14,289 14,269
Trade debts 13 4973402 5478005
Loans 14 33,985 29,486
Accrued profit on term deposits receipts and savings account 801 2066
Bank balances 17 162,606 310,570
43,2 Financial liabilities as per staterment of inancial position
At amortised cost
Long term financing 0 5,504,579 6,174,539
Loan from related parties 2 316,333 341,333
Trade payable 27 4,356,861 4422191
Interest / mark up accrued 28 B00, 264 521,135
Short term bomrowing 2 11,331,137 12,573,272
Unclaimed dividend 5456 5610
15, THRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of assaciated companies. directors and key management personnel of the Company. Details of transactions with related
parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere fn these financial statements ane as follows:

45,1 Following ane the refated parties with whaom the Company had entersd into Transactions of have Arrangenment / agreement in plade:

2023 2022

Nature of transactions
Trsnenction with difset wees [ Ruprees in 000]
- Payment of interest to related parties 10,966 8819
= Principal Repayment te related parties 25,000 -
- Sale of Laptop - 23
< Saleof vehicles to Directors 1,762 .
- Sale of vehiches to Company 11,000 .
= Saleof bars 12078 -
Transactions with associates
= Enbertainment expenso 26T 526

Danation to The Hunar Foundation 3,000 71
= Danation to Amreli Foundation 310 -
Transactions with shareholder
«  Sale of bass - 15,156
- Payment of interest to shareholder - 5,660
- Payment of rent and security deposit of rented office 22,292 8,190

45.1.1 Followdng ane the related parties with whom the Company had entered Into transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place:

| Paramount Steel Company Assodate (common directorship) -
2 Shershah Indurstries {Pervate) Linnited Assockate (common directorship) -
3 Hobinoh Bakeries Assockate [comman dinectorshiph "
4 Amireli Holding (Private) Limited PAssociate (sommon dictorship) -
L] Hi-Tech Metals Special Economic Zone [Private) Limited Ausocinte [Comenon directorship) "
] The Bunar Foundstion Fusociatie (comemon directorship) -
7 Amreli Global Enterprises (Priviste) Limited Asociate (common dingctorship) =
B Amreeli Foundation FAuzode [commen dinectorship) -
g . Salabd Aldberal Shareholkder OA2%
(1] Ivir, Hadli Akberali Dhirecior T2 0
1 Wis. Kinza Shayan Drector -
12 e, Abbas Akberali Dwecton 30.74%
13 Ivie. Shayyaen Akderal Direcior 1261%:

INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023 | | 10 s



NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

45.1.2 None of the key management persannel had any arrangements with the Company other than the empioyment contract.

45.1.3 All the transactions with related parties are entened in accordance with the terms of agreement as approved by Board of Directors of the Company.

36, PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
46.1 Billets

Flant - mame plate capacity

Awailable capacity

Actual production
46.2 Bars

Flant - name plate capacity
FAwailable capacity
Actual production

46,3  Actual production during the yearis in line with the market demand.

o GPRERATING SEGMENTS

206,163

{Metric Ton)

022

492

380,817

B3l

Lt fen  ep

These financial statements have been preparcd on the basisof a singhe reportable segment. Totad sales of the Company relating to customens in

Fakistan were 93.84% during the year ended June 30, 2023 [June 30, 2022; 99.91%).

Al ran-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2022 and 2021 are located in Pakistan.

Sales to twenty major custemers of the Company are around 25% during the year ended June 30, 2023 [June 30, 2002 16%).

471 Geographical information

The Company’s grass revenue from external customers by geographical location is detalled below:

Dormuestic sales
Export sales

4701 Region wise export sales are a5 under:

Korea

s | (35 | INTO THE STORMS-Annual Report 2023

2023 2022
=== {Rupees in 000}
53,438,364 E.073,966
71,194 57,943
53;509,558 £E,137,909
71,194 57,943




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDIED 30 JUINE 2023

441

402

MNLUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employess and average number of employess at year end and dusing the year respectively are a3 follows:

2023 2022

[(Mumbaer)
Total number of employees’as at June 30 T45 755
Average number of employees’ during the year 757 44

GEMNERAL

Corresponding figures hawve been reclassified £ rearranged, wherever necessary.
Flgures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unbess atherwise stated,
| .___';'.' E :.'\.. BRI :..|: _.:'!_'I'.|'| .._'!' i -C.;'::' '.'_'.:I k=

Thesee fingncial statements were authorized for isiue on 08 September 2023 by the Board of Diectors of the Compary,

_}_w&,@dﬁ =l A=

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM
Mandatary Credit of Dividend into Bank Account

To: Datez

The undersigned being member of AMRELI STEELS LIMITED (the Company], hereby authorize the Company that all my cash dividend amouwnts declared
by the Company, fram time to time; be credited into the bank account as per follewing details:

Mame of the sharehobder

Falio Mo, / COC Participants D & Sub Acc. No.CDC A5 Account

CHIC/MICOP Mo, (Please attach copyl

Passport Malin case of Forelgn Shareholder] (Please attach copy)

Landlime Phone No.

Tithe of Bank Account

Bank Account Mumber

Bank's Mame

Branch Mame and Address

International Bank Accownt Mumibser (IBAN) (24 digit)
b . o

1t s stated that the above mentionied information is correct that | will intimate the change in the abiove mentioned information to the Company and the
concemed Share Registrar as soon as these ocour,

Signature of the member/shareholder
(Please affix company stamp in case of corporate entity)

MNOTE:
L Please provide complete IBAN after consultation with youwr bank branch, In case of any error or ormission in AN, the Cormparny will
Aot be hild responsible in any manner for any loss of delay in your cash dividend payment.
2, in case of physical shares, a duly filed-in e-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted with the Company's Shase Registrar. Whike for
shares held in CDC, E-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted directly to membar's broker/ participant/CDC as required by the
Central Depasitary Company of Pakistan Limited vide its Gircular No, 16 of 2017 isswed on 31 August 2017,
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Proxy Form

The Cormpany Secretary
Arnreli Steels Limited
A-18, 5.1.TE Karachi.

Ve Yo Wio Resifent of besnng member(s] of
Ameedi Steets Limited (the Compamy, holding ordinary shares as per Registened Folio Mo COC Participant LD Mo and
Sub Account Mo, hesety appoint 5o We a5 my [ our prosy to attend, act and vobe on my

o behalf af the 33th Annual Ganeral Meeting of the Cormpany to be held on Tuesday, 24th ding of October 2023 a8 200 pmand at any sdjsurmment thensol
signedthis __ dayol 2023,

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Sharsholder
WITNESS:
-1] -2
Shgnature: Signabure:
Marmee: Marg:
CNIC/ Passpart Mo, CIIC / Passport Mo,
Agddress: Address:
NOTE:

1. The ey fonm, duly completed and signed, must be recerved at the Registered Office of the Comparny, A-18, SLTE Karachi, not less than 48 hours

Ivefoare the time of holding the meeting,
2 All rrverbers ane entithed to sttend and vote at the Mesting,
i I & Fricrribsir agpoinits mans than ane prowy foe the anfusl general mésting and mond than eheinstruments of peody sne deposited by the

b with the Compary, all such mstrumants of prosy shall b rendered invalid
4 Ierribers ane nicpuested o notify any changes in their sddeess mmediately,
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DIVIDEND CLAIM FORM
Mandatory Credit of Dividend inte Bank Account

e Dates

I/ herelry clalm below mentioned dividend, which are appearing as outstanding In the books of the Company belong to me/us. Vwe confirm that no
mmthhuhd%ﬂa:mﬂumdmmmmhﬂdﬁmhtwhﬂmpﬂ

i Folio or COC Account No

ik Marme as per CNIC

i, Father's/Hushand's Name

i, Armount of Unclaimed Dividend

wiil, Signatures as per Company’s records

. =

17w artach the following docurments in support of rpfour claim; [Please mark () on appropriate box)

-

[ 1 Copyof CMIC of the sharehalder(s)
Unclaimed Dividend warrant, if avaitable and not encashed earlier by the shareholderss)

[] Anested copy of electricity fgasitelephone bill showing the current address, if it differs with company’s record, alongwith request to record the
niew address

E] Mcmﬂmammmmm:mimmu;mﬂThmmﬂmllhepmmmnﬁmﬂmrnmmm
“of legal heirs

L

=
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STANDARD REQUEST LETTER FOR HARD COPY OF AMRELISTEELS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT

Drate:

The Share Registrar

Armiredi Steels Limited

THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited

Plet Mo 32-C, Jami Commuercial Mreet-2
D H.A, Phase-Vl, Karachi

Email: sfe@thk corm.pk

Subject; Request for Hard Copy of Annual Report of Amreli Steeks Limited (the "Company ™}
Dhiedur 5,

s niotifed by the Securities and Exchange Cormmission of Pakistan ["SECPT] vide its 500, 389(1/2003 dated 21 March 3023 allowed the Companies to
transmit annual avdited financial statements notice of general meetng(s)f annual repodt 1o the members for future years commencing from the financial
year 2023 through OR enabled code and weblink instead of transmitting the same throwgh COVDVDYLUISE, at thedr reqistered addresses, excepl for those whio
opt for a hardcopy of the Annual Audited Accounts by filling aut the details below and sending it o the Companmy’s share registrar and Company Secretary.

I, being a registered member of Amreli Steels Limited, with my particulars as mentioned below, hereby regquest that my name be added to the list of
members of the Company who opt for delivery of a hardeopy of the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company at their registered addresses instead of
praviding the same throwgh OR enabled code and weblink on registered emalil

Mame of Members)

COC Participant 10 & Sub-Account Ro,

CHIC/NICOPPasspart/MTH Naplease attach copyl)

Address of Shareholder

Land Line Tefegphone Ne, (if any)

Ciell Mo, §if any)

Email Address
% .
Weaars truly,

Member’s Signature (Flease affic company stamp in case of corporate entity)

Ly e

The Company Secrtary

Arrreli Steeld Limited

A-18, 51.TE.

Karachi

Email investor-relations@amrelisteals.com
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